CITY OF MEDINA
AGENDA FOR COUNCIL MEETING

December 11, 2023
Medina City Hall — Council Rotunda
7:30 p.m.

Call to Order.
Roll Call.

Reading of minutes. (November 27, 2023)

Reports of standing commitiees.

Requests for council action,

Reports of municipal officers.

Confirmation of Mayer’s appeintments.
Airport Commission — Greg Huber — expiring 12/31/27
Airport Commission — Edward Farnham (Pilot/airport user resident) — expiring 12/31/27
Board of Building Code Appeals — Bill Stuchal (Engineer) — expiring 12/31/27
Board of Zoning Appeals — Mark Williams — expiring 12/31/27
Business Development Committee — Bethany Dentler (Industry) — expiring 12/31/27
Cemetery Commission — Susan Harr — expiring 12/31/27
Historic Preservation Board — Paul Wood (Resident) — expiring 12/31/27
Historic Preservation Board — Leslie Traves (Property Owner) — expiring 12/31/27
JEDD Board - John Coyne (Council rep) — expiring 12/31/27
Records Commission — Bob Starcher — expiring 12/31/24
Shade Tree Commission — Pamela Molnar — expiring 12/31/27
Shade Tree Commission — Emillie Illson — expiring 12/31/27
Uptown Park Advisory Committee — Mike Laribee — expiring 12/31/26
Uptown Park Advisory Committee — Roger Smalley (CDC Rep.) — expiring 12/31/26
CRA Housing Council — Monica Russell — expiring 12/31/26
CRA Housing Council — Tammy Kirby — expiring 12/31/26

Confirmation of Council appointments.
Audit Committee — Bert Humpal (Accounting Rep) — Expiring 12/31/27

Audit Committee — Bruce Gold (Business Rep) — Expiring 12/31/27

Notices, conununications and petitions.

Liquor Permit:
Not to object to the issuance of a D-3 permit to IBC Bars LLC, dba Little Fox Café and Bakery, 540 Blake

Avenue, Medina.




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

Unfinished business,

Ord. 192-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Job Creation Grant Payment to Carlisle Brake & Friction / Friction Products.

Introduction of visitors.
(speakers limited to 5 min.)

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.
Motion to suspend the Rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and resolutions: Ord. 192-23,

Ord. 201-23, Res. 202-23, Ord. 203-23, Ord. 204-23, Ord. 205-23, Ord. 206-23

Ord. 200-23 (First Reading)
An Ordinance amending the Special Planning District No. 1 “SPD-1” Development Guidelines pertaining to

South Court Village.

Ord. 201-23
An Ordinance amending Section 31.02 (12) and 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of Medina,

Ohio relative to the Law Department Secretaty.
(emergency clause requested)

Res. 202-23
A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to apply for the 2024 State Capital Grant for funding to construct a Multi-

Use Path known as Phase 1 of the Uptown Loop.
(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 203-23
An Ordinance adopting a New Chapter 162 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio regarding

Municipal Income Tax.
(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 204-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into the Flock Safety Agreement for the license plate scanning

system for the Police Department.
(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 205-23
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 42-23, passed February 27, 2023 relative to the expenditure to Signal

Service Company for the Street Department.

(emergency clause requested)

Ord. 206-23
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 221-22, passed December 12, 2022. (Amendments to 2023 Budget.

Council comments.

Adjournment.




MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
Monday, November 27, 2023

Call to Order:
Medina City Council met in regular session on Monday, November 27, 2023 at Medina City Hall.

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Mr. John Coyne III, President of Council who
also led in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call:
The roll was called with the following members of Council, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J.

Coyne, R. Haire, and J. Hazeltine. B. Lamb was absent.

Also present were the following members of the Administration: Mayor Hanwell, Loti Bowers,
* Patrick Patton, Nino Piccoli, Chief Kinney, Greg Huber, Jansen Wehrley, Chief Walters, Kimberly
Marshall, Dan Gladish, and Andrew Dutton. '

Minutes:
Mr. Shields moved that the minutes from the regular meeting on Monday, November 13, 2023, as

prepared and submitted by the Clerk be approved, seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll was called
and passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, and P.

Rose,

Reports of Standing Commitfees:

Finance Committee: Mr. Coyne stated they met prior to council this evening and will meet again
on December 11%" to end the year.

Public Properties Committee; Mr. Shields had no report.

Health, Safety & Sanitation Committee: Mr. Simpson had no report.

Special Legislation Committee: Mr. Lamb was absent.

Streets & Sidewalks Committee: Ms. Haire had no report.

Water & Utilities Committee: Ms, Hazeltine had no report.

Emerging Technologies Committee: Mr. Rose had no report.

Requests for Council Action:

23-231-11/27 — Budget Amendments

23-232-11/27 — Amend S&B Code 31.05 — Addition of 2" F/T Law Secretary
23-233-11/27 — Amend SPD-1 Development Guidelines — South Court Village
23-234-11/27 — Approval of Medina Rec Sponsorship Banner

23-235-11/27 — State Capital Grant Project Request

Reports of Municipal Officers:

Dennis Hanwell, Mayor, _
A, Keep Montville Township staff and family of long time Trustee Ron Bishof in your

thoughts and prayers with Ron’s Passing.




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

B. Unofficial election results show the deer culling archery program was passed by voters.
The formal certification of election by the Medina County Board of Elections is
scheduled for 3pm on Tuesday, November 28" The application, rules and reviews for
approval will then be available at the Medina Police Department due to 24/7
availability.

C. 39" Annual Candlelight walk activities took place with events on Friday, November
17" through Sunday, November 19" bringing in the largest crowds he has seen in his
40 years with the city. Thank you to Mainstreet Medina, and all the sponsors and
volunteers that made the weekend exceptional. Making Medina Proud

D. Quotes from Facebook — 2 Mothers that were raised here and now are raising their
families here. “From the place that you come from to beyond what you see is a town
like your town, if your town was a dream” — N.B. “There is something incredibly
special about raising your family where you were raised. T am beyond grateful, Medina,

OH.” - SR

Lori Bowers, Deputy Finance Director, had no report.

Kimberly Marshall, Fconomic Development Director, had no report.
Greg Huber, Law Department, had no report.

Chief Kinney, Police Department, had no repoit.

Chief Walters, Fire Department, had no report.

Joe Toth, LST Director, Mr. Toth stated for the month of October the Life Support Team
responded to 2,891 calls in the City of Medina. With the Townships added they responded to 4,410

calls.

Jansen Wehrley, Parks and Recreation Director, reported that the leisure pool at the Rec Center
is scheduled to open December 2™, There will also be a pool party that is long overdue. On
December 7 the Fitness Room addition at the rec center will have a soft opening.

Dan Gladish, Building Official, had no report.

Nino Piccoli, Service Director, Nino stated they have 3 leaf trucks out and about, the city will be
making another round or until a heavy snow.

Patrick Patton, City Engineer, stated work continues on the underground installation of utilities
on West Smith, through traffic is not permitted, only local access for property/business owners.
Hopefully they can wrap up in two to three more weeks.

Andrew Dutton, Planning and Community Development Director, had no report.

2




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

Notices, communications and petitions:
There were none.

Unfinished Business:

Ord. 172-23

An Ordinance authorizing the Finance Director to waive certain unpaid utility accounts. Mr.
Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 172-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Lori Bowers stated this request is to waive uncollectable utility accounts. Some are sheriff sales,
and bankruptcies they can’t collect on and some are for rubbish accounts and most are from roll
off accounts where some are not in the city limits. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution
No. 172-23 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, and

J. Shields.

Introduction of Visitor:
Angela Mansiur resides at 149 Essex Ln. — Angela thanked City Council and the Service

Department for all their efforts at the Candlelight Walk. [t’s refreshing to see and realize how
supported Main Street Medina is and this community is by all the people and their hard work.

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions,

Mr. Shields moved to suspend the tules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and
resolutions, seconded by Mr. Simpson: Ord, 172-23, Ord. 190-23, Res. 191-23, Ord. 192-23, Ord.
193-23, Ord. 194-23, Ord. 195-23, Ord. 196-23, Ord. 197-23, Ord. 198-23, Ord. 199-23. The roll
was called and the motion passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, J.

Shields, and D. Simpsom.

Ord. 190-23
An Ordinance to make appropriations for current expenses and other expenditures of the

City of Medina, Ohio for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024. Mr. Shields moved for the
adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 090-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Lori Bowers stated this
is the city’s annual budget. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 190-23 passed by
the yea votes of R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, and I. Coyne.

Res. 191-23
A Resolution adopting a Five-Year Budget for the City of Medina, Ohio for the period

beginning January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2028. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 191-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Lori stated this goes along with the
annual budget adopting a five-year budget to project out how the city is going to look for the next
five years. Mr. Coyne stated that this helps the city out and helps the city be able to function on
such a low-income tax. Regi thanked the Finance Department for all the work they do to allow
council to get these budgets through and approved. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution
No. 191-23 passed by the yea votes of J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, . Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and

R, Haire.

Ord. 192-23
An Qrdinance authorizing the Job Creation Grant payments to Carlisle Brake & Friction /

3




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

Friction Products. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 192-23,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. Ms. Marshall requested to table this ordinance until the next meeting.

***Tahled

Ord. 193-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the

Medina County Board of Commissioners to provide fixed route public transportation
services within the City of Medina for the period of January 1,2024 through August 31, 2025.
Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 193-23, seconded by Mr.
Simpson. Mr. Dutton stated this is similar to past agreements we’ve had with the county in which
we will contribute $90,000 with $75,000 of that coming from the CDBG grant and $15,000 will
come from general funds over a two-year period. This is a more of an on-demand service. The rofl
was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 193-23 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D.
Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, and P. Rose.

Ord. 194-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Settlement Agreement and Release

between the City of Medina and Olson Products, Inc. pertaining to the Medina Municipal
Airport. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 194-23, seconded by
Mr. Simpson. Mr., Huber stated that this agreement resolves the financial issues between the City
of Medina and Flight Services of Medina which is operated by Olson Products. This concludes the
operation of the Airport by Flight Services of Medina and permits the new operator Ron Waldron
with his group Cold Stream Air Services to start operations out of the airport. The roll was called
and Ordinance/Resolution No. 194-23 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire,

J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Ord. 195-23 :
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with th

Medina County Emergency Management Agency to install an amateur radio repeater infon
the Progress Drive Water Tower. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution
No. 195-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Chief Kinney stated Progress Water Tower is an ideal
location and also provides s a redundant communication system in case our primary, secondary
system goes down in an event of a national tragedy or disaster. The prior MOU that was passed in
Finance 2 weeks ago had some amendments from the prosecutor’s office. Mr. Huber reviewed the
amendments and approved them, The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 195-23 passed
by the yea votes of J. Coyne, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, . Shields, and D. Simpson.

Ord. 196-23
An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of three (3) 2023 Ford Explorers including Upfitting,

from Montrose Ford for the Police Department. Mr, Shiclds moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 196-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Chief Kinney stated this is for the

3 frontline vehicles from Montrose Ford and were budgeted. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 196-23 passed by the yea votes of R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, J.

Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

Ord. 197-23
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter inte a Cleveland Clinic Fitness Center and

Medina Community Recreation Center Health and Fitness Agreement. Mr. Shields moved
for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 197-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Jansen stated
this agreement allows the rec center to continue their partnership and collaboration with the
Cleveland Clinic by offering Cleveland Clinic access to the Medina Rec Center as part of their
employee health plan, The draft in the packet is pending Law Director approval. The roll was
called and Ordinance/Resolution’ No. 197-23 passed by the yea votes of J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, J.

Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and R. Haire.

Ord. 198-23 _
An_Ordinance to clarify and unify the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio by

amending various sections of Part 11 — Planning and Zoning Code. Mr. Shields moved for the
adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 198-23, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Andrew stated these
primarily deal with uses, their definitions and consistency throughout the various chapters and
zoning districts. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 198-23 passed by the yea votes
of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire, and J. Hazeltine.

Ord. 199-23
An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 221-22, passed December 12, 2022. (Amendments
te 2023 Budget) Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 199-23,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. Lori Bowers stated these are new appropriations that are necessary to
cover expenses through the end of the year and one is for a grant that the Police Department
received. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 199-23 passed by the yea votes of P.
Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, R. Haire, and J. Hazeltine.

Council comments. '
Mr. Simpson expressed condolences to the Bishof Family, He was one of the longest serving

Trustees in the county for 54 years, most likely in the stafe also.
Grateful to Mainstreet Medina for their efforts with the Candlelight Walk event. Be kind to one

another.

Ms. Hazeltine expressed her sadness in the loss of her friend Carrie Park, she touched many young
leaders through her position as Director of Junior Leadership Medina County. Please consider
helping her dream of encouraging and fostering young leaders here in Medina County.

Mr. Rose expressed his sympathies to the Bishof family and the Park family.
Grateful to Angela and George with Medina Mainstreet and the Candlelight Walk.
When we get the heavy snowfall this winter please make sure your fire hydrants are cleared.

Adjournment,

There being no further business, Council adjourned at 7:58 p.m.




Medina City Council
November 27, 2023

Kathy Patton, Clerk of Council

John Coyne IIf, President of Council




OHIO DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
6606 TUSSING ROAD, P.O. BOX 4006

MNOTICE TO LEGISLATIVE
AUTHORITY REYNOLDSBURG, OHIO 43068-2005
(614)644-2360 FAX{B14)644-3166
TO
41187600015 N I1BC BARS LLC
. PERMIT NUMEER wee MBA LITTLE FOX CAFE AND BAKERY
J 540 BLAKE AVE
IESUE DATE EDINA OH 44256
11109 %023
D3
B
52 (077 E l D99447
TAX DISTRICT BECEIPT NO.
FROM 12/04/2023
PEEMIT NUMBER TYRE |
ISSUE DATE
| FILING DATE

PERMIT CLASSES
TAX DISTRICT AECEIRT_NO.

BN on

HHHHTN

12/0 4/2023 RESPONSES MUST BE POSTMARKED NO LATER THAN.
IMPORTANT NOTICE A
PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM TO THE DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL

WHETHER OR NOT THERE IS A REQUEST FOR A HEARING.
REFER TO THIS NUMBER IN ALL INQUIRIES C N 4118760-0015

01/04/2024

MAILED

[TRANSACTION & NUMBER]

(MUST MARK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING)

WE REQUEST A HFEARING ON THE ADVISABILITY OF ISSUING THE PERMIT AND REQUEST THAT
THE HEARING BE HELD [T N OUR COUNTY SEAT. 1IN COLUMBUS.

WE DO NOT REQUEST A HEARING. [ ]
DID YOU MARK A BOX? IF NOT, THIS WILL BE CONSIDERED A LATE RESPONSE.

PLEASE SIGN BELOW AND MARK THE APPROPRIATE BOX INDICATING YOUR TITLE:

{Signature} {Title}- ] Clerk of County Commissienar {Date)

[] cterk of City Council
[] Townaship Fiscal Officer

CLERK OF MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
132 NORTH ELMWOOD AVENUE
MEDINA OHIO 44256

0LG 4052 REV. 03/09




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:
WHEREAS:
WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

|- 2123 RCA 23-225-11/13

Talg[e,ﬂi on 1

“ORDINANCE NO. 192-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE JOB CREATION GRANT
PAYMENTS TO CARLISLE BRAKE & FRICTION / FRICTION

PRODUCTS,

Ordinance No. 154-07, passed September 24, 2007 adopted a Job Creation Grant Program
for the City of Medina, Ohio to provide incentives to businesses to retain, create and
expand employment opportunities within the City of Medina without utilizing tax
revenues or impacting negatively upon the local school system; and

Ordinance No. 194-14, passed November 24, 2014, adopted new guidelines effective
December 24, 2014; and

Ordinance No. 63-17, passed May 8, 2017, authorized the Job Creation Grant Agreement
#JCQG13 for Carlisle Brake & Friction; and

Ordinance No. 114-20, passed June 22, 2020, authorized the Job Creation Grant
Agreement #JCG21 for Carlisle Brake & Friction; and

The Business Development Committee met to review the progress of these two grants and
is recommending the payment of $53,491.89 ($18,750.06 for JCG13 & $34,741.83 for

ICG21),

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MEDINA, OHIO: ‘

That the Job Creation Grant payment of $53,491.89 to Carlisle Brake & Friction is hereby
authorized.

That the funds to cover this payment in the amount of $53,491.89 are available in
Account No. 001-0749-56630.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council,
and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such
formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ond. 192-23




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:
WHEREAS:
WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:
. the City Council approve to amend the Special Planning District No. 1 Design

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC, 3:

RCA 23-233-11727

(First Reading)
ORDINANCE NO. 200-23

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL PLANNING
DISTRICT NO. 1 “SPD-1” DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES
PERTAINING TO SOUTH COURT VILLAGE.

Ordinance No. 249-98, passed January 11, 1999, in addition to various amendments
to the Zoning Code of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio,
established Special Planning District No. 1 (SPD-1) and adopted a Conceptual
Development Plan and associated Development Guidelines; and

Ord. 207-06, passed October 23, 2006, amended the Special Planning District No. 1
“SPD-1” Development Guidelines; and

Ord. 164-16, passed November 28, 2016, amended the Special Planning District No.
1 “SPD-1” Development Guidelines; and

Ord. 156-18, passed October 22, 2018, amended the Special Planning District No. 1
“SPD-1” Development Guidelines; and

The Planning Commission recommended at its meeting held November 9, 2023 that
Guidelines as proposed in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

The notice of public hearing by Medina City Council was duly published and the
hearing was duly held on January 8, 2024,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Special Planning District No. 1 “SPD-1” Development Guidelines are
hereby amended as reflected in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

That this Ordinance and the various parts, sentences, paragraphs, sections, and
clauses thereof are hereby declared fo be severable, Should any part, sentence,
paragraph, section, or clause be declared unconstitutional, null, or void by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not have any effect on the validity of
the remaining parts, sentences, paragraphs, sections, and clauses of this Ordinance.

That this Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this Council
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action,
were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements,
including but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Revised Code.

1 Ord. 200-23




SEC, 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

PASSED: SIGNED:

President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVED:
Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Effective date —

2 Ord. 200-23




Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev. 11.9.2023

SPECIAL PLANNING DISTRICT NO. 1 E J(’h 0{
Propost
||SPD_ 1 11
DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

C.L PURPOSE
The purpose of this District is to implement the South Court Village Concept Plan as outlined in the

Comprehensive Plan Update (1996) for the City of Medina. In the Comprehensive Plan the South Court
Village area was identified as needing special zoning in order to protect the integrity of South Court
Street and residential neighborhoods while still providing an appropriate neighborhood scale of
commercial development to meet the needs of the residents in this area.

C.2  STATUS OF USES

Uses within each of the SPD-1 Subdistricts as depicted on the South Court Village Conceptual
Development Plan (Exhibit "C-1") shall be governed by this section. The location of these uses shall be
based on the South Court Village Conceptual Development Plan, see Figure 1. Uses shall be defined in

Chapter 1105.

(A) SPD-1 Subdistrict "A". No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as

indicated below.
') Principal Permitted Uses

(@)

Commei cmrl Uses perniitied or comimonally pemm‘ted in the C-3 GBIIEI a)‘ Comme; cial
Disirict shall be principally permitied use in SPD-1 Subdistrict “A” with the exceplion
of the following uses, which shall be prolibited: major moitor vehicle repair, motor
vehicle sales, crematorium, and sexually oriented business. Retail business square
footage requirements found in the C-3 General Commercial District shall not apply
and building footprint size for all uses shall be regutated by $C.2(AN3) of these
Development Guidelines. Numerical identification for uses in §1137.04 corresponding
to specific standards in §1153.04(a) shall apply.

@) Lot and Yard Requirements
(a) None: However, spacing of proposed buildings will be reviewed during site plan review

based on standards found in Chapter 1109 (Site Plan Review), Chapter 1114 (Special
Planning Districts) and Appendix C.
) Building Requirements

(a) Building height shall not exceed 35 feet.

(b) The building footprint shall not exceed 78,000 square feet for the one large "Grocery
Anchor* retail building. The rest of the buildings will shall have smaler building
footprints and-sheuld-censist-of compact;-small-sealeretail buildings no larger than
40,000 square feet for multi-tenant buildings and 15,000 sq. ft. for single-tenant

buildings.
(c) The total square footage in Subdistrict "A" shall not exceed a floor area ratio (FAR) of

25 .35,
(d) The impervious surface ratio in Subdistrict "A" shall not exceed .75 ISR.

B) SPD-1 Subdistrict *B". No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as
indicated below.




(1)

2)

)

(©
)

2)

@)

)

&)
(®)
(N

Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev. 11.9.2023

Principal Permitted Uses

(a) Gfﬁeesﬂmel—geﬁ%esﬁeﬂ =

Qa (Xt 1 ]

Commercial Uses permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-1 Local Conumercial
District shall be principally perniitted use in SPD-1 Subdistrict “B” with the exception
of the following uses, which shall be prohibited: Bar or tavern, bed and breakfast inn,
hospital, restaurant, and niotor vehicle filling station, Numerical identification for uses
in §1133.04 corresponding to specific standards in §1153.04(a) shall apply.

Lot and Yard Requirements

(a) None: However, spacing of proposed buildings will be reviewed during plan review
based on standards found in Chapter 1109 (Site Plan Review), Chapter 1114 (Special
Planning Districts) and Appendix C.

Building Requirements

(a) Building height shall not exceed 35 feet.

(b) Buildings shall be compact and small scale.

(c) Each building footprint shall not exceed 20,000 square feet.

(d) The total square footage in Subdistrict “B” shall not exceed a floor area ratio (FAR) of

28.30.
(e) The impervious surface ratio in Subdistrict “B” shall not exceed .60 ISR.

SPD-1 Subdistrict “C”. No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as

indicated below.
Principal Permitted Uses

(a) Medium Density Residential: row houses, townhouses, duplexes, single family homes,
apartment building.

Accessory-Uses

(a) Accessory uses, buildings, and structures customarily incidental to any of the aforesaid

principal permitted uses on the same lot therewith. This would include decks, open
porches, patios or terraces which are permitted to extend up to 10 feet into the rear yard.
Lot Requitements
(a) Minimum lot width (feet) at building line per dwelling shall be 40 feet.
(b) Minimum lot width (feet) at building line per dwelling shall be 23 feet for attached
dwellings.
Yard Requirements
i) Detached Dwellings
(a) Minimum front yatd depth: twenty feet.
b Minimum rear yard depth: fifteen feet.
(c) Minimum side yard depth: five feet.
(ii) Attached Dwellings
(a) Minimum front yard depth: twenty feet.

(b) Minimum rear yard depth: fifteen feet.

(c) Minimum side yard depth: zero feet between attached units,
Building Height
(a) Maximum building height shall be thirty-five feet.
Land Use Intensity

(a) The number of dwelling units per acre shall not exceed 8.

Each building consisting of two or more attached units shall be situated so that there exists:

(a) A minimum of ten (10) feet between the buildings where two side yards meet.

(b A minimum of thirty (30) feet between the buildings where two rear yards meet.

(c) A minimum of twenty (20) feet between the buildings where two side yards of a building
of attached units meets a rear yard of attached units.

2




C3
4y

2

3)

)

&)
(6)

Q)
(8

)

Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev. 11.9.2023

LANDSCAPING STANDARDS
Each landscape plan shall address the functional aspects of landscaping such as drainage,
provisions for shade, energy conservation, sound absorption, dust abatement, reduction of glare

and screening.

P 4 B afafhatiatul=kan £y
- g o 0O ¥

" Tt
7

'Sﬂ'b H - A2 [1anEs) b
A minimum seventy-five (75) foot landscaped buffer yard shall be required fo buffer SPD-1

[front adjacent vesidentially zoned properties to the north and west and shall be required to
buffer Subdistricts "A” and “B” from Subdistrict “C”. The width of the buffer shall be
mieasured from the adjacent property line and may include the Masi Parkway vight-of-way.
Landscaped materials in the buffer yard shall incorporate sight blocking plant material such as
evergreens or hedges at least six (6) feet in height, situated so as to provide an effective and
permaneni visual buffer.

Large, unbroken parking areas shall be avoided. Traffic or directional islands in combination with
trees and plantings shall be used to divide large parking areas into smaller segments, (i.e.) 16 to
18 parking spaces between planting areas. The foregoing shall apply except for the Grocery
Anchor parking area where traffic or directional islands in combination with trees and planting
shall be used to divide large parking areas into smaller segments, (i.e.) 25 to 30 parking spaces
between planting area.

In locations whete plants will be susceptible to injury by pedestrians or motor traffic, they shall
be protected by appropriate curbs, parking blocks or other devices.

Where landscaping is used as screening it shall be opaque year round.

Landscape screening shall be of a height and density so that it provides the full desired effect
within three years growing time.

All plants are to be living. All unhealthy or dead plant material shall be replaced within one year,
or by the next planting period, whichever comes first.

The Owner of the property shall be responsible for the continued property maintenance of all
Jandscaping materials, and shall keep them in a proper, neat and orderly appearance, fiee from
refuse and debris at all times.

Once the open space buffer area between the residential and commercial/office areas has been
approved and established as indicated on the Final Site Development Plan, it may not be used,

disturbed or altered for any other purpose.




C.4
(1

@

C.5
(D)

@
&)
)

(5)

(6)

Q)

Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev, 11.9.2023

SIGNAGE
Signage in SPD-1 Subdistrict “C” shall conform to the-Siga-Cede-of Seetion-H47-11 Residential

and Public Eaeility Distriets §1747.12.

Signage in SPD-1 Subdistricts "A" and "B" shall conform to general and administrative
requirements found in Chapter 1147, and all signs in Subdistricts "A" and "B" shall conform to

the following requirements:

(a) That-all-sisns-be-externalty-illuminated Cliangeable copy signs shall be prohibired.

That exterior wall signs shall conforni to §1147.14(d). The “Grocery Anchor" retail
building as indicated C.2(A.)(3.)(b) of this document shall conply with wall sign area
requirenients of §1147.14(d) and shall be permiited up io five (5) total wall signs.

(c) That all internal streets shall be considered streets for the purposes of determining
frontage and eligibility for additional sign area, in accordance with §1147-17b)
§1147.14(d).

(d) That one sign be permitted at the primary entrance to the development on S. Court Street,
with a sign area not to exceed 60 SE square feet per side, a height not to exceed 8 ¥ feer,
and a setback from the right-of-way not less than 20 F feer.

(e) That one sign be permitted at the primary entrance to Subdistrict "A" on High Point
Drive, with a sign area not to exceed 60 SE square feet per side, a height not to exceed 8
E feer, and a setback from the right-of-way not less than 20 E feer.

§3] That one sign be permitted near the intersection of S. Court Street and High Point Drive,
with a sign area not to exceed 150 SE square feet per side, a height not to exceed 20 £
Jeet, and a setback from S. Court Street and High Point Drive rights-of-way not less than

20 E feer.
(2) That no additional ground signs shall be permitied in Subdistrict "A".

GENERAL DESIGN STANDARDS
Consistency with the goals, policies and recommendations as set forth in the City of Medina

Comprehensive Plan for the South Court Village.
Pedestrian access is important and sidewalks must be provided along streets. Walkways and bike

paths are also encouraged.
The site should be developed with a compact combination of land uses, to maximize the amount

of open space on the site.

Curb cuts, internal drives, parking areas and pedestrian walkways shall be arranged to promote
safe and efficient movement within the site, between adjacent sites, and between the site and the
adjacent thoroughfare system.

The interior circulation pattern and entrance onto S. Court Street should be designed fo minimize
impact on the 8. Court St. traffic flow. Fhere-shall be-one-primary fn addition to Mast Paikway,
one (1) additional access point onto S. Court Street for Subdistrict "B" Offies-and-Serviees “4”

is permitted, subject to the approval of ODOT.
There shall be ene-primary up fo three (3) access points onto High Point Drive for the-Subdistrict
"A" Nefghbﬂi—heedr&%a%e—l?ce%aﬂ and up to two (2) access points onto High Point Drive for

Subdistrict "C" . In Subdistrict “A”, access drives on High Point
g

Drive shall not exceed 80 ft. in width ot the curb for the westernmost drive and 75 ft. in width

at the carb for the middle and easternmost drives.
Large parking lots highly visible from the street are discouraged. Customer parking areas shall be
conveniently accessible to building entrances and well screened and landscaped from the sireet

and include islands and planting areas.




Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev. 11.9.2023

®) Service areas, refuse storage areas and other such areas shall be fully screened from view within
the commercial/office developments and from adjacent development, Development plans shall
indicate a separation of service traffic from customer traffic.

(9) Refuse storage areas shall be screened from public view by at least a six foot high solid fence/wall.

(10)  The scale of new development should be compatible with surrounding architecture in relation to

building materials and scale of buildings.
(11)  Once an architectural theme is initially established for the-Seuth-Ceurt Villagesite Subdistricis
47 mm’ “B”, later phases of buﬂdmgs consti ucted shou]d leﬂect the same archltectul al theme.

(12) o-be-slas :
H—GBI-H}GH‘ES— Facades wrﬂ: street frontage or w:ﬂ: pubbc entrarices slmll incorporate a mix of
exterior materials, varied rooflines, and design features. Design features include, but wre not
limited fo, windows, wall projections, awnings, use of brick or stone, material ov color accents,
and decorative lighting fixtures. Facades with sitreet frontage without design features ave not
perniitted. An example of a perniitted facade is found below in Figure 1:

Figure I

(13)  All on-site utilities shall be located underground unless required by the utility to be otherwise located,
This requirement shall not apply to existing above ground utifities adjacent to South Court Street,

(14) A front facade shall be architecturally emphasized, although all sides of a building should be
arch1tectura11y cons1stent thh the fmnt facade

(1615) Windows with multiple window panes are preferred;. Total shutter size should be equal to
window size ir Subdistrict “C”.




Proposed Amendments w/Current Text 2023
Rev. 11.9.2023

] AT TS SNT IS ﬂ* I X -zg % i -
. VI3, ' Bs Loellzs k
{ DNT SHELVID ¥ I HDNIANGD N?’TJ.INHWJO:L-.--:J A 55 §§ oy I
Ve gy T Rt 0. TYALTTINGD '.ﬂ E " g o ;:‘(g“ E Py
e FOVITA JHN02 HINOS s g 5 e

AFEEAFIE:
iPlgpg|ale .
ZININIEE R R E ]
HIEHE A
55:1% =
X )
oA M3

? :

bl

AP RIEG
KONGEDEXOS
_—

SR 3 8.H. 25 WOOSTER PIKE (VARIABLE WIDTH)

3
g
&)
i
5 -
2 o
&
/&
.09 AN
YIITN0T0
i
e
[ s
[ (9
-l

EXHIBIT 2




Ord. 200-23 NEW
Ekh. &
SPECIAL PLANNING DISTRICT NO. | Ng;—@/
HSPD_ 1 n

DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

CI  PURPOSE
The purpose of this District is to implement the South Court Village Concept Plan as outlined in the

Comprehensive Plan Update (1996) for the City of Medina. In the Comprehensive Plan the South Court
Village arca was identified as needing special zoning in order to protect the integrity of South Court
Street and residential neighborhoods while still providing an appropriate neighborhood scale of
commercial development to meet the needs of the residents in this area.

C2  STATUS OF USES
Uses within each of the SPD-1 Subdistricts as depicted on the South Court Village Conceptual

Development Plan (Exhibit "C-1") shall be governed by this section. The location of these uses shall be
based on the South Court Viliage Conceptual Development Plan, see Figure 1. Uses shall be defined in

Chapter 1105.

(A) SPD-1 Subdistrict "A". No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as

indicated below.

(D Principal Permitted Uses ,
(a) Comunercial Uses permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-3 General Commercial

District shall be principally permitted use in SPD-1 Subdistrict “A” with the exception of
the following uses, which shall be prohibited: major motor vehicle repair, mator vehicle
sales, crematorium, and sexually oriented business. Retail business square footage
requirements found in the C-3 General Commercial District shall not apply and building
. footprint size for all uses shall be regulated by §C.2(A)(3) of these Development

Guidelines. Numerical identification for uses in §1137.04 corresponding to specific
standards in §1153.04(a) shall apply.

(2) Lot and Yard Requirements

(a) None: However, spacing of proposed buildings will be reviewed during site plan review
basged on standards found in Chapter 1109 (Site Plan Review), Chapter 1114 (Special
Planning Districts) and Appendix C.

3) Building Requirements

(a) Building height shall not exceed 35 feet.

(b) The building footprint shall not exceed 78,000 square feet for one large "Grocery
Anchor” retail building. The rest of the buildings shall have building footprints no larger
than 40,000 square feet for multi-tenant buildings and 15,000 sq. ft. for single-tenant
buildings.

(c) The total square footage in Subdistrict "A" shall not exceed a floor area ratio (FAR) of

35,
(d) The impervious surface ratio in Subdistrict "A" shall not exceed .75 ISR.

®B) SPD-1 Subdistrict "B". No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as

indicated below.
(1) Principal Permitied Uses
(a) Comunercial Uses permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-1 Local Commercial
District shall be principally permitted use in SPD-1 Subdistrict “B” with the exception of

the following uses, which shall be prohibited: Bar or tavern, bed and breakfast inn,

1




2

€)

(©)
M

@)

&)

“

(5)
(6)
(M

C3
ey,

2

Ord. 200-23 NEW

hospital, restaurant, and motor vehicle filling station. Numerical identification for uses in
§1133.04 corresponding to specific standards in §1153.04(a) shall apply.

.ot and Yard Requirements

(a) None: However, spacing of proposed buildings will be reviewed during plan review
based on standards found in Chapter 1109 (Site Plan Review), Chapter 1114 (Special
Planning Districts) and Appendix C.

Building Requirements

(a) Building height shall not exceed 35 feet.

(b) Buildings shall be compact and small scale.

{c) Each building footprint shall not exceed 20,000 square feet.

{d) The total square footage in Subdistrict “B” shall not exceed a floor arca ratio (FAR) of

30.
(e) The impervious surface ratio in Subdistrict “B” shall not exceed .60 ISR.

SPD-1 Subdistrict “C”. No building, structure or land shall be used for any purpose except as

indicated below.

Principal Permitted Uses :

(a) Medium Density Residential: row houses, townhouses, duplexes, single family homes,
apartment building.

Accessory-Uses
(a) Accessory uses, buildings, and structures customarily incidental to any of the aforesaid

principal permitted uses on the same lot therewith. This would include decks, open
porches, patios or terraces which are permitted to extend up to 10 feet into the rear yard.
Lot Requirements
(a) Minimum lot width (feet) at building line per dweiling shall be 40 feet.
(b) Minimum lot width (feet) at building line per dwelling shall be 23 feet for attached

dwellings.
Yard Requirements
(i) Detached Dwellings
(a) Minimum front yard depth: twenty feet.
(b) Minimum rear yard depth: fifteen feet.
(c) Minimum side yard depth: five feet.
(i) Attached Dwellings
(a) Minimum front yard depth: twenty feet.
(b} Minimum rear yard depth: fifteen feet.
(c) Minimum side yard depth: zero feet between attached unifs.
Building Height
(a) Maximum building height shall be thirty-five feet.
Land Use Intensity
(a) The number of dwelling units per acre shall not exceed 8.
Each building consisting of two or more attached units shall be situated so that there exists:
(a) A minimum of ten (10) feet between the buildings where two side yards meet.
(b) A minimum of thirty (30) feet between the buildings where two rear yards meet.
(c) A minimum of twenty (20) feet between the buildings where two side yards of a building
of attached units meets a rear yard of aftached units.
LANDSCAPING STANDARDS
Each landscape plan shall address the functional aspects of landscaping such as drainage,
provisions for shade, energy conservation, sound absorption, dust abatement, reduction of glare
and screening.
A minimum seventy-five (75) foot landscaped buffer yard shall be required to buffer SPD-1 from
adjacent residentially zoned properties to the north and west and shall be required to buffer

2




&)

)

(%)
(6)

M
®)

®)

Ord. 200-23 NEW

Subdistricts "A” and “B” from Subdistrict “C”. The width of the buffer shall be measured from
the adjacent property line and may include the Mast Parkway right-of-way.

Landscaped materials in the buffer yard shall incorporate sight blocking plant material such as
evergreens or hedges at least six (6) feet in height, situated so as to provide an 6ffect1ve and
permanent visual buffer.

Large, unbroken parking areas shall be avoided. Traffic or directional islands in combination with
trees and plantings shall be used to divide large parking areas into smaller segments, (i.e.} 16 to
18 parking spaces between planting areas. The foregoing shall apply except for the Grocery
Anchor parking area where traffic or directional islands in combination with trees and planting
shall be used to divide large parking areas into smaller segments, (i.e.) 25 to 30 parking spaces
between planting area.

In locations where plants will be susceptible to injury by pedestrians or motor fraffic, they shall
be protected by appropriate curbs, parking blocks or other devices.

Where landscaping is used as screening it shall be opaque year round.

Landscape screening shall be of a height and density so that it provides the full desired effect
within three years growing time.

All plants are to be living, All unhealthy or dead plant material shall be replaced within one year,
or by the next planting period, whichever comes first.

The Owner of the property shall be responsible for the continued property maintenance of all
landscaping materials, and shall keep them in a proper, neat and orderfy appearance, free from
refuse and debris at all times,

Once the open space buffer area between the residential and commercial/office areas has been
approved and established as indicated on the Final Site Development Plan, it may not be used,
disturbed or altered for any other purpose.




C4
(1)
2)

C5
(1

@)
3)
4

)

(6)

9
®
®)

(10)
(11)

Ord. 200-23 NEW

SIGNAGE

Signage in SPD-1 Subdistrict “C” shall conform to §1147.12.

Signage in SPD-1 Subdistricts "A" and "B" shall conform to general and administrative
requirements found in Chapter 1147, and all signs in Subdistricts "A" and "B" shall conform to
the following requirements:

(a) Changeable copy signs shall be prohibited.

(b) That exterior wall signs shall conform to §1147.14(d). The “Grocery Anchor” retail

building as indicated C.2(A.)(3.)(b) of this document shall comply with wall sign area
requirements of §1147.14(d) and shall be permitted up to five (5) total wall 31gns

(c) That all internal streets shall be considered streets for the purposes of determining
frontage and eligibility for additional sign area, in accordance with §1147.14(d).

(d) That one sign be permitted at the primary entrance to the development on S, Court Street,
with a sign area not to exceed 60 square feet per side, a height not to exceed 8 feot, and a
setback from the right-of-way not less than 20 feet.

©) That one sign be permitted at the primary entrance to Subdistrict "A" on High Point
Drive, with a sign area not to exceed 60 square feet per side, a height not to exceed 8 feet,
and a setback from the right-of-way not less than 20 feet.

H That one sign be permitied near the intersection of S. Court Street and High Point Drive,
with a sign area not to exceed 150 square feet per side, a height not to exceed 20 feet, and
a setback from S. Court Street and High Point Drive rights-of-way not less than 20 feet.

(2 That no additional ground signs shall be permitted in Subdistrict "A".

GENERAIL DESIGN STANDARDS
Consistency with the goals, policies and recommendations as set forth in the City of Medina

Comprehensive Plan for the South Court Village.
Pedestrian access is important and sidewalks must be provided along streets. Walkways and bike

paths are also encouraged.
The site should be developed with a compact combination of land uses, to maximize the amount

of open space on the site.

Curb cuts, internal drives, parking areas and pedestrian walkways shall be arranged to promote
safe and efficient movement within the site, between adjacent sites, and between the site and the
adjacent thoroughfare system.

The interior circulation pattern and entrance onto S. Court Street should be designed to minimize
impact on the S. Court St. traffic flow. In addition to Mast Parkway, one (1) additional access
point onto S. Court Street for Subdistrict “A” is permitted, subject to the approval of ODOT.
There shall be up to three (3) access points onto High Point Drive for Subdistrict "A" and up to
two (2) access points onto High Point Drive for Subdistrict "C". In Subdistrict “A”, access drives
on High Point Drive shall not exceed 80 ft. in width at the curb for the westernmost drive and 75
ft. in width at the curb for the middle and easternmost drives.

Large parking lots highly visible from the street are discouraged. Customer parking areas shall be
conveniently accessible to building entrances and well screened and landscaped from the street
and include islands and planting areas.

Service areas, refuse storage areas and other such areas shall be fully screened from view within
the commercial/office developments and from adjacent development. Development plans shall
indicate a separation of service traffic from customer traffic.

Refuse storage areas shall be screened from public view by at least a six foot high solid fence/wail.

The scale of new development should be compatible with surrounding architecture in relation to

building materials and scale of buildings.
Once an architectural theme is initially established for Subdistricts “A” and “B”, later phases of

buildings constructed should reflect the same architectural theme.




(12)

(13)
(14
(15)

Ord. 200-23 NEW

Facades with street frontage or with public entrances shall incorporate a mix of exterior materials,
varied rooflines, and design features. Design features include, but are not limited to, windows,
wall projections, awnings, use of brick or stone, material or color accents, and decorative lighting '
fixtures. Facades with street frontage without design features are not permitted. An example of a
permitted facade is found below in Figure 1:

All on-site utilities shall be located underground unless required by the utility to be otherwise located.

This requirement shall not apply to existing above ground utilities adjacent to South Court Street.
A front facade shall be architecturally emphasized, although all sides of a building should be
architecturally consistent with the front facade.

Windows with multiple window panes are preferred. Total shutter size should be equal to window
size in Subdistrict “C”.




Ord. 200-23 NEW

o ) 1

[ T s j : 4] E Y
; TG PO % INEHDMNINNDAD EARIN < Iy
TINIT SEEL VA ¥ ENEHDMNINNGD NVIL INTHO ... ol et Eg B
I PIRIOINE | gy A I TVALIAINGD ggiar BRI vy
e ) FOVTHA LAN02 REOS T e IR R
q14 g g9
Ejg|8[a2
< s o= &
8 HAHH :
#@ H ol
E H /a q|E k
AN
/]

D9
BODYOIX0T
phabivivny

SR 358,25 HOOSTER PIKE (RARIARLE WIDTH)

3
=
o]
e
S
s
s
b
2 IATT
FILLID0TD
h 2
. [0
-
AN 3
T
syl

EXHIBIT 2




RCA 23-232-11/27

ORDINANCE NO. 201-23

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 31.02 (12) AND 31.05
OF THE SALARIES AND BENEFITS CODE OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO RELATIVE TO THE LAW
DEPARTMENT SECRETERY, AND DECLARING AN

EMERGENCY,

WHEREAS: Section 31.02 (12) of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of Medina, Ohio
presently reads as follows pertaining to the Law Department:

(12) LAW DEPARTMENT
Hourly Rate
2 Clerical Help Pay Grade 5A

(Ord. 2-04, 7-19)

WHEREAS: Section 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of Medina, Ohio
presently reads in part as follows pertaining to the Law Department:

LAW DEPARTMENT
Number Classification Steps Authorized
1 Law Director/Chief Prosecutor (full time) Pay Grade 108
(annual salary paid bi-weekly)
1 Assistant Prosecutor (full time) Pay Grade 107
(annual salary paid bi-weekly)
1 Law Director/Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 105

Mayor, confirmed by Council
Asst. Law Director/Asst. Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 106

1

2 Assistant Prosecutor (part-time®*) Pay Grade 102

1 Assistant Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 101

1 Law Department Secretary (unclassified) 9 A-F

2 Clerk (part-time) Sec. 31.02(B)(11)

Ord. 5-03, 2-04, 22-04, 7-06, 17-08, 41-10, 134-11, 7-19

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

SEC. 1: That Section 31.02 (12) of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of Medina,
Ohio shall be amended to read as follows pertaining to the Law Department:

(12) LAW DEPARTMENT
: Hourly Rate
21 Clerical Help Pay Grade 5A
(Ord. 2-04, 7-19, 201-23)

Ord. 201-23




That Section 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of Medina, Ohio

SEC. 2:
shall be amended to read in part as follows pertaining to the Law Department:
LAW DEPARTMENT
Number Classification Steps Authorized
| Law Director/Chief Prosecutor (full time) Pay Grade 108
(annual salary paid bi-weekly)
1 Assistant Prosecutor (full time) Pay Grade 107
(annual salary paid bi-weekly)
1 Law Director/Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 105
Mayor, confirmed by Council
1 Asst. Law Director/Asst. Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 106
2 Assistant Prosecutor (part-time*) Pay Grade 102
1 Assistant Prosecutor (part-time) Pay Grade 101
12 Law Department Secretary (unclassified) 9 A-F
21 Clerk (part-time) Sec. 31.02(B)(11)

Ord. 5-03, 2-04, 22-04, 7-06, 17-08, 41-10, 134-11, 7-19, 201-23

SEC, 3

SEC. 4.

PASSED:

ATTEST:

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Coungil, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason to be effective on January 1, 2024; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full
force and effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:
Clerk of Council :

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 201-23




SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 23-235-11/27

RESOLUTION NO, 202-23

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
APPLY FOR THE 2024 STATE CAPITAL GRANT FOR
FUNDING TO CONSTRUCT A MULTI-USE PATH
KNOWN AS PHASE 1 OF THE UPTOWN LOOP, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. '

BEIT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is heréby authorized and direcied to file an application for grant
assistance from the State Capital Project Fund in the amount of $480,000.00 for
funding to construct a Multi-Use Path, known as Phase 1 of the Uptown Loop in the

City of Medina, Ohio.

That if the Grant is awarded to the City, the Mayor is authorized to accept the grant
and complete all documentation necessary for the implementation and administration

of the grant.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committecs that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

That this Resolution shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason the application is due on December 18, 2023; wherefore, this Resolution shall
be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED:

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Res. 202-23




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

RCA 23-212-10/23

ORDINANCE NO. 203-23

AN ORDINANCE
ADOPTING NEW CHAPTER 162 OF THE CODIFIED
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO
REGARDING MUNICIPAL. INCOME TAX, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

The Home Rule Amendment of the Ohio Constitution, Article XVIII, Section 3,
provides that "Municipalities shall have authority to exercise all powets of local
self-government," and the municipal taxing power is one of such powers of local
self-government delegated by the people of the State to the people of

municipalities; and

Article XIII, Section 6 of the Ohio Constitution provides that the General
Assembly may restrict a municipality’s power of taxation to the extent necessary
to prevent abuse of such power, and Article XVIII, Section 13 of the Ohio
Constitution states that "laws may be passed to limit the powers of municipalities
to levy taxes and incur debts for local purposes;” and

The General Assembly has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to
comprehensively review and amend Chapter 718 of the Ohio Revised Code,
setting forth statutory requirements for municipal income tax codes in Ohio; and

More specifically, the General Assembly enacted H.B. 33 in July 2023, and
mandated that municipal income tax codes be amended such that any income or
withholding tax is "levied in accordance with the provisions and limitations

specified in Chapter 718;" and

Upon a detailed review of ILB. 33 and the Codified Ordinances of the City of
Medina, this Council deems it necessary to enact this Ordinance and new
Codified Ordinance Chapter 162, to include the amendments required, and that
the same is in accordance with the provisions and limitations specified in Chapter

718 of the Ohio Revised Code,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That new Chapter 162 of the Codified Ordinances be enacted to read as set forth
in the document entifled "Chapter 162 Income Tax" attached hereto as Exhibit A

and incorporated herein by reference.

That this Ordinance and Chapter 162 shall take effect and be in force from and
after January 1, 2024, for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2024,

Ord. 203-23




SEC. 3:

SEC. 4

PASSED:

ATTEST:

Notwithstanding, Codified Ordinance “Chapter 161, Earned Income Tax” shall
remain in full force and effect through the end of tax years beginning on or before
December 31, 2017.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees
that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in
compliance with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason for this Ordinance to go into effect January 1, 2024; wherefore, this
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and
signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVED: _

Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 203-23




City of Medina

Ord. 203-23, Exh. A

162.01

162.02
162.03
162.04

162.05

162.06

162.07

EXHIBIT A
CHAPTER 162

Earned Income Tax
Effective January 1, 2024

For taxable years beginning with taxable year 2024

AUTHORITY TO LEVY TAX; PURPOSES OF TAX; RATE

162.011 HOME RULE POWERS
162.012 AUTHORITY TO LEVY TAX
162.013 PURPOSES OF TAX; RATE
162.014 STATEMENT OF PROCEDURAL HISTORY; STATE
MANDATED CHANGES TO MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX
EFFECTIVE DATE
DEFINITIONS
INCOME SUBJECT TO TAX FOR INDIVIDUALS
162,041 DETERMINING MUNICIPAL TAXABLE INCOME FOR
INDIVIDUALS
162.042 DOMICILE
162.043 EXEMPTION FOR MEMBER OR EMPLOYEE OF GENERAL
ASSEMBLY AND CERTAIN JUDGES
COLLECTION AT SOURCE
162.051 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; WITHHOLDING FROM WAGES
162.052 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; OCCASIONAL ENTRANT
162.053 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; CASINO AND VLT
INCOME SUBJECT TO NET PROFIT TAX
162.061 DETERMINING MUNICIPAL TAXABLE INCOME FOR
TAXPAYERS WHO ARE NOT INDIVIDUALS
162.062 NET PROFIT; INCOME SUBJECT TO NET PROFIT TAX;
ALTERNATIVE APPORTIONMENT
162.063 CONSOLIDATED FEDERAL INCOME TAX RETURN
162.064 TAX CREDIT FOR BUSINESSES THAT FOSTER NEW JOBS
IN'OHIO
162.065 TAX CREDITS TO FOSTER JOB RETENTION

DECLARATION OF ESTIMATED TAX




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

162.08

162.09

162.10
162.11
162.12
162.13

162.14
162.15
162.16
162.17
162.18
162.19
162.20

CREDIT FOR TAX PAID
162.081 CREDIT FOR TAX PAID TO ANOTHER MUNICIPALITY
162.082 REFUNDABLE CREDIT FOR QUALIFYING LOSS
162.083 CREDIT FOR PERSON WORKING IN JOINT ECONOMIC
DEVELOPWMENT DISTRICT
162.084 CREDIT FOR TAX BEYOND STATUTE FOR OBTAINING
REFUND
ANNUAL RETURN
162.091 RETURN AND PAYMENT OF TAX
162.082 RETURN AND PAYMENT OF TAX; INDIVIDUALS SERVING IN
COMBAT ZONE
162.093 USE OF OHIO BUSINESS GATEWAY,; TYPES OF FILINGS
AUTHORIZED
162.094 EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
162.085 AMENDED RETURNS
162.096 REFUNDS
PENALTY, INTEREST, FEES AND CHARGES
AUDIT
ROUNDING
AUTHORITY AND POWERS OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR
162.131 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; ADMINISTRATIVE
POWERS OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR
162.132 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; COMPROMISE OF
CLAIM AND PAYMENT OVER TIME
162.133 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; RIGHT TO EXAMINE
162.134 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; REQUIRING

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

CONFIDENTIALITY

FRAUD

OPINION OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR

ASSESSNENT; APPEAL BASED ON PRESUMPTION OF DELIVERY

LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW; APPEAL TO LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW
ACTIONS TO RECOVER; STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

ADOPTION OF RULES




City of Medina

Ord.,, Exh. A
162.97 COLLECTION OF TAX AFTER TERMINATION OF CHAPTER
162.98 SAVINGS CLAUSE

162.99 VIOLATIONS - PENALTY




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

162.011 HOME RULE POWERS.

The passage of this Ordinance does not waive any rights of the Municipality,
including but not limited to, the Municipality reserving the right under its home rule
powers to challenge Ohio House Bill 49, including the amendments to Chapter 718 of the

Revised Code.

162.012 AUTHORITY TO LEVY TAX,
(A) The tax on income and the withholding tax established by this Chapter 162 are

authorized by Article XVIII, section 3 of the Ohio Constitution. The tax on income and the
withholding tax established by this Chapter 162 are deemed to be levied in accordance with,
and to be consistent with, the provisions and limitations of Ohio Revised Code 718 (ORC 718).
This Chapter is deemed to incorporate the provisions of ORC 718.

(B) The tax is an annual tax levied on the income of every person residing in or earning or
receiving income in the municipal corporation, and shall be measured by municipal taxable
income. The Municipality shall tax income at a uniform rate. The tax is levied on Municipal

Taxable Income, as defined herein.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.013 PURPOSES OF TAX; RATE.

(A) To provide funds for the purposes of general municipal operations, maintenance of
equipment, new equipment, extension and enlargement of municipal services and facilities, and
capital improvements of the City there is hereby levied a tax on income, qualifying wages, and
commissions, as defined in this Chapter, and on all other taxable income, as hereinafter -
provided, with a quarter percent (0.25%) of total income tax collections, net of collection costs,
restricted for street, storm water, and utility construction, maintenance, repair and
improvements.

(B) For the purposes set forth above, on or after January 1, 2016, an annual tax of one and
a quarter percent (1.25%) per annum shall be imposed upon income, qualifying wages, and
commissions, as defined in this Chapter, and on all other taxable income, as hereinafter
provided.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.014 STATEMENT OF PROCEDURAL HISTORY; STATE MANDATED CHANGES
TO MUNICIPAL. INCOME TAX

(A) Significant and wide-ranging amendments to ORC 718 were enacted by Am Suk HB 5,
passed by the 130th General Assembly, and signed by Governor Kasich on December 19,
2014, and H.B. 5 required municipal corporations to conform to and adopt the provisions of
ORC 718.in order to have the authority to impose, enforce, administer and collect a municipat
income fax.

(B) As mandated by H.B. 5, municipal income tax Ordinance 155-15, effective January 1,
2016, adopts new Chapter 162 in accordance with the provisions of ORC 718 to allow the
Municipality to continue the income tax and withholding tax administration and collection efforts

on behalf of the Municipality.
(Ord. 155-15. Passed 12-14-15.)




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(C) Significant and wide-ranging amendments to ORC 718 were enacted by Am Sub H.B.
49, passed by the 132™ General Assembly, signed by Governor Kasich on June 30, 2017, and
H.B. 49 required municipal corporations to conform to adopt the provisions of ORC 718 in order
to have the authority to impose, enforce, administer and collect a municipal income tax.

(D) As mandated by H.B. 49, municipal income tax Ordinance 90-18, effective January 1,
2018, adopts new Chapter 162 in accordance with the provisions of ORC 718 to allow the
Municipality to continue the income tax and withholding tax administration and collection efforts

on behalf of the Municipality.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
(E) As mandated by H.B. 33, municipal income tax Ordinance __ -23 effective January 1,

2024. adopts new Chapter 162 in_accordance with the provisions of ORC 718 to_allow the
Municipality to continue the income tax_and withholding tax administration and collection efforts

on behalf of the Municipality.
(Ord, -23., Passed ).

162.02 EFFECTIVE DATE.

(A) Ordinance-90-48__-23, effective January 1, 20482024, and corresponding changes to
ORC 718, apply to municipal taxable years beginning on or after January 1,-20482024. All
provisions of this Chapter 162 apply to taxable years beginning 20182024 and succeeding

taxable years.

(B) Ordinance 90-48-__-23 does not repeal the existing sections of Chapter 481162 for any
taxable year prior t0o—20482024, but rather adopts new Chapter 162 effective January 1,
20482024. For municipal taxable years beginning before January 1, 20482024, the Municipality
shall continue to administer, audit, and enforce the income tax of the Municipality under ORC
718 and ordinances and resolutions of the Municipality as that chapter and those ordinances
and resolutions existed before January 1,—20482024. (Ord. 99-48_ -23. Passed—5-29-48

)

162.03 DEFINITIONS.
Any term used in this Chapter that is not otherwise defined in this Chapter has the same

meaning as when used in a comparable context in laws of the United States relating to
federal income taxation or in Title LVl of the Ohio Revised Code, unless a different meaning
is clearly required. If a term used in this Chapter that is not otherwise defined in this Chapter
is used in a comparable context in both the laws of the United States relating to federal
income tax and in Title LVII of the Chio Revised Code and the use is not consistent, then
the use of the term in the laws of the United States relating to federal income tax shall
control over the use of the term in Title LVI| of the Ohio Revised Code.

Far purposes of this section, the singular shall include the plural, and the masculine shall
include the feminine and the gender-neutral.

As used in this Chapter:
(1) "ADJUSTED FEDERAL TAXABLE INCOME," for a person required to fleas a C

corporation, or for a person that has elected to be taxed as a C corporation under division
(23)(E) of this section, means a C corporation's federal taxable income before net operating




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

losses and special deductions as determined under the Internal Revenue Code, adjusted as
faollows:

(A) Deduct intangible income to the extent included in federal taxable income. The
deduction shall be allowed regardiess of whether the intangible income relates to assets
used in a trade or business or assets held for the production of income,

(B) Add an amount equal to five percent (5%) of intangible income deducted under
division (1)(A) of this section, but excluding that portion of intangible income directly related
to the sale, exchange, or other disposition of property described in section 1221 of the

Internal Revenue Code;
(C) Add any losses allowed as a deduction in the computation of federal taxable

income if the losses directly relate to the sale, exchange, or other disposition of an asset
described in section 1221 or 1231 of the Internal Revenue Code,

(D) (i) Except as provided in division (1){(D)(ii} of this section, deduct income and gain
included in federal taxable income to the extent the income and gain directly relate to the
sale, exchange, or other disposition of an asset described in section 1221 or 1231 of the
Internal Revenue Code;

(ii) Division (1)(D)(i) of this section does not apply to the extent the income or gain is
income or gain described in section 1245 or 1250 of the Internal Revenue Code.

{(E) Add taxes on or measured by net income allowed as a deduction in the
computation of federal taxable income; '

(F) In the case of a real estate investment trust or regulated investment company, add
all amounts with respect to dividends to, distributions to, or amounts set aside for or credited
to the benefit of investors and allowed as a deduction in the computation of federal taxable
income;

(G) Deduct, to the extent not otherwise deducted or excluded in computing federal
taxable income, any income derived from a ftransfer agreement or from the enterprise
transferred under that agreement under section 4313.02 of the Ohio Revised Code;

(H)

B Deduct exempt income to the extent not otherwise deducted or excluded in

‘computing adjusted federal taxable income.

(1) Deduct any net profit of a pass-through entity owned directly or indirectly by the
taxpayer and included in the taxpayer's federal taxable income unless an affiliated group of
corporations includes that net profit in the group's federal taxable income in accordance with

division (E)(3){b) of section 162.063 of this Chapter.
(J) Add any loss incurred by a pass-through entity owned directly or indirectly by the

taxpayer and included in the taxpayer's federal taxable income unless an affiliated group of
corporations includes that loss in the group's federal taxable income in accordance with division
(EX3)(b) of section 162.063 of this Chapter. If the taxpayer is not a C corporation, is not a
disregarded entity that has made the election described in division (47)(B} of this section, is not
a publicly traded partnership that has made the election described in division (23)(E) of this
section, and is not an individual, the taxpayer shall compute adjusted federal taxable income
under this section as if the taxpayer were a C corporation, except guaranteed payments and
other similar amounts paid or accrued to a partner, former partner, shareholder, former
shareholder, member, or former member shall not be allowed as a deductible expense unless
such payments are in consideration for the use of capital and treated as payment of interest




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

under section 469 of the Internal Revenue Code or United States treasury regulations. Amounts
paid or accrued to a qualified self-employed retirement plan with respect to a partner, former
partner, shareholder, former shareholder, member, or former member of the taxpayer, amounts
paid or accrued to or for health insurance for a partner, former partner, shareholder, former
shareholder, member, or former member, and amounts paid or accrued to or for life insurance
for a partner, former partner, shareholder, former shareholder, member, or former member shall
not be allowed as a deduction. Nothing in division (1) of this section shall be construed as
allowing the taxpayer to add or deduct any amount more than once or shall be construed as
allowing any taxpayer to deduct any amount paid to or accrued for purposes of federal self-

employment tax.

(2) (A) "ASSESSMENT" means any of the following:
() A written finding by the Tax Administrator that a person has underpaid municipal

income tax, or owes penalty and interest, or any combination of tax, penaity, or interest, to the

municipal corporation;
(i) A full or partial denial of a refund request issued under section 162.096 (B)(2) of this

Chapter;
(i) A Tax Administrator's denial of a taxpayer's request for use of an alternative
apportionment method, issued under section 162.062(B)(2) of this Chapter; or

(iv) A Tax Administrator's requirement for a taxpayer to use an alternative apportionment
method, issued under section 162.062(B)(3) of this Chapter;

(v) For purposes of division (2)(A)(i), (i), (ii) and (iv) of this section, an assessment shall
commence the person's time limitation for making an appeal to the Local Board of Tax Review
pursuant to section 162.18 of this Chapter, and shall have "ASSESSMENT" written in all capital
letters at the top of such finding.

(B) "ASSESSMENT" does not include notice(s) denying a request for refund issued under
section 162.096 (B)(3) of this Chapter, a billing statement notifying a taxpayer of current or past-
due balances owed to the municipal corporation, a Tax Administrator's request for additional
information, a notification to the taxpayer of mathematical errors, or a Tax Administrator's other
written correspondence to a person or taxpayer that does not meet the criteria prescribed by
division (2)(A) of this section.

(3) "AUDIT" means the examination of a person or the inspection of the books, records,
memoranda, or accounts of a person, ordered to appear before the Tax Administrator, for the
purpose of determining liability for a municipal income tax.

(4) "BOARD OF REVIFW" has same meaning as "Local Board of Tax Review."

(5) "“CALENDAR QUARTER" means the three-month period ending on the last day of

March, June, September, or December.
(6) "CASINO OPERATOR" and "CASINO FACILITY" have the same meanings as in

section 3772.01 of the Ohio Revised Code.
{7 "CERTIFIED MAIL,"” "EXPRESS MAIL," "UNITED STATES MAIL," "POSTAL

SERVICE,"” and similar terms include any delivery service authorized pursuant to section

5703.056 of the Ohio Revised Code.
(8) "COMPENSATION" means any form of remuneration paid to an employee for personal

services.
(9) "DISREGARDED ENTITY" means a single member limited liability company, a qualifying




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

subchapter S subsidiary, or another entity if the company, subsidiary, or entity is a disregarded
entity for federal income tax purposes.

(10) "DOMICILE" means the true, fixed and permanent home of the taxpayer to which,
whenever absent, the taxpayer intends to return.

(11) "EXEMPT INCOME" means all of the following:
(A} The military pay or allowances of members of the armed forces of the United States or

members of their reserve components, including the national guard of any state;

(B) (i) Except as provided in division (11)(B)(i}} of this section, intangible income;

(i) A municipal corporation that taxed any type of intangible income on March 28, 1988,
pursuant to section 3 of S.B. 238 of the 116th general assembly, may continue to tax that type
of income if a majority of the electors of the municipal corporation voting on the question of
whether to permit the taxation of that type of intangible income after 1988 voted in favor thereof
at an election held on November 8, 1988.

(C) Social security benefits, railroad retirement benefits, unemployment compensation,
pensions, retirement benefit payments, payments from annuities, and similar payments made to
an employee or to the beneficiary of an employee under a retirement program or plan, disability
payments received from private industry or local, state, or federal governments or from
charitable, religious or educational organizations, and the proceeds of sickness, accident, or
liability insurance policies. As used in division (11)(C) of this section, "unemployment
compensation" does not include supplemental unemployment compensation described in
section 3402(0){(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(D) The income of religious, fraternal, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational
institutions to the extent such income is derived from tax-exempt real estate, tax-exempt
tangible or intangible property, or tax-exempt activities.

(E) Compensation paid under section 3501.28 or 3501.36 of the Ohio Revised Code to a
person serving as a precinct election official to the extent that such compensation does not
exceed one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for the taxable year. Such compensation in excess of
one thousand dollars ($1000.00) for the taxable year may be subject to taxation by a municipal
corporation. A municipal corporation shall not require the payer of such compensation to
withhold any tax from that compensation.

(R Dues, confributions, and similar payments received by charitable, reiigious,
educational, or literary organizations or labor unions, lodges, and similar organizations;

(G) Alimony and child support received,

(H) Awards for personal injuries or for damages to property from insurance proceeds or
otherwise, excluding compensation paid for lost salaries or wages or awards for punitive
damages;

() Income of a public utility when that public utility is subject to the tax levied under section
5727.24 or 5727.30 of the Ohio Revised Code. Division (11)(l) of this section does not apply for
purposes of Chapter 5745. of the Ohio Revised Code;

(J) Gains from involuntary conversions, interest on federal obligations, items of income
subject to a tax levied by the state and that a municipal corporation is specifically prohibited by
law from taxing, and income of a decedent's estate during the period of administration except
such income from the operation of a trade or business;

(K) Compensation or allowances excluded from federal gross income under section 107 of

the Internal Revenue Code;
(L) Employee compensation that is not qualifying wages as defined in division (34) of this




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

section;
(M) Compensation paid to a person employed within the boundaries of a United States air

force base under the jurisdiction of the United States air force that is used for the housing of
members of the United States air force and is a center for air force operations, unless the
person is subject to taxation because of residence or domicile. If the compensation is subject to
taxation because of residence or domicile, tax on such income shall be payable only to the
municipal corporation of residence or domicile;

(N) An S corporation shareholder's distributive share of net profits of the § corporation,
other than any pait of the distributive share of net profits that represents wages as defined in
section 3121(a) of the Internal Revenue Code or net earnings from self~employment as defined
in section 1402(a) of the Internal Revenue Code;

(O) All of the municipal taxable income earned by individuals under eighteen (18) years of

age.
(P) (i) Except as provided in divisions (11)(P)(if), (iii), and (iv) of this section, qualifying
wages described in division (B)(1} or (E) of section 162.052 of this Chapter to the extent the
gualifying wages are not subject to withholding for the Municipality under either of those
divisions.

(i) The exemption provided in division (11}(P)(i) of this section does not apply with
respect to the municipal corporation in which the employee resided at the time the employee
earned the qualifying wages.

(iiy The exemption provided in division (11)(P)(i) of this section does not apply to
qualifying wages that an employer elects to withhold under division (D){2) of section 162.052 of
this Chapter.

(iv)  The exemption provided in division (11)(P)(i) of this section does not apply to
qualifying wages if both of the following conditions apply:

(@) For qualifying wages described in division (B)(1) of section 162.052 of this Chapter,
the employee's employer withholds and remits tax on the qualifying wages to the municipal
corporation in which the employee's principal place of work is situated, or, for qualifying wages
described in division {E) of section 162.052 of this Chapter, the employee's employer withholds
and remits tax on the qualifying wages to the municipal corporation in which the employer's
fixed location is located;

(b) The employee receives a refund of the tax described in division (11)(F)(iv}{(a} of this
section on the basis of the employee not performing services in that municipal corporation.

(Q) (i) Exceptas provided in division (11){Q)(ii) or (iii) of this section, compensation that
is not qualifying wages paid to a nonresident individual for personal services performed in the
Municipality on not more than twenty (20) days in a taxable year.

(i) The exemption provided in division (11)(Q)(i) of this section does not apply under
either of the following circumstances:

(a) The individual's base of operation is located in the Municipality.

(b) The individual is a professional athlete, professional entertainer, or public figure,
and the compensation is paid for the performance of services in the individual's capacity as a
professional athlete, professional entertainer, or public figure. For purposes of division
(11)(Q)(ii)(b) of this section, "professional athlete," "professional entertainer,” and "public figure”
have the same meanings as in section 162.052 of this Chapter.

(il Compensation to which division (11)(Q) of this section applies shall be treated as
earned or received at the individual's base of operation. If the individual does not have a base of




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

operation, the compensation shall be treated as earned or received where the individual is
domiciled.

(ivy  For purposes of division (11}{(Q) of this section, "base of operation” means the
location where an individual owns or rents an office, storefront, or similar facility to which the
individual regularly reports and at which the individual regularly performs personal services for
compensation. '

(R) Compensation paid to a person for personal services performed for a political
subdivision on property owned by the political subdivision, regardless of whether the
compensation is received by an employee of the subdivision or another person performing
services for the subdivision under a contract with the subdivision, if the property on which
services are performed is annexed to a municipal corporation pursuant to section 708.023 of the
Ohio Revised Code on or after March 27, 2013, unless the person is subject to such taxation
because of residence. If the compensation is subject to taxation because of residence,
municipal income tax shall be payable only to the municipal corporation of residence.,

(S) Income the taxation of which is prohibited by the constitution or laws of the United
States. Any item of income that is exempt income of a pass-through entity under division (11} of
this section is exempt income of each owner of the pass-through entity to the extent of that
owner's distributive or proportionate share of that item of the entity's income.

(12) "FORM 2106" means internal revenue service form 2106 filed by a taxpayer pursuant to
the Internal Revenue Code.

(13) “GENERIC FORM" means an electronic or paper form that is not prescribed by a
particular municipal corporation and that is designed for reporting taxes withheld by an
employer, agent of an employer, or other payer, estimated municipal income taxes, or annual
municipal income tax liability, including a request for refund.

(14 "INCOME" means the following:
(A) () For residents, all income, salaries, qualifying wages, commissions, and other

compensation from whatever source earned or received by the resident, including the resident's
distributive share of the net profit of pass-through entities owned directly or indirectly by the
resident and any net profit of the resident, except as provided in division (23)(E) of this section.

(i) Forthe purposes of division (14){A)(i) of this section:

(a) Any net operating loss of the resident incurred in the taxable year and the resident's
distributive share of any net operating loss generated in the same taxable year and attributable
to the resident's ownership inferest in a pass-through entity shall be allowed as a deduction, for
that taxable year and the following five taxable years, against any other net profit of the resident
or the resident's distributive share of any net profit atfributable to the resident's ownership
interest in a pass-through entity until fully utilized, subject to division (14){(A)(iv) of this section;

(b) The resident's distributive share of the net profit of each pass-through entity owned
directly or indirectly by the resident shall be calculated without regard to any net operating loss
that.is carried forward by that entity from a prior taxable year and applied fo reduce the entity's
net profit far the current taxable year,

(i) Division (14)(A)(ii) of this section does not apply with respect to any net profit or net
operating foss attributable to an ownership interest in an S corporation unless shareholders’
distributive shares of net profits from S corporations are subject to tax in the municipal
corporation as provided in division 11(N} or division 14(E) of this section.

(iv) Any amount of a net operating loss used to reduce a taxpayer's net profit for a
taxable year shall reduce the amount of net operating foss that may be carried forward to any

10




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

subsequent year for use by that taxpayer. In no event shall the cumulative deductions for all
taxable years with respect to a taxpayer's net operating loss exceed the original amount of that
net operating less available to that taxpayer.

(B) In the case of nonresidents, all income, salaries, quailifying wages, commissions, and
other compensation from whatever source earned or received by the nonresident for work done,
services performed or rendered, or activities conducted in the Municipality, including any net
profit of the nonresident, but excluding the nonresident's distributive share of the net profit or
loss of only pass-through entities owned directly or indirectly by the nonresident.

(C} Fortaxpayers that are not individuals, net profit of the taxpayer.

(D) Loftery, sweepstakes, gambling and sports winnings, winnings from games of chance,
and prizes and awards. If the taxpayer is a professional gambler for federal income tax
purposes, the taxpayer may deduct related wagering losses and expenses to the exient
authorized under the Internal Revenue Code and claimed against such winnings. Credit for tax
withheld or paid to another municipal corporation on such winnings paid to the municipal
corporation where winnings occur is limited to the credit as specified in section 162.081 of this
Chapter.

(E) INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.
(15) "INTANGIBLE INCOME" means income of any of the following types: income yield,

interest, capital gains, dividends, or other income arising from the ownership, sale, exchange, or
other disposition of intangible property including, but not limited to, investments, deposits,
money, or credits as those terms are defined in Chapter 5701 of the Ohio Revised Code, and
patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, investments in real estate investment trusts,
investments in regulated investment companies, and appreciation on deferred compensation.
"Intangible income” does not include prizes, awards, or other income associated with any lottery
winnings, gambling winnings, or other similar games of chance.

(16) "INTERNAL REVENUE CODE" means the "Internal Revenue Code of 1986," 100 Sta.
2085, 26 U.S.C.A. 1, as amended.

(17) "LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY" means a limited liability company formed under
Chapter 1705 of the Ohio Revised Code or under the laws of another state.

(18) "LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW" and "BOARD OF TAX REVIEW" means the
enfity created under section 162.18 of this Chapter.

(19) "MUNICIPAL CORPORATION" means, in general terms, a status conferred upon a
local government unit, by state law giving the unit certain autonomous operating authority such
as the power of faxation, power of eminent domain, police power and regulatory power, and
includes a joint economic development district or joint economic development zone that levies
an income tax under section 715.681, 715.70, 715.71, or 715.74 of the Ohio Revised Code.

(20) (A) "MUNICIPAL TAXABLE INCOME" means the following:

(i) For a person other than an individual, income, apportioned or sitused to the
Municipality under section 162.062 of this Chapter, and further reduced by any pre-2017 net
operating loss carryforward available to the person for the Municipality.

(i) (& For an individual who is a resident of a Municipality other than a qualified
municipal corporation, income reduced by exempt income to the extent otherwise included in
income, then reduced as provided in division (20)(B) of this section, and further reduced by any
pre-2017 net operating loss carryforward available to the individual for the Municipality.

(i)  For an individual who is a nonresident of the Municipality, income reduced by
exempt income to the extent otherwise included in income and then, as applicable, apportioned

11




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

or sitused to the Municipality under section 162,062 of this Chapter, then reduced as provided in
division (20)}B) of this section, and further reduced by any pre-2017 net operating loss
carryforward available fo the individual for the Municipality.

(BY In computing the municipal taxable income of a taxpayer who is an individual, the
taxpayer may subtract, as provided in division (20)(A)(if){a) or (iii} of this section, the amount of
the individual's employee business expenses reported on the individual's form 2106 that the
individual deducted for federal income tax purposes for the faxable year, subject fo the limitation
imposed by section 67 of the Internal Revenue Code. For the municipal corporation in which the
taxpayer is a resident, the taxpayer may deduct all such expenses allowed for federal income
tax purposes. For a municipal corporation in which the taxpayer is not a resident, the taxpayer
may deduct such expenses only to the extent the expenses are related to the taxpayer's
performance of personal services in that nonresident municipal corporation and are not related
to exempt income.

(21) "MUNICIPALITY" or "CITY" means the City of Medina.

(22) "NET OPERATING LOSS" means a loss incurred by a person in the operation of a
trade or business. "Net operating loss”" does not include unutilized losses resulting from basis
limitations, at-risk limitations, or passive activity loss limitations.

(23) (A} "NET PROFIT" for a person who is an individual means the individual's net
profit reguired to be reported on schedule C, schedule E, or schedule F reduced by any net
operating loss carried forward. For the purposes of this division, the net operating loss carried
forward shall be calculated and deducted in the same manner as provided in division (1)(H) of
this section.

(B) "Net profit" for a person other than an individual means adjusted federal taxable
income reduced by any net operating loss incurred by the person in a taxable year beginning on
or after January 1, 2017, subject to the limitations of division (23)(C) of this section.

(C) (i) The amount of such operating loss shall be deducted from net profit to the extent
necessary to reduce municipal taxable income to zero, with any remaining unused portion of the
net operating ioss carried forward to not more than five (5) consecutive taxable years following
the taxable year in which the loss was incurred, but in no case for more years than necessary

for the deduction to be fully utilized.
(i) No person shall use the deduction allowed by division (23}(C) of this section to

offset qualifying wages.

(iiy(a) For taxable years beginning in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, or 2022, a person may
not deduct more than fifty percent (50%) of the amount of the deduction otherwise aliowed by
division (23)(C) of this section.

(b) For taxable years beginning in 2023 or thereafter, a person may deduct the full
amount allowed by (23)(C) of this section without regard to the limitation of division
(23)(C)(iii)(a).
(iv) Any pre-2017 net operating loss carryforward deduction that is available may be
utilized before a taxpayer may deduct any amount pursuant to (23)(C) of this section.

(v) Nothing in division (23)(C)(iii}(a) of this section precludes a person from carrying
forward, for use with respect to any return filed for a taxable year beginning after 2018, any
amount of net operating loss that was not fully utilized by operation of division (23)(C)(iii)(a) of
this section. To the extent that an amount of net operating loss that was not fully utilized in one
or more taxable years is carried forward for use with respect to a return filed for taxable year
beginning in 2019, 2020, 2021, or 2022, the limitation described in division (23)(C)(iii)(a) of this

12




City of Medina
Ord., Exh, A

section shall apply to the amount carried forward.
(D) For the purposes of this Chapter, and notwithstanding division (23)(B) of this secfion,

net profit of a disregarded entity shall net be taxable as against that disregarded entity, but shall
instead be included in the net profit of the owner of the disregarded entity.

(E) A publicly traded partnership that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes and that is subject to tax on its net profits by Municipality, may elect o be treated as a
C corporation for municipal income tax purposes, and shall not be treated as the net profit or
income of any owner of the partnership. The election shall be made on the annual return for the
Municipality. The Municipality will treat the publicly traded partnership as a C corporation if the
election is so made.

(24) "NONRESIDENT" means an individual that is not a resident of the Municipality.

(25) "OHIC BUSINESS GATEWAY" means the online computer network system, created
under section 125.30 of the Ohio Revised Code, that allows persons to electronically file
business reply forms with state agencies and includes any successor electronic filing and
payment system.

(26) "OTHER PAYER" means any person, other than an individual's employer or the
employer's agent, that pays an individual any amount included in the federal gross income of
the individual. "Other payer" includes casino operators and video [ottery terminal sales agents.

(27) "PASS-THROUGH ENTITY" means a partnership not treated as an association taxable
as a C corporation for federal income tax purposes, a limited liability company not treated as an
association taxable as a C corporation for federal income tax purposes, an S corporation, or any
other class of entity from which the income or profits of the entity are given pass-through
treatment for federal income tax purposes. "Pass-through entity" does not include a trust,
estate, grantor of a grantor trust, or disregarded entity.

(28) "PENSION" means any amount paid to an employee or former employee that is
reported fo the recipient on an IRS form 1099-R, or successor form. Pension does not include
deferred compensation, or amounts attributable to nonqualified deferred compensation plans,
reported as FICA/Medicare wages on an [RS form W-2, Wage and Tax Statement, or successor
farm.

(29) "PERSON" includes individuals, firms, companies, joint stock companies, business
frusts, estates, frusts, partnerships, limited liability partnerships, limited liability companies,
associations, C corporations, S corporations, governmental entities, and any other entity.

(30) "POSTAL SERVICE" means the United States postal service, or private delivery
service delivering documents and packages within an agreed upon delivery schedule, or any
other carrier service delivering the item.

(31) "POSTMARK DATE," "DATE OF POSTMARK," and similar terms include the date
recorded and marked by a delivery service and recorded electronically to a database kept in the
regular course if its business and marked on the cover in which the payment or document is
enclosed, the date on which the payment or document was given to the delivery service for
delivery.

(32 (A) "PRE-2017 NET OPERATING [.OSS CARRYFORWARD" means any net
operating loss incurred in a taxable year beginning before January 1, 2017, to the extent such
loss was permitted, by a resolution or ordinance of the Municipality that was adopted by the
Municipaiity before January 1, 2016, to be carried forward and uiilized to offset income or net
profit generated in such Municipality in future taxable years.

(B) For the purpose of calculating municipal taxable income, any pre-2017 net operating

13




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

loss carryforward may be carried forward to any taxable year, including taxable years beginning
in 2017 or thereafter, for the number of taxable years provided in the resolution or ordinance or
until fuily utilized, whichever is eariier.

(33) "PUBLICLY TRADED PARTNERSHIP" means any partnership, an interest in which is
regularly traded on an established securities market. A "publicly traded partnership" may have
any number of partners.

(34)  "QUALIFIED MUNICIPAL CORPORATION" means a municipal corporation that, by
resolution or ordinance adopted on or before December 31, 2011, adopted Ohio adjusted gross
income, as defined by section 5747.01 of the Ohio Revised Code, as the income subject to fax
for the purposes of imposing a municipal income tax.

(35) "QUALIFYING WAGES" means wages, as defined in section 3121(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code, without regard to any wage limitations, adjusted as follows:

{A) Deduct the foliowing amounts:
(i Any amount included in wages if the amount constifutes compensation attributable to

a plan or program described in section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(i) Any amount included in wages if the amount constitutes payment on account of a
disability related to sickness or an accident paid by a party unrelated to the employer, agent of
an employer, or other payer.

(iiiy INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(iv) INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

(v) Any amount included in wages that is exempt income.

(B) Add the following amounts:

iy Any amount not included in wages solely because the employee was employed by the
employer before April 1, 1986.

(il  Any amount not included in wages because the amount arises from the sale,
exchange, or other disposition of a stock option, the exercise of a sfock option, or the sale,
exchange, or other disposition of stock purchased under a stock option and the municipal
corporation has not, by resolution or ordinance, exempted the amount from withholding and tax
adopted before January 1, 2016. Division (35)(B)(ii) of this section applies only to those

amounts constituting ordinary income.
(il Any amount not included in wages if the amount is an amount described in section

401(k), 403(b), or 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. Division (35)(B)(iii} of this section applies
only to employee contributions and employee deferrals.

(iv) Any amount that is supplemental unemployment compensation benefits described in
section 3402(0)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code and not included in wages.

(v)  Any amount received that is treated as self-employment income for federal tax
purposes in accordance with section 1402(a)}(8) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(vi) Any amount not included in wages if all of the following apply:

(a) For the taxable year the amount is employee compensation that is earned outside
of the United States and that either is included in the taxpayer's gross income for federal income
tax purposes or would have been included in the taxpayei's gross income for such purposes if
the taxpayer did not elect to exclude the income under section 911 of the Internal Revenue

Code;
(b) For no preceding taxable year did the amount constitute wages as defined in

section 3121(a) of the Internal Revenue Code;
(c) For no succeeding taxable year will the amount constitute wages; and

14




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

{(d) For any taxable year the amount has not otherwise been added to wages pursuant
to either division (34)(B) of this section or section 718.03 of the Ohio Revised Code, as that
section existed before the effective date of H.B. 5 of the 130th general assembly, March 23,
2015.

(36) "RELATED ENTITY" means any of the following:
(A}  An individual stockholder, or a member of the stockholder's family enumerated in

section 318 of the Internal Revenue Code, if the stockholder and the members of the
stockholder's family own directly, indirectly, beneficially, or constructively, in the aggregate, at
least fifty percent (50%) of the value of the taxpayer's outstanding stock;

(B) A stockholder, or a stockholder's partnership, estate, trust, or corporation, if the
stockholder and the stockholder's partnerships, estates, trusts, or corporations own directly,
indirectly, beneficially, or constructively, in the aggregate, at least fiity percent (50%) of the
value of the taxpayer's outstanding stock;

(C) A corporation, or a party related to the corporation in a manner that would require an
attribution of stock from the corporation to the party or from the party to the corporation under
division (36)(D) of this section, provided the taxpayer owns directly, indirectly, beneficially, or
constructively, at least fifty percent (50%) of the value of the corporation's outstanding stock;

(D) The attribution rules described in section 318 of the Internal Revenue Code apply for
the purpose of determining whether the ownership requirements in divisions (36)(A) to (C) of
this section have been met.

(37) "RELATED MEWMBER" means a person that, with respect to the taxpayer during all or
any portion of the taxable year, is either a related entity, a component member as defined in
section 1563(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, or a person to or from whom there is attribution
of stock ownership in accordance with section 1563(e) of the Internal Revenue Code except, for
purposes of determining whether a person is a related member under this division, "twenty
percent” shall be substituted for "5 percent" wherever "5 percent" appears in section 1563(e) of

the Internal Revenue Code.
" (38) "RESIDENT" means an individual who is domiciled in the Municipality as determined

under section 162.042 of this Chapter.

(39) "S CORPORATION" means a person that has made an election under subchapter S of
Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the Internal Revenue Code for its taxable year.

(40) “SCHEDULE C" means internal revenue service schedule C (form 1040) filed by a
taxpayer pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.

(41) "SCHEDULE E" means internal revenue service schedule E (form 1040} filed by a

taxpayer pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.
(42) “SCHEDULE F" means internal revenue service schedule F (form 1040) filed by a

taxpayer pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code.
(43) "SINGLE MEMBER LIMITED LIABILITY CONMPANY" means a limited liability company

that has one direct member.

(44) “SMALL EMPLOYER" means any employer that had fotal revenue of less than five
hundred thousand doftars ($500,000.00) during the preceding taxable year. For purposes of this
division, "total revenue” means receipts of any type or kind, including, but not limited to, sales
receipts; payments; rents; profits; gains, dividends, and other investment income; commissions;
premiums; money; property; grants; contributions; donations; gifts; program service revenue;
patient service revenue; premiums; fees, including premium fees and service fees; fuition
payments; unrelated business revenue; reimbursements; any type of payment from a

15




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

governmental unit, including grants and other allocations; and any other similar receipts
reported for federal income tax purposes or under generally accepted accounting principles.
"Small employer" does not include the federal government; any state government, including any
state agency or instrumentality; any political subdivision; or any entity treated as a government
for financial accounting and reporting purposes.

(45) (A) "TAX ADMINISTRATOR" means the individual charged with direct responsibility for
administration of an income tax levied by a municipal corporation in accordance with this
Chapter. Tax Administrator does not include the state tax commissioner.

(B) "TAX COMMISSIONER" means the tax commissioner appointed under section
121.03 of the Revised Code.

(46) "TAX RETURN PREPARER" means any individual described in section 7701(a)(36) of
the Internal Revenue CODE AND 26 C.F.R. 301.7701-15.

(47) "TAXABLE YEAR" means the corresponding tax reporting period as prescribed for the
taxpayer under the internal Revenue Code.

(48) (A) "TAXPAYER" means a person subject io a tax levied on income by a municipal
corporation in accordance with this Chapter. "Taxpayer" does not include a grantor trust or,
except as provided in division (48)(B)(i) of this section, a disregarded entity.

(B) (i) A single member limited liability company that is a disregarded entity for federal tax
purposes may be a separate taxpayer from its single member in all Ohio municipal corporations
in which it either filed as a separate taxpayer or did not file for its taxable year ending in 2003, if
all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The limited liability company's single member is also a limited liability company.

(b) The limited liability company and its single member were formed and doing
business in one or more Chio municipal corporations for at least five years before January 1,
2004.
(¢) Not later than December 31, 2004, the limited liability company and its single
member each made an election to be treated as a separate taxpayer under division (L) of
section 718.01 of the Ohio Revised Code as this section existed on December 31, 2004.

(d) The limited liability company was not formed for the purpose of evading or reducing
Ohio municipal corporation income tax liability of the limited liability company or its single
member.

(e) The Ohio municipal corporation that was the primary place of business of the sole
member of the limited liability company consented to the election.

(i) For purposes of division (48)(B)(i)}(e) of this section, a municipal corporation was the
primary place of business of a limited liability company if, for the limited liability company's
taxable year ending in 2003, its income tax liability was greater in that municipal corporation
than in any other municipal corporation in Ohio, and that tax liability fo that municipal
corporation for its taxable year ending in 2003 was at least four hundred thousand dollars
($400,000.00}.

(49) “TAXPAYERS' RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES" means the rights provided to
taxpayers in sections 718.11, 718.12, 718.19, 718.23, 718.36, 718.37, 718.38, 5717.011, and
5717.03 of the Ohio Revised Code and any corresponding ordinances of the Municipality, and
the responsibilities of taxpayers to file, report, withhold, remit, and pay municipal income tax and
otherwise comply with Chapter 718 of the Ohio Revised Code and resolutions, ordinances, and
rules adopted by a municipal corporation for the imposition and administration of a municipal

income tax.

16




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(50) "VIDEO LOTTERY TERMINAL" has the same meaning as in section 3770.21 of the

Ohio Revised Code.
(51) “VIDEO LOTTERY TERMINAL SALES AGENT" means a lottery sales agent licensed

under Chapter 3770 of the Ohio Revised Code to conduct video lottery terminals on behalf of
the state pursuant to section 3770.21 of the Ohio Revised Code.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.04 INCOME SUBJECT TO TAX FOR INDIVIDUALS.

The income tax levied by the Municipality at a rate of 1.25 percent is levied on the Municipal
Taxable Income of every person residing in and/or earning and/or receiving income in the

Municipality.
Individuals.

{A) For residents of the Municipality, the income tax levied herein shall be on all income,
salaries, qualifying wages, commissions, and other compensation from whatever source earned
or received by the resident, including the resident's distributive share of the net profit of pass-
through entities owned directly or indirectly by the resident and any net profit of the resident.
This is further detailed in the definition of income as defined in section 162.03(14).

(B) For nonresidents, all income, salaries, qualifying wages, commissions, and other
compensation from whatever source earned or received by the nonresident for work done,
services performed or rendered, or activities conducted in the municipal corporation, including
any net profit of the nonresident, but excluding the nonresident's distributive share of the net
profit or loss of only pass-through entities owned directly or indirectly by the nonresident.

(C)  For residents and nonresidents, income can be reduced fo "Municipal Taxable Income"
as defined in 162.03(20)(A). Fxemptions which may apply are specified in section 162.03(11).
(Ord, 90-18. Passed 5-29-18)

162.041 DETERMINING MUNICIPAL TAXABLE INCOME FOR INDIVIDUALS

(A} “Municipal Taxable Income” for a resident of the Municipality is calculated as follows:

(D “Income” reduced by “Exempt Income” to the extent such exempt income is
otherwise included in income, reduced by aliowable employee business expense
deduction as found in division (20)(B) of section 162.03 of this Chapter, further
reduced by any “Pre-2017 Net Operating Loss Carryforward” equals "Municipal
Taxable Income.”

(a) “Income” is defined in section 162.03 (14) of this Chapter.
(i) “Qualifying Wages” is defined in section 162.03(34).

7




City of Medina
Ord,, Exh. A

(i) "Net profit” is included in ‘income”, and is defined in
section 162.03 (23) of this Chapter. This section also provides
that the net operating loss carryforward shail be calculated and
deducted in the same manner as provided in division (1)(H) of
section 162.03. Treatment of net profits received by an individual
taxpayer from rental real estate is provided in section 162.062(E).

(i) Section 162.03(14) provides the following: offsetting and
net operating loss carryforward treatment in (14){(A)ii)(a);
resident’s distributive share of net profit from pass through entity
treatment in (14)(A)(ii}(b); treatment of S Corporation distributive
share of net profit in the hands of the shareholder in (14)(A)(iii);
restriction of amount of loss permitted to be carried forward for
use by taxpayer in a subsequent taxable year in (14)(A)(iv).

(iv)  “Pass Through Entity” is defined in section 162.03(27).
(b) “Exempt Income” is defined in section 162.03 (11) of this Chapter.

(c) Allowable employee business expense deduction is described in (20)(B)
of section 162.03 of this Chapter, and is subject to the limitations provided
in that section.

(d) “Pre-2017 Net Operating Loss Carryforward” is defined in section 162.03
(32) of this Chapter.

(B) “Municipal Taxable income” for a nonresident of the Municipality is calculated as follows:

(1)

“Income” reduced by “Exempt Income” to the extent such exempt income is
otherwise included in income, as applicable, apportioned or sitused to the
Municipality as provided in section 162.062 of this Chapter, reduced by allowable
employee business expense deduction as found in (20)}(B) of section 162.03 of
this Chapter, further reduced by any “Pre-2017 Net Operating Loss Carryforward”
equals “Municipal Taxable Income.”

(a) “Income” is defined in section 162.03(14) of this Chapter.
(i) “Qualifying Wages” is defined in section 162.03(34).

(i) “Net profit” is included in “income®, and is defined in
section 162.03(23) of this Chapter. This section also provides that
the net operating loss carryforward shall be calculated and
deducted in the same manner as provided in division (1)(H) of
section 162.03. “Net profit” for a nonresident individual includes
any net profit of the nonresident, but excludes the distributive

18




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

share of net profit or foss of only pass through entity owned
directly or indirectly by the nonresident.

(i} “Pass Through Entity” is defined in section 162.03(27).
(b) “Exempt Income” is defined in section 162.03(11) of this Chapter.

(c) “Apportioned or sitused to the Municipality as provided in section 162.062
of this Chapter” includes the apportionment of net profit income
attributable to work done or services performed in the Municipality.
Treatment of net profits received by an individual taxpayer from rental real
estate is provided in section 162.062(E).

(d) “Allowable employee business expense deduction” as described in
(20)(B) of section 162.03 of this Chapter, is subject to the limifations
provided in that section. For a nonresident of the Municipality, the
deduction is limited to the extent the expenses are related to the
performance of personal services by the nonresident in the Municipality.

(e) “Pre-2017 Net Operating Loss Carryforward” is defined in section
162.03(32) of this Chapter.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.042 DOMICILE.

(A) As used in this section:
(1)  "Domicile" means the true, fixed and permanent home of the taxpayer to which

whenever absent, the taxpayer intends to return.

(2) An individual is presumed to be domiciled in the Municipality for all or part of a taxable
year if the individual was domiciled in the Municipality on the last day of the immediately
preceding taxable year or if the tax administrator reasonably concludes that the individual is
domiciled in the Municipality for all or part of the taxable year.

(3) An individual may rebut the presumption of domicile described in division (A)(?) of this
section if the individual establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that the individual was
not domiciled in the Municipality for all or part of the taxable year.

(B) For the purpose of determining whether an individual is domiciled in the Municipality for
all or part of a taxable year, factors that may be considered include, but are not limited to, the
following:

(1) The individual's domicile in other taxable years;

(2) The location at which the individual is registered to vote;

(3) The address on the individual's driver's license;

{(4) The location of real estate for which the individual claimed a property tax exemption or
reduction aliowed on the basis of the individual's residence or domicile,

(5) The location and value of abodes owned or leased by the individual;

(6) Declarations, written or oral, made by the individual regarding the individual's

residency;,

18




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(7) The primary location at which the individual is employed.
(8) The location of educational institutions attended by the Individual's dependents as

defined in section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code, to the extent that tuition paid to such
educational institution is based on the residency of the individual or the individual's spouse in
the municipal corporation or state where the educational institution is located,

(9) The number of contact periods the individual has with the Municipality. For the
purposes of this division, an individual has one "contact period" with the Municipality if the
individual is away overnight from the individual's abode located outside of the Municipality and
while away overnight from that abode spends at  least some portion, however minimal, of each

of two (2) consecutive days in the Municipality.
(C) All applicable factors are provided in the Rules and Regulations.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.043 EXEMPTION FOR MEMBER OR EMPLOYEE OF GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND
CERTAIN JUDGES

{A) Only the municipal corporation of residence shall be permitted to levy a tax on
the income of any member or employee of the Ohio General Assembly, including the Lieutenant
Governor, whose income is received as a result of services rendered as such member or

employee and is paid from appropriated funds of this state.

(B) Only the municipal corporation of residence and the city of Columbus shall levy a
tax on the income of the Chief Justice or a Justice of the Supreme Court received as a result of
services rendered as the Chief Justice or Justice. Only the municipal corporation of residence
shall levy a tax on the income of a judge sitting by assignment of the Chief Justice or on the
income of a district court of appeals judge sitting in multiple locations within the district, received

as a result of services rendered as a judge.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.05 COLLECTION AT SOURCE
162.051 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; WITHHOLDING FROM QUALIFYING WAGES.
(A) Each employer, agent of an employer, or other payer located or doing business in

the Municipality shall withhold an income tax from the qualifying wages earned and/or received
by each employee in the Municipality. Except for qualifying wages for which withholding is not
required under section 162.052 or division (B), (D), or (F) of this section, the tax shall be
withheld at the rate specified in section 163.012(3) of this chapter/ordinance, of 1.25 percent.
An employer, agent of an employer, or other payer shall deduct and withhold the tax from
qualifying wages on the date that the employer, agent, or other payer directly, indirectly, or
constructively pays the qualifying wages to, or credits the qualifying wages to the benefit of, the
employee.

(B) (1) Except as provided in division (B}{1)(c) of this section, an employer, agent of an
employer, or other payer shall remit to the Tax Administrator of the Municipality the greater of
the income taxes deducted and withheld or the income taxes required fo be deducted and
withheld by the employer, agent, or other payer, according to the following schedule:

20




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(a) Taxes required to be deducted and withheld shall be remitted monthly to
the Tax Administrator if the total taxes deducted and withheld or required to be deducted and
withheld by the employer, agent, or other payer on behalf of the municipal corporation in the
preceding calendar year exceeded Two Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-nine Dollars
($2,399.00), or if the total amount of taxes deducted and withheld or required to be deducted
and withheld on behalf of the Municipality in any month of the preceding calendar guarter
exceeded Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00).

Payment under division (B)(1)(a) of this section shall be made to the Tax
Administrator not later than fifteen (15) days after the last day of each month for which the tax

was withheld.

(b)  Any employer, agent of an employer, or other payer not required to
make payments under division (B)(1)(a) of this section of taxes required to be deducted and
withheld shall make quarterly payments to the Tax Administrator not later than the last day of

the month following the last day of each calendar quarter.
(¢} Intentionally left blank.

(C) If the employer, agent of an employer or other payer is required to make payments
electronically for the purpose of paying federal taxes withheld on payments to employees under
section 8302 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 C.F.R. 31.6302-1, or any other federal statute or
reguilation, the payment shall be made by electronic funds transfer to the Tax Administrator of all
taxes deducted and withheld on behalf of the Municipality. The payment of tax by electronic
funds transfer under this division does not affect an employer's, agent's, or other payer's
obligation to file any return as required under this section.

(D) An employer, agent of an employer, or other payer shall make and file a return showing
the amount of tax withheld by the employer, agent, or other payer from the qualifying wages of
each employee and remitted to the Tax Administrator. A return filed by an employer, agent, or
other payer under this division shall be accepted by Tax Administrator and the Municipality as
the return required of a non-resident employee whose sole income subject to the tax under this
Chapter is the qualifying wages reported by the employee's employer, agent of an employer, or
other payer.

(E) An employer, agent of an employer, or other payer is not required to withhold
municipality income tax with respect to an individual's disqualifying disposition of an incentive
stock option if, at the time of the disqualifying disposition, the individual is not an employee of
either the corporation with respect to whose stock the option has been issued or of such
corporation's successor entity.

(F} (1) An employee is not relieved from liability for a tax by the failure of the employer,
agent of an employer, or other payer to withho!d the tax as required under this Chapter or by the
employer's, agent's, or other payer's exemption from the requirement to withhold the tax.

(2) The failure of an employer, agent of an employer, or other payer to remit to the
Municipality the tax withheld relieves the employee from liability for that tax unless the employee
coliuded with the employer, agent, or other payer in connection with the failure to remit the tax

withheld.
(G) Compensation deferred before June 26, 2003, is not subject to municipality income tax

21




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

or income tax withholding requirement to the extent the deferred compensation does not
constitute qualifying wages at the time the deferred compensation is paid or distributed.

(H) Each employer, agent of an employer, or other payer required to withhold taxes is liable
for the payment of that amount required to be withheld, whether or not such taxes have been
withheld, and such amount shall be deemed to be held in trust for the Municipality until such
time as the withheld amount is remitted {o the Tax Administrator.

() On or before the last day of February of each year, an employer shall file a Withholding

Reconciliation Return with the Tax Administrator listing:
(1})- The names, addresses, and social security numbers of all employees

from whose qualifying wages tax was withheld or should have been withheld for the Municipality
during the preceding calendar year;

(2) The amount of fax withheld, if any, from each such employee, the total
amount of qualifying wages paid to such employee during the preceding calendar year;

(3 The name of every other municipal corporation for which tax was withheld
or should have been withheld from such employee during the preceding calendar year;

(4) Any other information required for federal income tax reporting purposes
on Internal Revenue Service form W-2 or its equivalent form with respect to such employee;

5 Other informaticn as may be required by the Tax Administrator.

(J) The officer or the employee of the employer, agent of an employer, or other payer with
control or direct supervision of or charged with the responsibility for withholding the tax or filing
the reports and making payments as required by this section, shall be personally liable for a
faifure to file a report or pay the tax due as required by this section. The dissolution of an
employer, agent of an employer, or other payer does not discharge the officer's or employee's
liability for a failure of the employer, agent of an employer, or other payer to file returns or pay
any fax due.

(K) An employer is required to deduct and withhold municipal income tax on tips and
gratuities received by the employer's employees and constituting qualifying wages, but only to
the extent that the tips and gratuities are under the employer's control. For the purposes of this
division, a tip or gratuity is under the employer's control if the tip or gratuity is paid by the
customer to the employer for subsequent remittance to the employee, or if the customer pays
the tip or gratuity by credit card, debit card, or other electronic means.

(L) The Tax Administrator shall consider any tax withheld by an employer at the request of
an employee, when such tax is not otherwise required to be withheld by this Chapter, to be tax
required to be withheld and remitted for the purposes of this section.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.052 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; OCCASIONAL ENTRANT
(A) The following terms as used in this section:
(0 "Employer" includes a person that is a related member to or of an employer.
(2) "Professional athlete" means an athlete who performs services in a professional

athletic event for wages or other remuneration.

22




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(B)

3 "Professional entertainer” means a person who performs services in the
] v p p "
professional performing arts for wages or other remuneration on a per-event

basis.

(4) "Public figure" means a person of prominence who performs services at discrete
events, such as speeches, public appearances, or similar events, for wages or

other remuneration on a per-event basis.

5 "Fixed location™ means a permanent place of doing business in this state, such
. P piace g
as an office, warehouse, storefront, or similar location cwned or controlled by an

employer.

[(5)} "Worksite location" means a construction site or other temporary worksite in this
state at which the employer provides services for more than twenty (20) days
during the calendar year. "Worksite location" does not include the home of an

employee.

(7 "Principal place of work" means the fixed location to which an employee is
reguired to report for employment duties on a regular and ordinary basis. If the
employee is not required to report for employment duties on a regular and
ordinary basis to a fixed location, "principal place of work" means the worksite
location in this state to which the employee is required to report for employment
duties on a regular and ordinary basis. If the employee is not required to report
for employment duties on a regular and ordinary basis to a fixed location or
worksite location, "principal place of work" means the location in this state at
which the employee spends the greatest number of days in a calendar year
performing services for or on behalf of the employee's employer.

If there is not a single municipal corporation in which the employee spent the
"greatest number of days in a calendar year" performing services for or on behalf of the
employer, but instead there are two or more municipal corporations in which the
employee spent an identical number of days that is greater than the number of days the
employee spent in any other municipal corporation, the employer shall allocate any of
the employee's qualifying wages subject to division (B)(1)(a) of this section among those
two or more municipal corporations. The allocation shall be made using any fair and
reasonable method, including, but not limited to, an equal allocation among such
municipal corporations or an allocation hased upon the time spent or sales made by the
employee in each such municipal corporation. A municipal corporation to which
qualifying wages are allocated under this division shall be the employee's "principal
place of work" with respect to those qualifying wages for the purposes of this section.

For the purposes of this division, the location at which an employee spends a
particular day shall be deemed in accordance with division (B}2) of this section, except
that “location” shall be substituted for “municipal corporation” wheraver “municipal
corporation” appears in that division.

(D Subject to divisions (C), (E), (F), and (G) of this section, an employer is not
required to withhold municipal income tax on qualifying wages paid to an employee for
the performance of personal services in a municipal corporation that imposes such a tax

23




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

if the employee performed such services in the municipal corporation on twenty (20) or
fewer days in a calendar year, unless one of the following conditions applies:

(a) The employee's principal place of work is located in the Municipality.

(b} The employee performed services at one or more presumed worksite
jocations in the Municipality. For the purposes of this division, "presumed
worksite location" means a construction site or other temporary worksite in this
state at which the employer provides services that can reasonably be expected
by the employer to last more than twenty (20) days in a calendar year. Services
can "reasonably be expected by the employer to last more than twenty (20) days"
if aither of the following applies at the time the services commence:

(i) The nature of the services are such that it will require more than
twenty (20) days of actual services to complete the services;

(ii) The agreement between the employer and its customer to perform
services at a location requires the employer to perform actual services at
the location for more than twenty (20) days.

{(c) The employee is a resident of the Municipality and has requested that the
employer withhold tax from the employee's qualifying wages as provided in
section 162.051 of this Chapter.

() The employee is a professional athlete, professional entertainer, or public
figure, and the qualifying wages are paid for the performance of services in the
employee's capacity as a professional athlete, professional entertainer, or publiic

figure within the Municipality.

(2) For the purposes of division (B}1) of this section, an employee shall be
considered to have spent a day performing services in a municipal corporation
only if the employee spent more time performing services for or on behalf of the
employer in that municipal corporation than in any other municipal corporation on
that day. For the purposes of determining the amount of time an employee spent
in a particular location, the time spent performing one or more of the following
activities shall be considered to have been spent at the employee’s principal

place of worlc

(a) Traveling to the location at which the employee will first perform services
for the employer for the day;

(b) Traveling from a location at which the employee was performing services
for the employer to any other location;

24




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(c) Traveling from any location to another iocation in order to pick up or joad,
for the purpose of transportation or delivery, property that has been
purchased, sold, assembled, fabricated, repaired, refurbished, processed,
remanufactured, or improved by the employee's employer,

(d) Transporting or delivering property described in division (B)(2)(c) of this
section, provided that, upon delivery of the property, the employee does
not temporarily or permanently affix the property fo real estate owned,
used, or controlled by a person other than the employee's employer;

(e) Traveling from the location at which the employee makes the employee's
final delivery or pick-up for the day to either the employee's principal
place of work or a [ocation at which the employee will not perform

services for the employer.

(C) If the principal place of work of an employee is located in a municipal corporation that
imposes an income tax in accordance with this Chapter, the exception from withholding
requirements described in division (B)(1) of this section shall apply only if, with respect to the
employee's qualifying wages described in that division, the employer withholds and remits tax
on such qualifying wages to the municipal corporation in which the employee's principal place of

work is located.

(D) (1) Except as provided in division (D){2) of this section, if, during a calendar year, the
number of days an employee spends perforiming personal services in a municipal
corporation exceeds the twenty-day threshold described in division (B)(1) of this section,
the employer shall withhold and remit tax to that municipal corporation for any
subsequent days in that calendar year on which the employer pays qualifying wages to
the employee for personal services performed in that municipal corporation.

(2) An employer required to begin withholding tax for a municipal corporation under
division (D}1) of this section may elect to withhold tax for that municipal corporation for
the first twenty (20) days on which the employer paid qualifying wages to the employee
for personal services petformed in that municipal corporation.

3) If an employer makes the election described in division (D)(2) of this section, the
taxes withheld and paid by such an employer during those first twenty (20) days to the
municipal corporation in which the employee's principal place of work is located are
refundable to the employee.

(E) Without regard to the number of days in a calendar year on which an employee performs
personal services in any municipal corporation, an employer shall withhold municipal income tax
on all of the employee's qualifying wages for a taxable year and remit that tax only to the
municipal corporation in which the employer's fixed location is located if the employer qualifies
as a small employer as defined in section 162.03 of this Chapter. To determine whether an
employer qualifies as a small employer for a taxable year, a Tax Administrator may require the
employer to provide the Tax Administrator with the employer's federal income tax return for the

preceding taxable year.

25




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

{F) Divisions (B)(1) and (D) of this section shall not apply to the extent that a Tax
Administrator and an employer enter intc an agreement regarding the manner in which the
employer shall comply with the requirements of section 162.051 of this Chapter.

(G) in the case of a person performing personal services at a petroleum refinery located in a
municipal corporation that imposes a tax on income, an employer is not required to withhold
municipal income tax on the qualifying wages of such a person if the person performs those
services on twelve (12) or fewer days in a calendar year, unless the principal place of work of
the employer is located in another municipal corporation in this state that imposes a tax applying
to compensation paid to the person for services performed on those days and the person is not
liable to that other municipal corporation for tax on the compensation paid for such services.. For
the purposes of this division, a petroleum refinery is a facility with a standard industrial
classification code facility classification of 2911, petroleum refining.

Notwithstanding division (D) of this section, if, during a calendar year, the number of
days an individual performs personal services at a petroleum refinery exceeds twelve, the
employer shall withhold tax for the municipal corporation for the first twelve (12) days for which
the employer paid qualifying wages to the individual and for ail subsequent days in the calendar
year on which the individual performed services at the refinery.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.0563 COLLECTION AT SOURCE; CASING AND VLT

(A) The Municipality shall require a casino facility or a casino operator, as defined in section
8(C)(9) of Article XV, Ohio Constitution, and section 3772.01 of the Ohio Revised Code,
respectively, or a lottery sales agent conducting video lottery terminals sales on behalf of the
state to withhold and remit municipal income tax with respect to amounts other than qualifying

wages as provided in this section.

(B) If a person's winnings at a casino facility are an amount for which reporting to the
internal revenue service of the amount is required by section 8041 of the Internal Revenue
Code, as amended, the casino operator shall deduct and withhold municipal income tax from
the person's winnings at the rate of the tax imposed by the municipal corporation in which the

casino facility is located.

(C) Amounts deducted and withheld by a casino operator are held in irust for the benefit of
the municipal corporation to which the tax is owed.

(1) On or before the tenth day of each month, the casino operator shall file a return
electronically with the Tax Administrator of the Municipality, providing the name,
address, and social security number of the person from whose winnings amounts were
deducted and withheld, the amount of each such deduction and withholding during the
preceding calendar month, the amount of the winnings from which each such amount
was withheld, the type of casino gaming that resulted in such winnings, and any other
information required by the Tax Administrator. With this return, the casino operator shall

26




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

remit electronically to the Municipality all amounts deducted and withheld during the
preceding month.

(2 Annually, on or before the thirty-first day of January, a casino operator shall file
an annual return electronically with the Tax Administrator of the municipal corporation in
which the casino facility is located, indicating the total amount deducted and withheld
during the preceding calendar year. The casino operator shail remit electronically with
the annual return any amount that was deducted and withheld and that was not
previously remitted. If the name, address, or social security number of a person or the
amount deducted and withheld with respect fo that person was omitted on a monthly
return for that reporting period, that information shall be indicated on the annual return.

(3 Annually, on or before the thirty-first day of January, a casino operator shall issue
an information return to each person with respect to whom an amount has been
deducted and withheld during the preceding calendar year. The information return shall
show the total amount of municipal income tax deducted from the person's winnings
during the preceding year. The casino operator shall provide to the Tax Administrator a
copy of each information return issued under this division. The administrator may
require that such copies be transmitted electronically.

4 A casino operator that fails to file a return and remit the amounts deducted and
withheld shall be personally liable for the amount withheld and not remitted. Such
personal fiability extends to any penalty and interest imposed for the fate filing of a return

or the late payment of tax deducted and withheld.

(5) If a casino operator sells the casino facility or otherwise quits the casino
business, the amounts deducted and withheld along with any penalties and interest
thereon are immediately due and payable. The successor shall withhold an amount of
the purchase money that is sufficient to cover the amounts deducted and withheld along
with any penalties and interest thereon until the predecessor casino operator produces

either of the following:

a) A receipt from the Tax Administrator showing that the amounts deducted
and withheld and penalties and interest thereon have been paid;

(B A certificate from the Tax Administrator indicating that no amounts are
due.

If the successor fails to withhold purchase money, the successor is personally
liable for the payment of the amounts deducted and withheld and penalties and

interest thereon.
(8) The failure of a casino operator to deduct and withhold the required amount from

a person's winnings does not relieve that person from liability for the municipal income
tax with respect to those winnings.

27




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(D) If a person's prize award from a video lottery terminal is an amount for which reporting to
the internal revenue service is required by section 6041 of the Internal Revenue Code, as
amended, the video lottery sales agent shall deduct and withhold municipal income tax from the
person’s prize award at the rate of the tax imposed by the municipal corporation in which the

video lottery terminal facility is located.

(E}  Amounts deducted and withheld by a video lottery sales agent are held in trust for the
benefit of the municipal corporation to which the tax is owed. :

{1 The video lottery sales agent shall issue to a person from whose prize award an
amount has heen deducted and withheld a receipt for the amount deducted and
withheld, and shall obtain from the person recelving a prize award the person's name,
address, and social security number in order to facilitate the preparation of returns

required by this section.

(2) On or before the tenth day of each month, the video lottery sales agent shall file
a return electronically with the Tax Administrator of the Municipality providing the names,
addresses, and social security numbers of the persons from whose prize awards
amounts were deducted and withheld, the amount of each such deduction and
withholding during the preceding calendar month, the amount of the prize award from
which each such amount was withheld, and any other information required by the Tax
Administrator. With the return, the video lottery sales agent shall remit electronically to
the Tax Administrator all amounts deducted and withheld during the preceding month.

(3 A video lottery sales agent shall maintain a record of all receipts issued under
division (E)} of this section and shall make those records available to the Tax
Administrator upon request. Such records shall be maintained in accordance with
section 5747.17 of the Ohio Revised Code and any rules adopted pursuant thereto.

(4) Annually, on or before the thirty-first day of January, each video lottery terminal
sales agent shall file an annual return electronically with the Tax Administrator of the
municipal corporation in which the facility is located indicating the total amount deducted
and withheld during the preceding calendar year. The video lottery sales agent shall
remit electronically with the annual return any amount that was deducted and withheld
and that was not previously remitted. If the name, address, or social security number of
a person or the amount deducted and withheld with respect to that person was omitted
on a monthly return for that reporting period, that information shall be indicated on the

annual return.

(5) Annually, on or before the thirty-first day of January, a video lottery sales agent
shall issue an information return to each person with respect to whom an amount has
been deducted and withheld during the preceding calendar year. The information return
shall show the total amount of municipal income tax deducted and withheld from the
person's prize award by the video lottery sales agent during the preceding year. A video
lottery sales agent shall provide to the Tax Administrator of the municipal corporation a

28




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

copy of each information return issued under this division. The Tax Administrator may
require that such copies be transmitted electronically.

(6) A video lottery sales agent who fails to file a return and remit the amounts
deducted and withheld is personally iiable for the amount deducted and withheld and not
remitted. Such personal liability extends to any penalty and interest imposed for the late
filing of a return or the late payment of tax deducted and withheld.

(F) If a video lottery sales agent ceases to operate video lottery terminals, the amounts
deducted and withheld along with any penalties and interest thereon are immediately due and
payable. The successor of the video lottery sales agent that purchases the video lottery
terminals from the agent shall withhold an amount from the purchase money that is sufficient to

cover the amounts deducted and withheld and any penalties and interest thereon until the
predecessor video lottery sales agent operator produces either of the following:

(N A receipt from the Tax Administrator showing that the amounts deducted and
withheld and penalties and interest thereon have been paid,

(2) A certificate from the Tax Administrator indicating that no amounts are due.

If the successor fails to withhold purchase money, the successor is personally liable for
the payment of the amounts deducted and withheld and penalties and interest thereon.

(G)  The failure of a video lottery sales agent to deduct and withhold the required amount
from a person's prize award does not relieve that person from liability for the municipal income

tax with respect to that prize award.

(H) If a casino operator or lottery sales agent files a return late, fails to file a return, remits
amounts deducted and withheld late, or fails to remit amounts deducted and withheld as
required under this section, the Tax Administrator of a municipal corporation may impose the

following applicable penaity:

(1 For the late remittance of, or failure to remit, tax deducted and withheld under
this section, a penalty equal to fifty percent (50%) of the tax deducted and withheld;

(2) For the failure to file, or the late filing of, a monthly or annual return, a penalty of
five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each return not filed or filed late. Interest shall accrue
on past due amounts deducted and withheld at the rate prescribed in section 5703.47 of

the Ohio Revised Code.

() Amounts deducted and withheld on behalf of a municipal corporation shall be allowed
as a credit against payment of the tax imposed by the municipal corporation and shall be treated
as taxes paid for purposes of section 162.07 of this Chapter. This division applies only to the

person for whom the amount is deducted and withheld.

29




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

)] The Tax Administrator shall prescribe the forms of the receipts and returns required
under this section.

(Source: ORC 718.031)
162.06 INCOME SUBJECT TO NET PROFIT TAX

162.061 DETERMINING MUNICIPAL TAXABLE INCOME FOR TAXPAYERS WHO
ARE NOT INDIVIDUALS

“Municipal Taxable Income” for a taxpayer who is not an individual for the Municipality is
calcuiated as follows:
(A) “Income” reduced by “Exempt Income” to the extent otherwise included in
income, multiplied by apportionment, further reduced by any "Pre-2017 Net
Operating Loss Carryforward” equals “Municipal Taxable Income.”
(D “Income” for a taxpayer that is not an individual means the “Net Profit" of
the taxpayer.
) “Net Profit” for a person other than an individual is defined
in section 162.03(23).

ii) “Adjusted Federal Taxable Income” is defined in section
162.03(1) of this Chapter.

(2)‘ “Exempt Income” is defined in section 162.03(11) of this Chapter.

(3) “Apportionment” means the apportionment as determined by section
162.062 of this Chapter.

(4) “Pre-2017 Net Operating Loss Carryforward” is defined in section 162.03
(32) of this Chapter.

{Source;. ORC 718.01)

162.062 NET PROFIT; INCOME SUBJECT TO NET PROFIT TAX; ALTERNATIVE
APPORTIONMENT.

This section applies to any taxpayer engaged in a business or profession in the Municipality
unless the taxpayer is an individual who resides in the Municipality or the taxpayer is an electric
company, combined company, or telephone company that is subject to and required to file
reports under Chapter 5745 of the Ohio Revised Code.

(A) Except as otherwise provided in divisions (A) and (B) of this section, Nnet profit from a
business or profession conducted both within and without the boundaries of the Municipality
shall be considered as having a taxable situs in the Municipality for purposes of municipal
income taxation in the same proportion as the average ratio of the following:

30




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(1) The average original cost of the real property and tangible personal property owned or
used by the taxpayer in the business or profession in the Municipality during the taxable period
to the average original cost of all of the real and tangible personal property owned or used by
the taxpayer in the business or profession during the same period, wherever situated.

As used in the preceding paragraph, tangible personal or real properly shall include
property rented or leased by the taxpayer and the value of such property shall be determined by
multiplying the annual rental thereon by eight;

(2) Wages, salaries, and other compensation paid during the taxable period to individuals
employed in the business or profession for services performed in the Municipality to wages,
salaries, and other compensation paid during the same period to individuals employed in the
business or profession, wherever the individual's services are performed, excluding
compensation from which taxes are not required to be withheld under section 162.052 of this
Chapter,;

(3) Total gross receipts of the business or profession from sales and rentals made and
services performed during the taxable period in the Municipality to total gross receipts of the
business or profession during the same period from sales, rentals, and services, wherever
made or performed.

(B)(1) If the apportionment factors described in division (A) of this section do not fairly
represent the extent of a taxpayer's business activity in the Municipality, the taxpayer may
request, or the Tax Administrator of the Municipality may require, that the taxpayer use, with
respect to all or any portion of the income of the taxpayer, an alternative apportionment method
invelving one or more of the following:

(a) Separate accounting;

(b) The exclusion of one or more of the factors;

{c) The inclusion of one or more additional factors that would provide for a more fair
apportionment of the income of the taxpayer to the Municipality;

(d} A modification of one or more of the factors.

(2) A taxpayer request to use an alternative apportionment method shall be in writing and
shall accompany a tax return, timely filed appeal of an assessment, or timely filed amended tax
return. The taxpayer may use the reguested alternative method unless the Tax Administrator
denies the request in an assessment issued within the period prescribed by division {(A) of
section 162.19 of this Chapter.

(3} A Tax Administrator may require a taxpayer to use an alternative apportionment
method as described in division (B)(1) of this section only by issuing an assessment {o the
taxpayer within the period prescribed by division (A) of section 162.19 of this Chapter.

(4) Nothing in division (B) of this section nullifies or otherwise affects any alternative
apportionment arrangement approved by a Tax Administrator or otherwise agreed upon by both
the Tax Administrator and taxpayer before January 1, 2016.

(C) As used in division (A)(2) of this section, "wages, salaries, and other compensation”
includes only wages, salaries, or other compensation paid to an employee for services
performed at any of the following locations:

(1) A location that is owned, controlled, or used by, rented to, or under the possession of
one of the following:

(a} The employer;
(b) A vendor, customer, client, or patient of the employer, or a related member of such a
vendor, customer, client, or patient;

31




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(c) A vendor, customer, client, or patient of a person described in division (C}Y{1)(b) of this
section, or a related member of such a vendor, customer, client, or patient.

(2)  Any location at which a trial, appeal, hearing, investigation, inquiry, review, court-
martial, or similar administrative, judicial, or legislative matter or proceeding is being conducted,
provided that the compensation is paid for services performed for, or on behalf of, the employer
or that the employee's presence at the location directly or indirectly benefits the employer;

(3) Any other location, if the Tax Administrator determines that the employer directed the
employee to perform the services at the other location in lieu of a location described in division
(C){1) or (2) of this section solely in order to avoid or reduce the employer's municipal income
tax liability. If a Tax Administrator makes such a determination, the employer may dispute the
determination by establishing, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the Tax Administrator's
determination was unreasonable.

(D)} For the purposes of division (A)(3) of this section, and except as provided in division
(1) of this section, receipts from sales and rentals made and services performed shall be sitused
to a municipal corporation as follows:

(1)  Gross receipts from the sale of tangible personal property shall be sitused to the
municipal corporation only if, regardless of where title passes, the property meets either of the

following criteria:
(a) The property is shipped to or delivered within the municipal corporation from a stock

of goods located within the municipal corporation.

(b) The property is delivered within the municipal corporation from a location outsrde the
municipal corporation, provided the taxpayer is regularly engaged through its own employees in
the solicitation or promotion of sales within such municipal corporation and the sales result from
such solicitation or promotion.

(2) Gross receipts from the sale of services shall be sitused to the municipal corporation to
the extent that such services are performed in the municipal corporation.

(3) To the extent included in income, gross receipts from the sale of real property located in
the municipal corporation shall be sitused fo the municipal corporation.

(4) To the extent included in income, gross receipts from rents and royalties from real
property located in the municipal corporation shall be sitused to the municipal corporation.

(5) Gross receipts from rents and royalties from tangible personal property shall be sitused
to the municipal corporation based upon the extent to which the tangible personal property is
used in the municipal corporation. (E) The net profit received by an individual taxpayer from
the rental of real estate owned directly by the individual or by a disregarded entity owned by the
individual shall be subject to taxthe Municipality's tax only if the property generating the net
profit is located in the Municipality or if the individual taxpayer that receives the net profit is a
resident of the Municipality. The Municipality shall allow such taxpayers to elect to use separate
accounting for the purpose of calculating net profit sitused under this division to the municipal
corporation in which the property is located.

(F) (1) Except as provided in division (F)(2) of this section, commissions received by a real
estate agent or broker relating to the sale, purchase, or lease of real estate shall be sitused to
the municipal corporation in which the real estate is located. Net profit reported by the real
estate agent or broker shall be allocated to the Municipality, if applicable, based upon the ratio
of the commissions the agent or broker received from the sale, purchase, or lease of real estate
located in the Municipality to the commissions received from the sale, purchase, or lease of real

estate everywhere in the taxable year.

32




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(2) An individual who is a resident of the Municipality shall report the individual's net profit
from all real estate activity on the individual's annual tax return for the Municipality. The
individual may claim a credit for taxes the individual paid on such net profit to another municipal
corporation to the extent that such credit is allowed under section 162.081 of this Chapter.

(G) When calculating the ratios described in division (A) of this section for the purposes of
that division or division (B) of this section, the owner of a disregarded entity shall include in the
owner's ratios the property, payroll, and gross receipts of such disregarded entity.

(H) If in computing adjusted federal taxable income, the taxpayer deducted any amount with
respect to a stock option granted to an employee, the taxpayer shall add the amount that is
exempt from taxation to the taxpayer's net profit that was apportioned to the Municipality. In no
case shall a taxpayer be required to add to its net profit that was apportioned to the Municipality
any amount other than the amount upon which the employee wouid be required to pay tax were
the amount related to the stock option not exempted from taxation.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

(1(1) As used in this division:

(a) "Qualifying remote employee or owner” means an individual who is an employee of a
taxpaver or who is_a partner_or member holding an ownership interest in a taxpaver that is
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, pbrovided that the individual meets both

of the following criteria;

(i) The taxpaver has assigned the individual to a qualifying reporting location.

(i) The individual is permitted or required to perform services for the taxpayer at a
gualifving remote work location.

(b) "Qualifying remote work location" means a permanent or temporary location at which an
employee or owner chooses or is required to perform services for the taxpayer, other than a
reporting location of the taxpayer or any other location owned or controlled by a customer or
client of the taxpaver. "Qualifying remote work location” may include the residence of an
employee or owner and may be located outside of a municipal coiporation that imposes an
income tax in accordance with this chapter. An employee or owner may have more than one
qualifving remote work location during a taxable year.

(c) "Reporting location” means either of the following:

(i) A permanent or temporary place of doing business, such as an office, warehouse,
storefront. construction site, or similar_location, that is owned or controlled directly or indirectly

by the taxpayer;

33




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(i Any location in this state owned or controlied by a customer or client of the taxpayer,
provided that the taxpaver is required to withhold taxes under section 162.05 of this Chapter, on
qualifying wages paid to an employee for the performance of personal services at that location.

(d) "Qualifying reporting location” means one of the following:

{i) The reporting location in this state at which an employee or owner performs services
for the taxpaver on a regular or periodic basis during the taxable year;

(i) If no reporting location exists in this state for an employse or owner under division
(D{D{dXi} of this section, the reporting location in this state at which the employee’s or owner's
supervisor regularly or periodically reports during the iaxable vear;

(iii} If no reporting location exists in this siate for an employee or owner under division
(N(D(d)Xiy or (i) _of this section, the location that the taxpayer otherwise assigns_as the
employee's or owner's gualifying reporing location, provided the assignment is made in good
faith and is recorded and maintained in the taxpaver's _business records. A taxpayer may
change the gualifving reporting location designated for an emplovee or owner under this division

at any time.

(2) For tax years ending on or after December 31, 2023, a taxpayer may elect to apply the
provisions of this division to the apportionment of its net profit from a business or profession. For
taxpavers that make this election, the provisions of section 162.062 apply it¢ such

apportionment except as otherwise provided in this division,

A taxpaver shall make the election allowed under this division in writing on or with _the
taxpaver's net profit refurn_or, if applicable, a timely filed amended net profit return or a timely
filed appeal of an assessment. The election applies to the taxable year for which that return or
appeal is filed and for all subseguent taxable vears, until the taxpayer revokes the election.

The taxpavyer shall make the initial election with the tax administrator of each municipal
corporation with which, after applying the apportionment provisions authorized in this division,
the taxpaver is required to file a net profit tax return for that taxable yvear. A taxpayer shall not be
reguired to notify the tax administrator of a municipal corporation_in_which a qualifying remote
employee's or owner's qualifying remote work location is locaied, unless the taxpayer is
otherwise required to file a net profit return with that municipal corporation due to business
operations that are unrelated 1o the employee's or owner's activity at the qualifying remote work

logation.

After the taxpaver makes the initial election, the election applies to _every municipal
corporation in which the taxpayer conducts business. The taxpaver shall not be required {o file a

34




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

net profit return with a municipal corporation solely because a gualifying remote employee's or
owner's qualifying remote work location is logated in such municipal corporation.

Nothing in this division prohibits a taxpayver from making a new election under this
division after properly revoking a prior election.

{3) For the purpose of calculating the ratios described in_section 162.062(A), all of the
following apply to a taxpaver that has made the election described in division (1)(2):

{a) For the purpose of section 162.062(A)(1). the average original cost of any tangible
personal property used by a qualifving remote employee or owner at that individual's gualifying
remote worl location shall be sitused to that individual's qualifying reporting location.

(b} For the purpose of section 162.062(A)(2), any wages, salaries, and other compensation
paid during the taxable period to a dualifving remote embloyee or owner for services performed
at that individual's qualifving remote work location shall be sitused to that individual's qualifying

reporting location.

(c) For the purpose of section 162.062(A)(3), and notwithstanding section_162,062(D), any
aross receipts of the business or profession from services performed during the taxable period
by a qualifying remote emplovee or owner for services performed at that individual's qualifying
remote work location shall be sitused to that individual's qualifying reporting lecation.,

(4) Nothina in_this_division prevents a taxpayer from requesting, or_a_tax administrator from
requiring, that the taxpayer use, with respect to all or a_pertion of the income of the taxpayer, an
alternative apportionment method as described in _section 162.062(B)(1). However, a tax
administrator shall not require an_alternative apportionment method in such a manner that it
would require a taxpayer to file a net profit return with 2 municipal corporation solely because a
gualifving remote_employee's or owner's_qualifying remote work location is located in_that

municipal corporation.

(5) Except as otherwise provided in this division, nothing in this division is intended to affect the
withholding of taxes on gqualifying wages pursuant to section 162,05 of this Chapter.

(Ord, -23. Passed J)
162.063 CONSOLIDATED FEDERAL INCOME TAX RETURN

(A) As used in this section:

Q)] "Affiliated group of corporations” means an affiliated group as defined in section 1504 of
the Internal Revenue Code, except that, if such a group inciudes at least one incumbent jocal
exchange carrier that is primarily engaged in the business of providing local exchange

35




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

telephone service in this state, the affiliated group shall not include any incumbent local
exchange carrier that would otherwise be included in the group.

(2) "Consolidated federal income tax return” means a consolidated return filed for federal
income tax purposes pursuant to section 1501 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(3) "Consolidated federal taxable income" means the consolidated taxable income of an
affiliated group of corporations, as computed for the purposes of filing a consolidated federal
income tax return, before consideration of net operating losses or special deductions.
"Consolidated federal taxable income" does not include income or loss of an incumbent local
exchange carrier that is excluded from the affiliated group under division (A)(1) of this section.

(4 "Incumbent local exchange carrier" has the same meaning as in section 4927.01 of the
Revised Code.

(5) " ocal exchange telephone service" has the same meaning as in section 5727.01 of the
Revised Code.

B) (1) For taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2016, a taxpayer that is a
member of an affiliated group of corporations may elect to file a consolidated municipal income
tax return for a taxable year if at least one member of the affiliated group of corporations is
subject to the municipal income tax in that taxable year and if the affiliated group of corporations
filed a consolidated federal income tax return with respect to that taxable year.

(a) The election is binding for a five-year period beginning with the first taxable year of the
initial election unless a change in the reporting method is required under federal law.

{b) The election continues to be binding for each subsequent five-year period unless the
taxpayer elects to discontinue filing consolidated municipal income tax returns under division
(B)(2) of this section; or

(c) A taxpayer receives permission from the Tax Administrator. The Tax Administrator shall
approve such a request for good cause shown.

(2) An election to discontinue filing consolidated municipal income tax returns under this
section must be made in the first year following the last year of a five-year consolidated
municipal income tax return election period in effect under division (B)(1) of this section. The
election to discontinue filing a consolidated municipal income tax return is binding for a five-year
period beginning with the first taxable year of the election.

(3) An election made under division (B)(1) or (2) of this section is binding on all members of
the affiliated group of corporations subject to a municipal income tax.

(4) When a taxpayer makes the election allowed under section 718.80 of the Revised Code,
a valid election made by a taxpayer under division (B)(1) or (2} of this section is binding upon
the tax commissioner for the remainder of the five-year period.

)] When an election made under section 718.80 of the Revised Code is terminated, a valid
election made under section 718.86 of the Revised Code is binding upon the Tax Administrator
for the remainder of the five-year period.

36




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(C) A taxpayer that is a member of an affiliated group of corporations that filed a
consolidated federal income tax return for a taxable year shall file a consolidated municipal
income tax return for that taxable year if the Tax Administrator determines, by a preponderance
of the evidence, that intercompany transactions have not been conducted at arm's length and
that there has been a distortive shifting of income or expenses with regard to allocation of net
profits to the municipal corporation. A taxpayer that is required to file a consolidated municipal
income tax return for a taxable year shall file a consolidated municipal income tax return for all
subsequent taxable years unless the taxpayer requests and receives written permission from
the Tax Administrator to file a separate return or a taxpayer has experienced a change in

circumstances.

(D) A taxpayer shall prepare a consolidated municipal income tax return in the same
manner as is required under the United States Department of Treasury regulations that
prescribe procedures for the preparation of the consolidated federal income tax return required
to be filed by the common parent of the affiliated group of which the taxpayer is a member.

(E) {1) Except as otherwise provided in divisions (E)(2), (3), and (4) of this section,
corporations that file a consolidated municipal Income tax return shall compute adjusted federal
taxable income, as defined in section 162.03(1) of this Chapter, by substituting "consolidated
federal taxable income" for "federal taxable income™ wherever "federal taxable income" appears
in that division and by substituting "an affiliated group of corporation's" for "a C corporation's”
wherever "a C corporation's” appears in that division.

(2) No corporation filing a consoclidated municipal income tax return shall make any
adjustment otherwise required under division (1) of 162.03 of this Chapter to the extent that the
item of income or deduction otherwise subject to the adjustment has been eliminated or

consolidated in the computation of consolidated federal taxable income.

(3) if the net profit or loss of a pass-through entity having at least eighty percent
(80%) of the value of its ownership interest owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by an
affiliated group of corporations is included in that affiliated group’s consolidated federal taxable
income for a taxable year, the corporation filing a consolidated municipal income tax return shall
do one of the following with respect to that pass-through entity's net profit or loss for that taxable
year.

(a) Exclude the pass-through entity's net profit or loss from the consolidated
federal taxable income of the affiliated group and, for the purpose of making the computations
required in section 162.062 of this Chapter, exclude the property, payroll, and gross receipts of
the pass-through entity in the computation of the affiliated group's net profit sitused to a
municipal corporation. If the entity's net profit or loss is so excluded, the entity shall be subject
to taxation as a separate taxpayer on the basis of the entity's net profits that would otherwise be
included in the consolidated federal taxable income of the affiliated group.

37




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(b) Include the pass-through entity's net profit or loss in the consolidated
federal taxable income of the affiliated group and, for the purpose of making the computations
required in section 162.062 of this Chapter, include the property, payroll, and gross receipts of
the pass-through entity in the computation of the affiliated group's net profit sitused to a
municipal corporation. If the entity's net profit or loss is so included, the entity shall not be
subject to taxation as a separate taxpayer on the basis of the entity's net profits that are
included in the consolidated federal taxable income of the affiliated group.

4) If the net profit or loss of a pass-through entity having less than eighty percent
(80%) of the value of its ownership interest owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by an
affiliated group of corporations is included in that affiliated group's consolidated federal taxable

income for a taxable year, all of the following shall apply:

{(a) The corporation filing the consolidated municipal income tax return shall
exclude the pass-through entity's net profit or loss from the consolidated federal taxable income
of the affiliated group and, for the purposes of making the computations required in section
162.082 of this Chapter, exclude the property, payroll, and gross receipts of the pass-through
entity in the computation of the affiliated group's net profit sitused to a municipal corporation;

(b} The pass-through entity shall be subject to municipal income taxation as
a separate taxpayer in accordance with this Chapter on the basis of the entity's net profits that
would otherwise be included in the consoclidated federal taxable income of the affiliated group.

F Corporations filing a consolidated municipal income tax return shall make the
computations required under section 162.062 of this Chapter by substituting "consolidated
federal taxable income attributable to” for "net profit from" wherever "net profit from" appears in
that section and by substituting "affiliated group of corporations” for “taxpayer" wherever
"taxpayer" appears in that section.

(G) Each corporation filing a consolidated municipal income tax return is jointly and
severally liable for any tax, interest, penalties, fines, charges, or other amounts imposed by a
municipal corporation in accordance with this Chapter on the corporation, an affiliated group of
which the corporation Is a member for any portion of the taxable year, or any one or more
members of such an affiliated group.

(H Corporations and their affiliates that made an election or entered into an agreement
with a municipal corporation before January 1, 2016, to file a consolidated or combined tax
return with such municipal corporation may continue to file consolidated or combined tax returns
in accordance with such election or agreement for taxable years beginning on and after January

1, 2016.
(Source: ORC 718.08)

162.064 TAX CREDIT FOR BUSINESSES THAT FOSTER NEW JOBS IN OHIO

38




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

The Municipality, by Ordinance, may grant a refundable or nonrefundable credit against its tax
on income to a taxpayer to foster job creation in the Municipality. If a credit is granted under this
section, it shall be measured as a percentage of the new income tax revenue the Municipality
derives from new employees of the taxpayer and shall be for a term not exceeding fifteen years.
Before the Municipality passes an ordinance granting a credit, the Municipality and the taxpayer
shall enter into an agreement specifying all the conditions of the credit.

(Source: ORC 718.15)
162.065 TAX CREDITS TO FOSTER JOB RETENTION

The Municipality, by Ordinance, may grant a refundable or nonrefundable credit against its tax
on income to a taxpayer for the purpose of fostering job retention in the Municipality. If a credit
is granted under this section, it shall be measured as a percentage of the income tax revenue
the Municipality derives from the retained employees of the taxpayer, and shall be for a term not
exceeding fifteen years. Before the Municipality passes an ordinance allowing such a credit, the
Municipality and the taxpayer shall enter into an agreement specifying all the conditions of the

credit.

(Source; ORC 718.157)
162.07 DECLARATION OF ESTIMATED TAX.

{A) As used in this section:

(1) “Estimated taxes" means the amount that the taxpayer reascnably estimates to be
the taxpayer's tax liability for the Municipality's income tax for the current taxable year.

(2) "Tax liahility" means the total taxes due to the Municipality for the taxabie vear, after
allowing any credit to which the taxpayer is entifled, and after applying any estimated tax
payment, withholding payment, or credit from another taxable year.

(B) (1) Every taxpayer shall make a declaration of estimated taxes for the current taxable
year, on the form prescribed by the Tax Administrator, if the amount payable as estimated taxes
is at least two hundred dollars ($200.00). For the purposes of this section:

(@) Taxes withheld from the Municipality from qualifying wages shall be considered
as paid to the municipal corporation for which the taxes were withheld in equal amounts on each
payment date unless the taxpayer establishes the dates on which all amounts were actually
withheld, in which case they shall be considered as paid on the dates on which the amounts

were gctually withheld.

(b)  An overpayment of tax applied as a credit to a subsequent taxable year is

35




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

deemed to be paid on the date of the postmark stamped on the cover in which the payment is
mailed or, if the payment is made by electronic funds transfer, the date the payment is
submitted. As used in this division, "date of the postmark” means, in the event there is more
than one date on the cover, the earliest date imprinted on the cover by the postal service.

(2) Taxpayers filing joint returns shall file joint declarations of estimated taxes. A
taxpayer may amend a declaration under rules prescribed by the Tax Administrator. A taxpayer
having a taxable year of less than twelve months shall make a declaration under rules

prescribed by the Tax Administrator.

(3) The declaration of estimated taxes shall be filed on or before the date prescribed for
the filing of municipal income tax returns under division (G) of section 162.091 of this Chapter or
on or before the fifteenth (15™) day of the fourth month of the first taxable year after the taxpayer

becomes subject to tax for the first time.

(4) Taxpayers reporting on a fiscal year basis shall file a declaration on or before the
fifteenth (15™) day of the fourth month after the beginning of each fiscal year or period.

(5) The original declaration or anﬂ; subsequent amendment may be increased or
decreased on or before any subsequent quarterly payment day as provided in this section.

(C)(1)  The required portion of the tax liabftity for the taxable year that shall be paid through
estimated taxes made payable to the Municipality or Tax Administrator, including the application
of tax refunds to estimated taxes and withholding on or before the applicable payment date,

shall be as follows:

(a) On or before the fifteenth (1 5™ day of the fourth month after the beginning of the
taxable year, twenty-two and one-half percent (22.5%) of the tax liability for the taxable year,

(b) On or before the fifteenth (15" day of the sixth month after the beginning of the
taxable year, forty-five percent (45%) of the tax liability for the taxable year;

(c) On or before the fifteenth day of the ninth month after the beginning of the
taxable year, sixty-seven and one-half percent (67.5%) of the tax liability for the taxable year;

(d) For an individual, on or before the fifteenth (15™ day of the first month of the
following taxable year, ninety percent (90%) of the tax liability for the taxable year. For a person
other than an individual, on or before the fifteenth (15") day of the twelfth month of the taxable

year, ninety percent (90%) of the tax liability for the taxable year.

(2) When an amended declaration has been filed, the unpaid balance shown due on the
amended declaration shall be paid in equal installments on or before the remaining payment

dates.

40




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(3) On or before the fifteenth (15" day of the fourth month of the year following that for
which the declaration or amended declaration was filed, an annual return shall be filed and any
balance which may be due shall be paid with the return in accordance with section 162.091 of

this Chapter.

(DX1) In the case of any underpayment of any portion of a tax liability, penalty and interest
may be imposed pursuant to section 162.10 of this Chapter wupon the amount of
underpayment for the period of underpayment, uniess the underpayment is due to reasonable
cause as described in division (E) of this section. The amount of the underpayment shall he

determined as follows:

(a) For the first payment of estimated taxes each year, twenty-two and one-half
percent (22.5%) of the tax liability, less the amount of taxes paid by the date prescribed for that

payment;

(b) For the second payment of estimated taxes each year, forty-five percent (45%) of
the tax liability, less the amount of taxes paid by the date prescribed for that payment;

(¢) For the third payment of estimated taxes each year, sixty-seven and one-half
percent (67.5%) of the tax liability, less the amount of taxes paid by the date prescribed for that

payment;

{d) For the fourth payment of estimated taxes each year, ninety percent (90%,) of the
tax liability, less the amount of taxes paid by the date prescribed for that payment.

(2) The period of the underpayment shall run from the day the estimated payment was
required to be made to the date on which the payment is made. For purposes of this section, a
payment of estimated taxes on or before any payment date shall be considered a payment of
any previous underpayment only to the extent the payment of estimated taxes exceeds the
amount of the payment presently required to be paid fo avoid any penalty.

(E)  An underpayment of any portion of tax liability determined under division (D) of this
section shall be due to reasonable cause and the penalty imposed by this section shall not be
added to the taxes for the taxable year if any of the following apply:

(1) The amount of estimated taxes that were paid equals at least ninety percent (90%) of
the tax liability for the current taxable year, determined by annualizing the income received
during the year up to the end of the month immediately preceding the month in which the

payment is due.

(2) The amount of estimated taxes that were paid equals at least one hundred percent
(100%) of the tax liahility shown on the return of the taxpayer for the preceding taxable year,
provided that the immediately preceding taxable year reflected a period of twelve months and

41




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

the taxpayer filed a return with the municipal corporation under section 162.091 of this Chapter
for that year.

(3) The taxpayer is an individual who resides in the Municipality but was not
domiciled there on the first day of January of the calendar year that includes the first day of the

taxable year.

(Ord.90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.08 CREDIT FOR TAX PAID

162.081 CREDIT FOR TAX PAID TO ANOTHER MUNICIPALITY

(A) Except as otherwise provided in division (B) of this section, when taxable income of a
resident of the Municipality is subject to a municipal income tax in another municipality on the
same income taxable under this Chapter, such resident shall be allowed a credit of the amount
of income tax paid on such taxable income to such other municipality, equal to twenty-five
percent (25%) of the Municipal income tax in excess of one half of one percent (0.50%).

(B) When the taxable income of a resident of the Municipality is subject to a municipal income
tax in the Medina Montville Joint Economic Development District on the same income taxable
under this Chapter, such resident shall be allowed a credit of the full amount of income tax paid
on such taxable income to the Medina Montville Joint Economic Development District. In no
event shall the credit exceed the tax due the Municipality under this Chapter on such taxable

income.

162.082 REFUNDABLE CREDIT FOR QUALIFYING LOSS.

(A) As used in this section:
(1)(@) "Nonqualified deferred compensation plan" means a compensation plan described

in section 3121(v)(2)(C) of the Internal Revenue Code.
(b) "Qualifying loss" means the amount of compensation atfributable to a taxpayer's

nonqualified deferred compensation plan, less the receipt of money and property attributable to
distributions from the nonqualified deferred compensation plan. Full loss is sustained if no
distribution of money and property is made by the nonqualified deferred compensation plan.
The taxpayer sustains a qualifying loss only in the taxable year in which the taxpayer receives
the final distribution of money and property pursuant o that nonqualified deferred compensation
plan.
(e)(i) "Qualifying tax rate" means the applicable tax rate for the taxable year for the
which the taxpayer paid income tax to the Municipality with respect to any portion of the total
amount of compensation the payment of which is deferred pursuant to a nonqualified deferred
compensation plan.

(i) If different tax rates applied for different taxable years, then the "qualifying tax
rate" is a weighted average of those different tax rates. The weighted average shall be based
upon the tax paid to the Municipality each year with respect to the nonqualified deferred

42




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

compensation plan.
(d) "Refundable credit” means the amount of the Municipality income tax that was pad on

the non-distributed portion, if any, of a nonqualified deferred compensation plan.

(2) If, in addition to Municipality, a taxpayer has paid tax to other municipal corporations
with respect to the nonqualified deferred compensation plan, the amount of the credit that a
taxpayer may claim from each municipal corporation shall be calculated on the basis of each
municipal corporation's proportionate share of the total municipal corporation income tax paid by
the taxpayer fo all municipal corporations with respect to the nonqualified deferred

compensation plan.
(3) In no case shall the amount of the credit allowed under this section exceed the

cumulative income tax that a taxpayer has paid to the Municipality for all taxable years with

respect to the nonqualified deferred compensation plan.
{4) The credit allowed under this section is allowed only to the extent the taxpayer's

gualifying loss is aftributable to:
(a) The insolvency or bankruptcy of the employer who had established the

nongualified deferred compensation plan; or
(b) The employee's failure or inability to satisfy all of the employer's terms and

conditions necessary to receive the nonqualified deferred compensation.

162.083 CREDI!T FOR PERSON WORKING IN JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT OR ZONE

Except as otherwise provided in section 162.081 (B) of this Chapter, the Municipality shall grant
a credit against its tax on income to a resident of the Municipality who works in a joint economic
development zone created under section 715.691 or a joint economic development district
created under section 715.70, 715.71, or 715.72 of the Ohio Revised Code to the same extent
that it grants a credit against its tax on income to its residents who are employed in another
municipal corporation, pursuant to section 162.081 of this Chapter.

(Source: ORC 718.16)

162.084 CREDIT FOR TAX BEYOND STATUTE FOR OBTAINING REFUND

(A) Income tax that has been deposited or paid to the Municipality, but should have been
deposited or paid to another municipal corporation, is allowable by the Municipality as a refund,
but is subject to the three-year limitation on refunds as provided in section 162.096 of this

Chapter.

(B) Income tax that should have been deposited or paid to the Municipality, but was
deposited or paid to another municipal corporation, shall be subject to collection and recovery
by the Municipality. To the extent a refund of such tax or withholding is barred by the limitation
on refunds as provided in section 162.096, the Municipality will allow a non-refundable credit
equal to the tax or withholding paid to the other municipality against the income tax the
Municipality claims is due. If the Municipality’s tax rate is higher, the tax representing the net

43




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

difference of the tax rates is also subject to collection by the Municipality, along with any penaity
and interest aceruing during the period of nonpayment.

(C) No carryforward of credit will be permitted when the overpayment is beyond the three-
year limitation for refunding of same as provided in section 162.096 of this Chapter.

D) Nothing in this section requires a Municipality to allow credit for tax paid to another
municipal corporation if the Municipality has reduced credit for tax paid to another municipal
corporation. section 162.081 of this Chapter regarding any limitation on credit shall prevail.

(Source; ORC 718.121)
162.09 ANNUAL RETURN
162.091 RETURN AND PAYMENT OF TAX

(A)(1)  An annual Municipality income tax return shall be completed and filed by every

individual-taxpayer eighteen (18) years of age or older and any taxpayer that is not an individual
for each taxable year for which the taxpayer is subject to the tax, whether or not a tax is due

thereon.

(2) The Tax Administrator may accept on behalf of all nonresident individual taxpayers a
return filed by an employer, agent of an employer, or other payer under subsection 162.051 of
this Chapter when the nonresident individual taxpayer's sole income subject to the tax is the
qualifying wages reported by the employer, agent of an employer, or other payer, and no
additional tax is due to the Municipality.

(B) if an individual is deceased, any return or notice required of that individual shall be
completed and filed by that decedent's executor, administrator, or other person charged with the
property of that decedent.

(C) If an individual is unable to complete and file a return or notice required by the Municipality
in accordance with this Chapter, the return or notice required of that individual shall be
completed and filed by the individual's duly authorized agent, guardian, conservator, fiduciary,
or other person charged with the care of the person or property of that individual.

(D} Returns or notices required of an estate or a trust shall be completed and filed by the
fiduciary of the estate or trust.  (E) The Municipality shall permit spouses to file a joint return.
(FY1) Each return required to be filed under this section shail contain the signature of the
taxpayer or the taxpayer's duly authorized agent and of the person who prepared the return for
the taxpayer, and shall include the taxpayer's social security number or faxpayer identification
number. Each return shall be verified by a declaration under penalty of perjury.

(2) The Tax Administrator shall require a taxpayer who is an individual is required to
include, with each annual return and amended return, copies of the following documents: all of
the taxpayer's Internal Revenue Service form W-2, "Wage and Tax Statements," including all
information reported on the taxpayer's federal W-2, as well as taxable wages reported or
withheld for any municipal corporation; the taxpayer's Internal Revenue Service form 1040 or, in
the case of a return or request required by a qualified municipal corporation, Chio form IT 1040;
and, with respect to an amended tax return, any other documentation necessary to support the

44




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

adjustments made in the amended return. An individual taxpayer who files the annual return
required by this section electronically is not required to provide paper copies of any of the
foregoing to the Tax Administrator unless the Tax Administrator requests such copies after the
return has been filed.

(3) The Tax Administrator may require a taxpayer that is not an individual to include, with
each annual net profit return, amended net profit return, or request for refund required under this
section, copies of only the following documents: the taxpayer's Internal Revenue Service form
1041, form 1065, form 1120, form 1120-REIT, form 1120F, or form 11208, and, with respect o
an amended tax return or refund request, any other documentation necessary to support the
refund request or the adjustments made in the amended return.

(4) A taxpayer that is not an individual and that files an annual net profit return electronically
through the Ohio Business Gateway or in some other manner shall either mail the documents
required under this division to the Tax Administrator at the time of filing or, if electronic
submission is available, submit the documents electronically through the Ohio Business
Gateway. ]

{5) After a taxpayer files a tax return, the Tax Administrator may request, and the taxpayer

shall provide, any information, statements, or documents required by the Municipality to
determine and verify the taxpayer's municipal income tax liability. The requirements imposed
under division (F) of this section apply regardiess of whether the taxpayer files on a generic
form or on a form prescribed by the Tax Administrator.
(GX{1)a) Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, each individual income tax return
required to be filed under this section shall be completed and filed as required by the Tax
Administrator on or before the date prescribed for the filing of state individual income tax returns
under division (G) of section 5747.08 of the Ohio Revised Code. The taxpayer shall complete
and file the return or notice on forms prescribed by the Tax Administrator or on generic forms,
together with remittance made payable to the Municipality.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, each annual net profit income tax
return required to be filed under this section by a taxpayer that is not an individual shall be
completed and filed as required by the tax administrator on or before the fitteenth (15™ day of
the fourth month following the end of the taxpayer's taxable year. The taxpayer shall compiete .
and file the return or notice on forms prescribed by the Tax Administrator or on generic forms,
together with remittance made payable to the Municipality. No remittance is required if the net
amount due is ten dollars ($10) or less.

{2) Any taxpayer that has duly requested an automatic six-month extension for filing the
taxpayer's federal income tax return shall automatically receive an extension for the filing of the
Municipality's income tax return. The extended due date of the Municipality's income tax return
shall be the fifteenth (15™) day of the tenth month after the last day of the taxable year to which
the return relates. For tax years ending on or after January 1, 2023, the extended due date of
Municipality's income tax return for a taxpayer that is not an individual shail be the 15" day of
the eleventh month after the last day of the taxable year to which the return relates. An
extension of time to file under this division is not an extension of the time to pay any tax due
unless the Tax Administrator grants an extension of that date.

(@) A copy of the federal extension request shall be included with the filing of the
Municipality's income tax return.

(b) A taxpayer that has not requested or received a six-month extension for filing the
taxpayer's federal income return may submit a written request that the Tax Administrator grant

45




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

the taxpayer a six-month extension of the date for filing the taxpayer's Municipality income tax
return, If the request is received by the Tax Administrator on or before the date the Municipality
income tax return is due, the Tax Administrator shall grant the taxpayer's requested extension.

(3) If the state tax commissioner extends for all taxpayers the date for filing state income tax
returns under division (G) of section 5474.08 of the Ohio Revised Code, a taxpayer shall
automatically receive an extension for the filing of the Municipality's income tax return. The
extended due date of the Municipaiity's income tax return shall be the same as the extended
due date of the state income tax return.

(4) If the Tax Administrator considers it necessary in order o ensure the payment of the tax
imposed by the Municipality, the Tax Administrator may require taxpayers to file returns and
make paymenis otherwise than as provided in this section, including taxpayers not otherwise
required to file annual returns.

(5) To the extent that any provision in this division conflicts with any provision in section
162.092 of this Chapter, the provision in section 162.092 of this Chapter prevails.

(HX1) For taxable years beginning after 2015, the Municipality shall not require a taxpayer to
remit tax with respect to net profits if the amount due is ten dollars ($10) or less.

(2) Any taxpayer not required to remit tax to the Municipality for a taxable year pursuant to
division (H)(1) of this section shall file with the Municipality an annual net profit return under
division (F)(3) and (4) of this section unless the provisions of division (H)(3) apply.

(3)(a) A person may notify the Tax Administrator that the person does not expect to be a
taxpayer subject to the Municipality's income tax ordinance for a taxable year if both the
following apply:

() The person was required to file a tax return with the Municipality for the
immediately preceding taxable year because the person performed services at a worksite

location within the Municipality.
(i) The person no longer provides services in the Municipality and does not expect to

be subject to Municipality income tax for the taxable year.

(b} The person shall provide the notice in a signed affidavit that briefly explains the
person's circumstances, including the location of the previous worksite location and the last date
on which the person performed services or made any sales within the Municipality. The affidavit
shall also include the following statement: "The affiant has no plans to perform any services
within the Municipality, make any sales in the Municipality, or otherwise become subject to the
tax levied by the Municipality during the taxable year. If the affiant does become subject to the
tax levied by the Municipality for the taxable year, the affiant agrees to be considered a taxpayer
and to properly comply as a taxpayer with the Municipality income tax ordinance and rules and
regulations." The person shall sign the affidavit under penalty of perjury.

(c) If a person submits an affidavit described in division (H}(3)(b), the Tax Administrator
shall not require the person to file a tax return for the taxable year unless the Tax Administrator
possesses information that conflicts with the affidavit or if the circumstances described in the

affidavit change.
() Nothing in division (H)(3) of this section prohibits the Tax Administrator from

performing an audit of the person.
() i a payment under this chapter is made by electronic funds transfer, the payment shall be

considered to be made on the date of the time-stamp assigned by the first electronic system

receiving that payment.
(J) Taxes withheld for the Municipality by an employer, the agent of an employer, or other

46




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

payer as described in section 162.051 of this Chapter shall be allowed to the taxpayer as credits
against payment of the tax imposed on the taxpayer unless the amounts withheld were not
remitted to the Municipality and the recipient colluded with the employer, agent, or other payer
in connection with the failure to remit the amounts withheld.

(K) Each return required by the Municipality to be filed in accordance with this section shall
include a box that the taxpayer may check to authorize another person, including a fax return
preparer who prepared the return, to communicate with the Tax Administrator about matters
pertaining to the return.

(L)  The Tax Administrator of the Municipality shall accept for filing a generic form of any
income tax return, report, or document required by the Municipality in accordance with this
Chapter, provided that the generic form, once completed and filed, contains all of the
information required by ordinances, resolutions, or rules and regulations adopted by the
Municipality or Tax Administrator, and provided that the taxpayer or tax return preparer filing the
generic form otherwise complies with the provisions of this Chapter/ordinance and of the
Municipality's Ordinance, resolution, or rules and regulations governing the filing of returns,
reports, or documents.

(i) When income tax returns, reporis, or other documents require the signature of a tax
return preparer, the Tax Administrator shall accept a facsimile of such a signature in lieu of a

manual signature.
(N)(1) As used in this division, "worksite location” has the same meaning as in section 162.052

of this Chapler.

(2) A person may notify a tax administrator that the person does not expect to be a
taxpayer with respect to the municipal corporation for a taxable year if both of the following
conditions apply:

(a) The person was required to file a tax return with the municipal corporation for the
immediately preceding taxable year because the person performed services at a worksite
location within the municipal corporation, and the person has filed all appropriate and required
returns and remitted all applicable income tax and withholding payments as provided by this
Chapter. The tax administrator is not required to accept an affidavit from a taxpayer who has
not complied with the provisions of this Chapter.

(b) The person no longer provides services in the municipal corporation, and does not
expect to be subject to the municipal corporation's income tax for the taxable year. The person
shall provide the notice in a signed affidavit that briefly explains the person's circumstances,
including the location of the previous worksite iocation and the last date on which the person
performed services or made any sales within the municipal corporation. The affidavit also shall
include the following statement: "The affiant has no plans to perform any services within the
municipal corporation, make any sales in the municipal corporation, or otherwise become
subject to the tax levied by the municipal corporation during the taxable year. If the affiant does
become subject to the tax levied by the municipal corporation for the taxable year, the affiant
agrees to be considered a taxpayer and to properly register as a faxpayer with the municipal
corporation, if such a registration is required by the municipal corporation's resolutions,
ordinances, or rules." The person shall sign the affidavit under penalty of perjury.

(c) If a person submits an affidavit described in division (N){(2) of this section, the tax
administrator shall not require the person to file any tax return for the taxable year unless the tax
administrator possesses information that conflicts with the affidavit or if the circumstances
described in the affidavit change, or the taxpayer has engaged in activity which results in work

47




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

being performed, services provided, sales made, or other activity that results in municipal
taxable income reportable to the Municipality in the taxable year. It shall be the responsibility of
the taxpayer to comply with the provisions of this Chapter relating to the reporting and filing of
municipal taxable income on an annual municipal income tax return, even if an affidavit has
been filed with the tax administrator for the taxable year. Nothing in division (N) of this section
prohibits the tax administrator from performing an audit of the person.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.092 RETURN AND PAYMENT OF TAX; INDIVIDUALS SERVING IN
COMBAT ZONE.

(A) Each member of the national guard of any state and each member of a reserve
component of the armed forces of the United States called to active duty pursuant to an
executive order issued by the President of the United States or an act of the Congress
of the United States, and each civilian serving as support personnel in a combat zone or
contingency operation in support of the armed forces, may apply to the Tax
Administrator of the Municipality for both an extension of time for filing of the return and
an extension of time for payment of taxes required by the Municipality in accordance
with this Chapter during the period of the member's or civilian's duty service and for one
hundred eighty (180) days thereafter. The application shall be filed on or before the one
hundred eightieth day after the member's or civilian's duty terminates. An applicant shali
provide such evidence as the Tax Administrator considers necessary to demonstrate
eligibility for the extension.

(B) (1) If the Tax Administrator ascertains that an applicant is qualified for an extension
under this section, the Tax Administrator shall enter into a contract with the applicant for
the payment of the tax in installments that begin on the one hundred eighty-first day
after the applicant's active duty or service terminates. The Tax Administrator may
prescribe such contract terms as the Tax Administrator considers appropriate.

(2)  If the Tax Administrator determines that an applicant is qualified for an
extension under this section, the applicant shall neither be required to file any return,
report, or other tax document nor be required to pay any fax otherwise due to the
Municipality before the one hundred eighty-first day after the applicant's active duty or
service terminates.

(3) Taxes paid pursuant to a contract entered into under division (B)(1) of this
section are not delinquent. The Tax Administrator shall not require any payments of
penalties or interest in connection with those taxes for the extension period.

(C)(1)  Nothing in this division denies to any person described in this division the
application of divisions (A) and (B) of this section.

(2)(@) A qualifying taxpayer who is eligible for an extension under the Internal
Revenue Code shall receive both an extension of time in which to file any return, report,
or other tax document and an extension of time in which to make any payment of taxes
required by the Municipality in accordance with this Chapter/ordinance. The length of

48




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

any extension granted under division (C)(2)(a) of this section shall be equal to the
length of the corresponding extension that the taxpayer receives under the Internal
Revenue Code. As used in this section, "qualifying taxpayer" means a member of the
national guard or a member of a reserve component of the armed forces of the United
States called to active duty pursuant to either an executive order issued by the
President of the United States or an act of the Congress of the United States, or a
civilian serving as support personnel in a combat zone or contingency operation in
support of the armed forces.

(b) Taxes whose payment is extended in accordance with division (C)(2)(a) of
this section are not delinquent during the extension period. Such taxes become
delinquent on the first day after the expiration of the extension period if the taxes are not
paid prior to that date. The Tax Administrator shall not require any payment of penaities
or interest in connection with those taxes for the extension period. The Tax
Administrator shall not include any period of extension granted under division (C)(2)(a)
of this section in calculating the penalty or interest due on any unpaid tax.

(D) For each taxable year to which division (A), (B}, or (C) of this section applies fo a
taxpayer, the provisions of divisions (B)(2) and (3) or (C) of this section, as applicable,
apply to the spouse of that taxpayer if the filing status of the spouse and the taxpayer is
married filing jointly for that year.

(Ord.90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.093 USE OF OHIO BUSINESS GATEWAY; TYPES OF FILINGS AUTHORIZED.

(A) Any taxpayer subject to municipal income taxation with respect to the taxpayer's net
profit from a business or profession may fite any municipal income tax return or, estimated
municipal income tax return, or extension for filing a municipal income tax return, and may make
payment of amounts shown to be due on such returns, by using the Ohio Business Gateway.

(B) Any employer, agent of an employer, or other payer may report the amount of municipal
income tax withheld from qualifying wages, and may make remittance of such amounts, by
using the Ohio Business Gateway.

(C) Nothing in this section affects the due dates for filing employer withholding tax returns or
deposit of any required tax.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.094 EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE

(A) Any taxpayer that has duly requested an automatic six-month extension for filing the
taxpayer's federal income tax return shall automatically receive an extension for the filing of a
municipal income tax return. The extended due date of the municipal income tax return shall be
the fifteenth day of the tenth month after the last day of the taxable year to which the refurn

relates.

(B) Any taxpayer that qualifies for an automatic federal extension for a period other than six-
months for filing the taxpayers federal income tax refurn shall automatically receive an

49




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

extension for the filing of a municipal income tax return. The extended due date of the
municipal income tax return shall be the same as that of the extended federal income tax return.

(C) A taxpayer that has not requested or received a six-month extension for filing the
taxpayer's federal income tax return may request that the tax administrator grant the taxpayer a
six-month extension of the date for filing the taxpayer's municipal income tax return. If the
request is received by the tax administrator on or before the date the municipal income tax
return is due, the tax administrator shall grant the taxpayer's requested extension.

(D)  An extension of time to file under this Chapter is not an extension of the time to pay any
tax due unless the Tax Administrator grants an extension of that date.

(E) If the State Tax Commissioner extends for all taxpayers the date for filing state income
tax returns under division (G) of section 5747.08 of the Ohio Revised Code, a taxpayer shall
automatically receive an extension for the filing of a municipal income tax return. The extended
due date of the municipal income tax return shall be the same as the extended due date of the

state income tax return.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.095 AMENDED RETURNS

(A) (1) A taxpayer shall file an amended return with the Tax Administrator in such form as the
Tax Administrator requires if any of the facts, figures, computations, or attachments required in
the taxpayer's annual return to determine the tax due levied by the Municipality in accordance
with this Chapter must be altered.

(2) Within sixty (60) days after the final determination of any federal or state tax liability
affecting the taxpayer's municipal tax liability, that taxpayer shall make and file an amended
municipal retum showing income subject to the municipal income tax based upon such final
determination of federal or state tax liability, and pay any additional municipal income tax shown
due thereon or make a claim for refund of any overpayment, unless the tax or overpayment is
ten dollars ($10.00) or less.

(3) If a taxpayer intends to file an amended consolidated municipal income tax return, or to
amend its type of return from a separate return to a consolidated return, based on the
taxpayer's consolidated federal income tax return, the taxpayer shall notify the Tax

Administrator before filing the amended return.

(B)(1) In the case of an underpayment, the amended return shall be accompanied by payment
of any combined additional tax due together with any penalty and interest thereon. If the
combined tax shown to be due is ten dollars ($10.00) or less, such amount need not accompany

the amended return. Except as provided under division (B)(2) of this section, the amended
return shall not reopen those facts, figures, computations, or attachments from a previously filed
return that are not affected, either directly or indirectly, by the adjustment to the taxpayer's
federal or state income tax return unless the applicable statute of limitations for civil actions or
prosecutions under section 162.19 of this Chapter has not expired for a previously filed return.

(2) The additional tax to be paid shall not exceed the amount of tax that would be due if all
facts, figures, computations, and attachments were reopened.

50




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(C)(1) In the case of an overpayment, a request for refund may be filed under this division
within the period prescribed by division (A)(2) of this section for filing the amended return even
if it is filed beyond the period prescribed in that division if it otherwise conforms to the
requirements of that division. If the amount of the refund is ten dollars ($10.00) or less, no
refund need be paid by the Municipality to the taxpayer. Except as set forth in division (C)(2) of
this section, a request filed under this division shall claim refund of overpayments resulting from
alterations to only those facts, figures, computations, or attachments required in the taxpayer's
annual return that are affected, either directly or indirectly, by the adjustment to the taxpayer's
federal or state income tax return unless it is also filed within the time prescribed in section
162.096 of this Chapter. Except as set forth in division (C)(2) of this section, the request shall
not reopen those facts, figures, computations, or attachments that are not affected, either
directly or indirectly, by the adjustment to the taxpayer's federal or state income tax return.

(2) The amount to be refunded shall not exceed the amount of refund that would be due if
all facts, figures, computations, and attachments were reopened.

{Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.096 REFUNDS

N\ Upon receipt of a request for a refund, the Tax Administrator of the Municipality, in
accordance with this section, shall refund to employers, agents of employers, other payers, or
taxpayers, with respect to any income or withholding tax levied by the Municipality:

(1) Overpayments of more than ten dollars ($10.00);

(2) Amounts paid erroneously if the refund requested exceeds ten dollars ($10.00).

(B)(1) Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, returns setting forth a request for refund
shall be filed with the Tax Administrator, within three years after the tax was due or paid,
whichever is later. Any documentation that substantiates the taxpayer’s claim for a refund must
be included with the return filing. Failure to remit all documentation, including schedules, other
municipal income tax returns, or other supporting documentation necessary to verify credits,
income, losses or other pertinent factors on the return will cause delay in processing, and / or

disallowance of undocumented credits or losses.

(2) On filing of the refund request, the Tax Administrator shall determine the amount of
refund due and certify such amount to the appropriate municipat corporation official for payment.
Except as provided in division (B)(3) of this section, the administrator shall issue an assessment
to any taxpayer whose request for refund is fully or partially denied. The assessment shall state
the amount of the refund that was denied, the reasons for the denial, and instructions for

appealing the assessment.

(3) If a Tax Administrator denies in whole or in part a refund request included within the
taxpayer's originally filed annual income tax return, the Tax Administrator shall notify the
taxpayer, in writing, of the amount of the refund that was denied, the reasons for the denial, and
instructions for requesting an assessment that may be appealed under section 162.18 of this

Chapter.

51




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(C) A request for a refund that is received after the last day for filing specified in division (B)
of this section shall be considered to have been filed in a timely manner if any of the following

situations exist:

(1) The request is delivered by the postal service, and the earfiest postal service postmark
on the cover in which the request is enclosed is not later than the last day for filing the request.

(2) The request is delfivered by the postal service, the only postmark on the cover in which
the request is enclosed was affixed by a private postal meter, the date of that postmark is not
later than the last day for filing the request, and the request is received within seven (7) days of

such last day.

(3) The request is delivered by the postal service, no postmark date was affixed to the cover
in which the request is enclosed or the date of the postmark so affixed is not legible, and the
request is received within seven (7) days of the last day for making the request.

(B} Interest shall be allowed and paid on any overpayment by a taxpayer of any municipal
income tax obligation from the date of the overpayment until the date of the refund of the
overpayment, except that if any overpayment is refunded within ninety (80) days after the final
filing date of the annual return or (90) ninety days after the completed return is filed, whichever
is later, no interest shall be allowed on the refund. For the purpose of computing the payment of
interest on amounts overpaid, no amount of tax for any taxable year shall be considered to have
been paid before the date on which the return on which the tax is reported is due, without regard
to any extension of time for filing that return. Interest shall be paid at the interest rate described

in division (A){4) of section 162.10 of this Chapter.

(E) As used in this section, “withholding tax’ has the same meaning as in section 162.10 of
this Chapter.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.10 PENALTY, INTEREST, FEES, AND CHARGES.

(A) As used in this section:

(1) "Applicable law" means this Chapter/ordinance, the resolutions, ordinances, codes,
directives, instructions, and rules adopted by the Municipality provided such resolutions,
ordinances, codes, directives, instructions, and rules impose or directly or indirectly address the
levy, payment, remittance, or filing requirements of the Municipality.

(2) "Federal short-term rate” means the rate of the average market yield on outstanding
marketable obligations of the United States with remaining periods to maturity of three years or
less, as determined under section 1274 of the Internal Revenue Code, for July of the current

year.

(3) ‘“Income tax," "estimated income tax," and "withholding tax" mean any income fax,

52




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

estimated income tax, and withholding tax imposed by the Municipality pursuant to applicable
law, including at any time before January 1, 2016.

(4) "Interest rate as described in division (A) of this section" means the federal short-term
rate, rounded to the nearest whole number percent, plus five percent (5%). The rate shall apply
for the calendar year next following the July of the year in which the federal short-term rate is

determined in accordance with division (A}(2) of this section.

(5) "Return” includes any tax return, report, reconciliation, schedule, and other document
required to be filed with the Tax Administrator or the Municipality by a taxpayer, employer, any
agent of the employer, or any other payer pursuant to applicable law, including at any time

before January 1, 2018.

(6) "Unpaid estimated income tax" means estimated income tax due but not paid by the date
the tax is required to be paid under applicable iaw.

(7) "Unpaid income tax" means income tax due but not paid by the date the income tax is
required to be paid under applicable law.

(8) "Unpaid withholding tax" means withholding tax due but not paid by the date the
withholding tax is required to be paid under applicable [aw.

(9) "Withholding tax" includes amounts an employer, any agent of an employer, or any other
payer did not withhold in whole or in part from an employee's qualifying wages, but that, under
applicable law, the employer, agent, or other payer is required o withhold from an employee's

gualifying wages.
(B)(1) This section shall apply to the following:

(a) Any return required to be filed under applicable law for taxable years beginning on
or after January 1, 2016;

(b) Income tax, estimated income tax, and withholding tax required to be paid or
remitted to the Municipality on or after January 1, 2016.

(2) This section does not apply to returns required to be filed or payments required to be
made before January 1, 2016, regardless of the filing or payment date. Returns required to be
filed or payments required to be made before January 1, 20186, but filed or paid after that date
shall be subject to the ordinances or rules, as adopted from time to time before January 1, 2016,
of the Municipality to which the return is to be filed or the payment is to be made.

(C) Should any taxpayer, employer, agent of the employer, or other payer for any reason fail,
in whole or in part, to make timely and full payment or remittance of income tax, estimated
income tax, or withholding tax or fo file timely with the Municipality any return required to be

53




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

filed, the following penalties and interest shall apply:

(1) Interest shall be imposed at the rate defined as "interest rate as described in division (A)
of this section”, per annum, on all unpaid income tax, unpaid estimated income tax, and unpaid

withholding {ax.

(2) With respect to unpaid income tax and unpaid estimated income tax, the Municipality
may impose a penalty equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the amount not timely paid.

(3) With respect to any unpaid withholding tax, the Municipality may impose a penalty not
exceeding fifty percent (50%) of the amount not timely paid.

(4) With respect to returns other than estimated income tax returns, the Municipality may
impose a penalty of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) for each failure to timely file each return,
regardless of the liability shown thereon for each month, or any fraction thereof, during which
the return remains unfiled regardiess of the liability shown thereon. The penalty shall not

exceed one hundred fifty dollars($150.00) for each failure.

(D) Nothing in this section requires the Municipality to refund or credit any penalty, amount of
interest, charges, or additional fees that the Municipality has properly imposed or collected

before January 1, 2016.

(E) Nothing in this section limits the authority of the Municipality to' abate or partially abate
penalties or interest imposed under this section when the Tax Administrator determines, in the
Tax Administrator's sole discretion, that such abatement is appropriate.  (F) By the 31% day
of October of each year the Municipality shall publish the rate described in division (A) of this
section applicable to the next succeeding calendar year.

(G) The Municipality may impose on the taxpayer, employer, any agent of the employer, or
any other payer the Municipality's post-judgment collection costs and fees, including attorney's

fees.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.11 AUDIT

(A) At or before the commencement of an audif, as defined in section 162.03(3) of this
Chapter, the Tax Administrator shall provide to the taxpayer a written description of the roles of
the Tax Administrator and of the taxpayer during an audit and a statement of the taxpayer's
rights, including any right to obtain a refund of an overpayment of tax. At or before the
commencement of an audit, the Tax Administrator shall inform the taxpayer when the audit is

considered to have commenced.

{B) Except in cases involving suspected criminal activity, the Tax Administrator shall
conduct an audit of a taxpayer during regular business hours and after providing reasonable
notice to the taxpayer. A taxpayer who is unable to comply with a proposed time for an audit on

54




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

the grounds that the proposed time would cause inconvenience or hardship must offer
reasonable alternative dates for the audit.

(C) At all stages of an audit by the Tax Administrator, a taxpayer is entitled to be assisted
or represented by an attorney, accountant, bookkeeper, or other fax practitioner. The Tax
Administrator shall prescribe a form by which a taxpayer may designate such a person to assist
or represent the taxpayer in the conduct of any proceedings resulting from actions by the Tax
Administrator. If a taxpayer has not submitted such a form, the Tax Administrator may accept
other evidence, as the Tax Administrator considers appropriate, that a person is the authorized

representative of a taxpayer.

A taxpayer may refuse to answer any questions asked by the person conducting an
audit until the taxpayer has an opportunity to consult with the taxpayer's attorney, accountant,
bookkeeper, or other tax practitioner. This division does not authorize the practice of law by a

person who is not an attorney.
(D) A taxpayer may record, electronically or otherwise, the audit examination.

(E) The failure of the Tax Administrator to comply with a provision of this section shall
neither excuse a taxpayer from payment of any taxes owed by the taxpayer nor cure any

procedural defect in a taxpayer's case.

(F if the Tax Administrator fails to substantially comply with the provisions of this section,
the Tax Administrator, upon application by the taxpayer, shall excuse the taxpayer from

penalties and interest arising from the audit.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.12 ROUNDING

A person may round to the nearest whole dollar all amounts the person is required to enter on
any return, report, voucher, or other document required under this Chapter. Any fractional part
of a dollar that equals or exceeds fifty cents shall be rounded to the next whole dollar, and any
fractional part of a dollar that is less than fifty cents shall be dropped, rounding down to the
nearest whole dollar. If a person chooses to round amounts entered on a document, the person

shall round all amounts entered on the document.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-28-18.)
162.13 AUTHORITY AND POWERS OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR

162.131 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; ADMINISTRATIVE POWERS OF
THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR

The Tax Administrator has the authority to perform all duties and functions necessary and
appropriate to implement the provisions of this Chapter, including without flimitation:

55




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(A) Exercise all powers whatsoever of an inquisitorial nature as provided by law, including,
the right to inspect books, accounts, records, memorandums, and federal and state income tax
returns, to examine persons under oath, to issue orders or subpoenas for the production of
books, accounts, papers, records, documents, and testimony, to take depositions, to apply to a
court for attachment proceedings as for contempt, to approve vouchers for the fees of officers
and withesses, and to administer oaths; provided that the powers referred to in this division of
this section shall be exercised by the Tax Administrator only in connection with the performance
of the duties respectively assigned to the Tax Administrator under a municipal corporation
income tax ordinance or resolution adopted in accordance with this Chapter;

(B) Appoint agents and prescribe their powers and duties;

(C) Confer and meet with officers of other municipal corporations and states and officers of
the United States on any matters pertaining to their respective official duties as provided by law;

(D) Exercise the authority provided by law, including orders from bankruptcy courts,
relative to remitting or refunding taxes, including penalties and interest thereon, illegally or
erroneously imposed or collected, or for any other reason overpaid, and, in addition, the Tax
Administrator may investigate any claim of overpayment and make a written statement of the
Tax Administrator's findings, and, if the Tax Administrator finds that there has beenh an
overpayment, approve and issue a refund payable to the taxpayer, the taxpayer's assigns, or
legal representative as provided in this Chapter;

(E) Exercise the authority provided by law relative to consenting to the compromise and
settlement of tax claims;

(F) Exercise the authority provided by law relative to the use of alternative apportionment
methods by taxpayers in accordance with section 162.062 of this Chapter,

(3) Make all tax findings, determinations, computations, assessments and orders the Tax
Administrator is by law authorized and required to make and, pursuant to time limitations
provided by law, on the Tax Administrator's own motion, review, redetermine, or correct any tax
findings, determinations, computations, assessments or orders the Tax Administrator has made,
but the Tax Administrator shall not review, redetermine, or correct any tax finding,
determination, computation, assessment or order which the Tax Administrator has made for
which an appeal has been filed with the Local Board of Tax Review or other appropriate
tribunal, unless such appeal or application is withdrawn by the appellant or applicant, is

dismissed, or is otherwise final,
(H) Destroy any or ali returns or other tax documents in the manner authorized by law;

Q) Enter into an agreement with a taxpayer to simplify the withholding obligations described
in section 162.051 of this Chapter.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

56




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

162.132 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; COMPROMISE OF CLAIM AND
PAYMENT OVER TIME

(A) As used in this section, "claim™ means a claim for an amount payable to the Municipality
that arises pursuant to the municipal income tax imposed in accordance with this Chapter.

(B) The Tax Administrator may do either of the following if such action is in the best
interests of the Municipality:

(1) Compromise a claim;

(2) Extend for a reasonable period the time for payment of a claim by agreeing to accept
monthly or other periodic payments, upon such terms and conditions as the Tax Administrator
may require.

(C) The Tax Administrator's rejection of a compromise or payment-over-time agreement
proposed by a person with respect to a claim shall not be appealable.

() A compromise or payment-over-time agreement with respect to a claim shall be binding
upon and shall inure to the benefit of only the parties to the compromise or agreement, and shall
not extinguish or otherwise affect the liability of any other person.

(E) (1) A compromise or payment-over-time agreement with respect to a claim shall be void if
the taxpayer defaults under the compromise or agreement or if the compromise or agreement
was obtained by fraud or by misrepresentation of a material fact. Any amount that was due
before the compromise or agreement and that is unpaid shall remain due, and any penaities or
interest that would have accrued in the absence of the compromise or agreement shall continue

to accrue and be due.

(2) The Tax Administrator shall have sole discretion to determine whether or not penalty,
interest, charges or applicable fees will be assessed through the duration of any compromise or

payment-over-time agreement.

() The Tax Administrator may require that the taxpayer provide detailed financial
documentation and information, in order to determine whether or not a payment-over-time
agreement will be authorized. The taxpayer's failure to provide the necessary and required
information by the Tax Administrator shall preclude consideration of a payment-over-time

agreement.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.133 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; RIGHT TO EXAMINE

(A) The Tax Administrator, or any authorized agent or employee thereof may examine the
books, papers, records, and federal and state income tax returns of any employer, taxpayer, or

57




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

other person that is subject to, or that the Tax Administrator believes is subject to, the provisions
of this Chapter for the purpose of verifying the accuracy of any return made or, if no return was
filed, to asceitain the tax due under this Chapter. Upon written request by the Tax
Administrator or a duly authorized agent or employee thereof, every employer, taxpayer, or
other person subject to this section is required fo furnish the opportunity for the Tax
Administrator, authorized agent, or employee to investigate and examine such books, papers,
records, and federal and state income tax returns at a reasonable time and place designated in

the request.

(B) The records and other documents of any taxpayer, employer, or other person that is
subject to, or that a Tax Administrator believes is subject to, the provisions of this Chapter shall
be open to the Tax Administrator's inspection during business hours and shall be preserved for
a period of six years following the end of the taxable year to which the records or documents
relate, unless the Tax Administrator, in writing, consents to their destruction within that period,
or by order requires that they be kept longer. The Tax Administrator of a municipal corporation
may require any person, by notice served on that person, to keep such records as the Tax
Administrator determines necessary to show whether or not that person is liable, and the extent
of such liability, for the income tax levied by the Municipality or for the withholding of such tax.

{C) The Tax Administrator may examine under oath any person that the Tax Administrator
reasonably believes has knowledge concerning any income that was or would have been
returned for taxation or any transaction tending to affect such income. The Tax Administrator
may, for this purpose, compel any such person to attend a hearing or examination and to
produce any books, papers, records, and federal and state income tax returns in such person's
possession or control. The person may be assisted or represented by an attorney, accountant,
bookkeeper, or other tax practitioner at any such hearing or examination. This division does not
authorize the practice of law by a person who is not an attorney.

(D) No person issued written notice by the Tax Administrator compelling aftendance at a
hearing or examination or the production of books, papers, records, or federal and state income
tax returns under this section shall fail to comply.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.134 AUTHORITY OF TAX ADMINISTRATOR; REQUIRING IDENTIFYING
INFORMATION

(A) The Tax Administrator may require any person filing a tax document with the Tax
Administrator to provide identifying information, which may include the person's social security
number, federal employer identification number, or other identification number requested by the
Tax Administrator. A person required by the Tax Administrator to provide identifying information
that has experienced any change with respect to that information shall nofify the Tax

58




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

Administrator of the change before, or upon, filing the next tax document requiring the
identifying information.

(B)(1) If the Tax Administrator makes a request for identifying information and the Tax
Administrator does not receive valid identifying information within thirty (30) days of making the
request, nothing in this Chapter prohibits the Tax Administrator from imposing a penalty upon
the person to whom the request was directed pursuant to section 162.10 of this Chapter, in
addition to any applicable penalty described in section 162.99 of this Chapter.

(2) If a person required by the Tax Administrator to provide identifying information does not
notify the Tax Administrator of a change with respect to that information as required under
division (A) of this section within thirty (30) days after filing the next tax document requiring such
identifying information, nothing in this Chapter prohibits the Tax Administrator from imposing a
penalty pursuant to section 162.10 of this Chapter.

(3) The penalties provided for under divisions (B)}(1) and (2} of this section may be billed
and imposed in the same manner as the tax or fee with respect to which the identifying
information is sought and are in addition to any applicable criminal penalties described in
section 162.99 of this Chapter for a violation of 162.15 of this Chapter; and any other penalties
that may be imposed by the Tax Administrator by law.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.14 CONFIDENTIALITY

(A)  Any information gained as a result of retumns, investigations, hearings, or verifications
required or authorized by ORC 718 or by the charter or ordinance of the Municipality is
confidential, and no person shall access or disclose such information except in accordance with
a proper judicial order or in connection with the performance of that person's official duties or
the official business of the Municipality as authorized by ORC 718 or the charter or ordinance
authorizing the levy. The Tax Administrator of the Municipality or a designee thereof may furnish
copies of returns filed or otherwise received under this Chapter and other related tax_information
to the Internal Revenue Service, the State Tax Commissioner, and Tax Administrators of other

municipal corporations.

(B) This section does not prohibit the Municipality from publishing or disclosing statistics in a
form that does not disclose information with respect to particular taxpayers. '

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.16 FRAUD

No person shall knowingly make, present, aid, or assist in the preparation or presentation of a
false or fraudulent report, return, schedule, statement, claim, or document authorized or
required by municipal corporation ordinance or state law to be filed with the Tax Administrator,
or knowingly procure, counsel, or advise the preparation or presentation of such report, return,

59




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

schedule, statement, claim, or document, or knowingly change, alter, or amend, or knowingly
procure, counsel or advise such change, alteration, or amendment of the records upon which
such report, return, schedule, statement, claim, or document is hased with intent to defraud the

Municipality or the Tax Administrator.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.16 OPINION OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR

(A)  An "opinion of the Tax Administrator" means an opinion issued under this section with
respect to prospective municipal income tax liability. 1t does not include ordinary

correspondence of the Tax Administrator.

(B) A taxpayer may submit a written request for an opinion of the Tax Administrator as to
whether or how certain income, source of income, or a certain activity or transaction will be
taxed. The written response of the Tax Administrator shall be an "opinion of the Tax
Administrator” and shall bind the Tax Administrator, in accordance with divisions (C), (G), and
- (H) of this section, provided all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) The taxpayer's request fully and accurately describes the specific facts or circumstances
relevant to a determination of the taxability of the income, source of income, activity, or
transaction, and, if an activity or transaction, all parties involved in the activity or transaction are

clearly identified by name, location, or other pertinent facts.

(2) The request relates to a tax imposed by the Municipality in accordance with this
Chapter.

(3) The Tax Administrator's response is signed by the Tax Administrator anhd designated as
an "opinion of the Tax Administrator."

(C)  An opinion of the Tax Administrator shall remain in effect and shall protect the taxpayer
for whomn the opinion was prepared and who reasonably relies on it from liability for any taxes,
penalty, or interest otherwise chargeable on the activity or transaction specifically held by the
Tax Administrator's opinion to be taxable in a particular manner or not to be subject to taxation
for any taxable years that may be specified in the opinion, or until the earliest of the following

dates:

(1) The effective date of a written revocation by the Tax Administrator sent to the taxpayer
by certified mail, return receipt requested. The effective date of the revocation shall be the
taxpayer's date of receipt or one year after the issuance of the opinion, whichever is later;

60




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(2) The effective date of any amendment or enactment of a relevant section of the Ohio
Revised Code, uncodified state law, or the Municipality's income tax ordinance that would
substantially change the analysis and conclusion of the opinion of the Tax Administrator;

(3) The date on which a court issues an opinion establishing or changing relevant case law
with respect to the Ohio Revised Code, uncodified state law, or the Municipality's income tax

ordinance;

(4) If the opinion of the Tax Administrator was based on the interpretation of federal law,
the effective date of any change in the relevant federal statutes or regulations, or the date on
which a court issues an opinion establishing or changing relevant case law with respect to

federal statutes or regulations;

(5) The effective date of any change in the taxpayer's material facts or circumstances;

(6) The effective date of the expiration of the opinion, if specified in the opinion.

(D)Y(1) A taxpayer is not relieved of tax liability for any activity or transaction related to a request
for an opinion that contained any misrepresentation or omission of one or more material facts.

(2) If the taxpayer knowingly has misrepresented the pertinent facts or omitted material facts
with intent to defraud the Municipality in order to obtain a more favorable opinion, the taxpayer
may be in violation of section 162,15 of this Chapter:

(E) If a Tax Administrator provides written advice under this section, the opinion shalil
include a statement that:

(1) The tax consequences stated in the opinion may be subject to change for any of the
reasons stated in division (C) of this section,

(2) ltis the duty of the taxpayer to be aware of such changes.
(F) A Tax Administrator may refuse to offer an opinion on any request received under this
section.

(&) This section binds a Tax Administrator only with respect to opinions of the Tax
Administrator issued on or after January 1, 2016,

(H) An opinion of a Tax Administrator binds that Tax Administrator only with respect to the
taxpayer for whom the opinion was prepared and does not bind the Tax Administrator of any

other municipal corporation.

61




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(N A Tax Administrator shall make available the text of all opinions issued under this
section, except those opinions prepared for a taxpayer who has requested that the text of the
opinion remain confidential. In no event shall the text of an opinion be made available until the
Tax Administrator has removed all information that identifies the taxpayer and any other parties

involved in the activity or transaction.

) An opinion of the Tax Administrator issued under this section or a refusal to offer an
opinion under subsection (F) may not be appealed.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.17 ASSESSMENT; APPEAL BASED ON PRESUNMPTION OF DELIVERY

(A)(1) The Tax Administrator shall serve an assessment either by personal service, by certified
mail, or by a delivery service authorized under section 5703.056 of the Ohio Revised Code.

(2) The Tax Administrator may deliver the assessment through alternative means as
provided in this section, including, but not limited to, delivery by secure electronic mail. Such
alternative delivery method must be authorized by the person subject to the assessment.

(3) Once service of the assessment has been made by the Tax Administrator or other
municipal official, or the designee of either, the person to whom the assessment is directed may
protest the ruling of that assessment by filing an appeal with the Local Board of Tax Review
within sixty (60) days after the receipt of service. The delivery of an assessment of the Tax
Administrator as prescribed in section 718.18 of the Revised Code is prima facie evidence that

delivery is complete and that the assessment is served.

(B)(1) A person may challenge the presumption of delivery and service as set forth in this
division. A person disputing the presumption of delivery and service under this section bears
the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the address to which the
assessment was sent was not an address with which the person was associated at the time the
Tax Administrator originally mailed the assessment by certified mail. For the purposes of this
section, a person is associated with an address at the time the Tax Administrator originally
mailed the assessment if, at that time, the person was residing, receiving legal documents, or
conducting business at the address; or if, before that time, the person had conducted business
at the address and, when the assessment was mailed, the person's agent or the person's
affiliate was conducting business at the address. For the purposes of this section, a person's
affiliate is any other person that, at the time the assessment was mailed, owned or contrelled at
least twenty percent (20%), as determined by voting rights, of the addressee's business.

(2) If a person elects to appeal an assessment on the basis described in division (B)(1) of
this section, and if that assessment is subject to collection and is not otherwise appealable, the
person must do so within sixty (60) days after the initial contact by the Tax Administrator or
other municipal official, or the designee of either, with the person. Nothing in this division

62




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

prevents the Tax Administrator or other official from entering info a compromise with the person
if the person does not actually file such an appeal with the Local Board of Tax Review.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.18 LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW; APPEAL TO LOCAL BOARD OF TAX
REVIEW

(A)(1) The legislative authority of the Municipality shall maintain a Local Board of Tax Review
to hear appeals as provided in Ohio Revised Code Chapter 718.

(2) The Local Board of Tax Review shall consist of three members. Two members shalt be
appointed by the legislative authority of the Municipality, and may not be employees, elected
officials, or contractors with the Municipality at any time during their term or in the five years
immediately preceding the date of appointment. One member shall be appointed by the top
administrative official of the Municipality. This member may be an employee of the Municipality,
but may not be the director of finance or equivalent officer, or the Tax Administrator or other
similar official or an employee directly involved in municipal tax matters, or any direct

subordinate thereof.

(3) The term for members of the Local Board of Tax Review appointed by the legislative
authority of the Municipality shall be two years. There is no limit on the number of terms that a
member may serve should the member be reappointed by the legislative authority. The board
member appointed by the top administrative official of the Municipality shall serve at the

discretion of the administrative official.

(4) Members of the board of tax review appointed by the legislative authority may be
removed by the legislative authority as set forth in section 718.11(A)(4) of the Revised Code.

(5) A member of the board who, for any reason, ceases to meet the qualifications for the
position prescribed by this section shall resign immediately by operation of law.

(6) A vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled in the same manner as the original
appointment within sixty (60) days of when the vacancy was created. Any member appointed to
fill a vacancy oceurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the member's predecessor
was appointed shall hold office for the remainder of such term. No vacancy on the board shall
impair the power and authority of the remaining members fo exercise all the powers of the

board.

(7) I a member is temporarily unable to serve on the board due to a conffict of interest,
illness, absence, or similar reason, the legislative authority or top administrative official that
appointed the member shall appoint another individual to temporarily serve on the board in the
member’s place. This appointment shall be subject to the same requirements and limitations

as are applicable to the appointment of the member temporarily unable to serve.
(8) No member of the Local Board of Tax Review shall receive compensation.

63




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(B) Whenever a Tax Administrator issues an assessment, the Tax Administrator shall
notify the taxpayer in writing at the same time of the taxpayer's right to appeal the assessment,
the manner in which the taxpayer may appeal the assessment, and the address to which the
appeal should be directed, and to whom the appeal should be directed.

(C) Any person who has been issued an assessment may appeal the assessment to the
board by filing a request with the board. The request shall be in writing, shall specify the reason
or reasons why the assessment should be deemed incorrect or unlawful, and shall he filed

within sixty (60) days after the taxpayer receives the assessment.

D) The Local Board of Tax Review shall schedule a hearing to be held within (60) sixty
days after receiving an appeal of an assessment under division (C) of this section, unless the
taxpayer requests additional time to prepare or waives a hearing. If the taxpayer does not waive
the hearing, the taxpayer may appear before the board and/or may be represented by an
attorney at law, certified public accountant, or other representative. The board may allow a
hearing to be continued as jointly agreed to by the parties. In such a case, the hearing must be
completed within one hundred twenty (120) days after the first day of the hearing unless the

parties agree otherwise.

(E) The board may affirm, reverse, or modify the Tax Administrator's assessment or any
part of that assessment. The board shall issue a final determination on the appeal within ninety
{90) days after the board’s final hearing on the appeal, and send a copy of its final determination
by ordinary mail to all of the parties to the appeal within fifteen (15) days after issuing the final
determination. The taxpayer or the Tax Administrator may appeal the board's final
determination as provided in section 5717.011 of the Ohio Revised Code.

F The Local Board of Tax Review created pursuant to this section shall adopt ruies
governing its procedures, including a schedule of related costs, and shall keep a record of its
transactions. The rules governing the Local Board of Tax Review pracedures shall be in writing,
and may be amended as needed by the Local Board of Tax Review. Such records are not
public records available for inspection under section 149.43 of the Ohio Revised Code. For this
reason, any documentation, copies of returns or reports, final determinations, or working papers
for each case must be maintained in a secure location under the confrol of the Tax
Administrator, No member of the l.ocal Board of Tax Review may remove such documentation,
copies of returns or reports, final determinations, or working papers from the hearing. Hearings
requested by a taxpayer before a Local Board of Tax Review created pursuant o this section
are not meetings of a public body subject to section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. For this
reason, such hearings shall not be open to the public, and only those parties to the case may be

present during the hearing.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.19 ACTIONS TO RECOVER; STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

(A)(1)(8) Civil actions to recover municipal income taxes and penalties and interest on
municipal income taxes shall be brought within the latter of:

64




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(i) Three years after the tax was due or the return was filed, whichever is later; or
(ii)One year after the conclusion of the qualifying deferral period, if any.

(b) The time limit described in division (A)(1)(a) of this section may be extended at any
time if both the Tax Administrator and the employer, agent of the employer, other payer, or
taxpayer consent in writing to the extension. Any extension shall also extend for the same
period of time the time limit described in division {C} of this section.

(2) As used in this section, "qualifying deferral period" means a period of time heginning and
ending as follows:

(a) Beginning on the date a person who is aggrieved by an assessment fiies with a Local
Board of Tax Review the request described in section 162.18 of this Chapter. That date shall
not be affected by any subsequent decision, finding, or holding by any administrative body or
court that the l.ocal Board of Tax Review with which the aggrieved person filed the request did
not have jurisdiction to affirm, reverse, or modify the assessment or any part of that

assessment,

(b) Ending the later of the sixtieth day after the date on which the final determination of the
Local Board of Tax Review becomes final or, if any party appeals from the determination of the
Local Board of Tax Review, the sixtieth day after the date on which the final determination of the
Local Board of Tax Review is either ultimately affirmed in whole or in part or ultimately reversed
and no further appeal of either that affirmation, in whole or in part, or that reversal is available or

taken.

(B) Prosecutions for an offense made punishable under a resolution or ordinance imposing an
income tax shall be commenced within three years after the commission of the offense,
provided that in the case of fraud, failure to file a return, or the omission of twenty-five percent
(25%) or more of income required to be reported, prosecutions may be commenced within six

years after the commission of the offense.

(C) A claim for a refund of municipal income taxes shall be brought within the time limitation
provided in section 162.096 of this Chapter.

(D)(1) Notwithstanding the fact that an appeal is pending, the petitioner may pay all or a
partion of the assessment that is the subject of the appeal. The acceptance of a
payment by the Municipality does not prejudice any claim for refund upon final

determination of the appeal.
(2) If upon final determination of the appeal an error in the assessment is corrected by the

Tax Administrator, upon an appeal so filed or pursuant to a final determination of the Local
Board of Tax Review created under section 162.18 of this Chapter, of the Ohio board of tax

65




City of Medina
Ord,, Exh. A

appeals, or any court to which the decision of the Ohio board of tax appeals has been appealed,
so that the amount due from the party assessed under the corrected assessment is less than
the amount paid, there shall be issued to the appellant or to the appellant's assigns or legal
representative a refund in the amount of the overpayment as provided by section 162.096 of this
Chapter, with interest on that amount as provided by division (D) of this section.

(E) No civil action to recover municipal income tax or related penalties or interest shall be
brought during either of the following time periods:

(1) The period during which a taxpayer has a right to appeal the imposition of that tax or
interest or those penalties;

(2) The period during which an appeal related to the imposition of that tax or interest or
those penalties is pending.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.20 ADOPTION OF RULES.

(A) Pursuant to section 718.30 of the Revised Code, the Municipality, pursuant to this Chapter,
grants authority to the Tax Administrator, to adopt rules to administer the income fax imposed
by the Municipality.

(B) All rules adopted under this section shall be published and posted on the internet.

(Ord. 155-15. Passed 12-14-15.)
(C) The Municipality hereby adopts and incorporates herein by reference sections 718.80 to

718.95 of the Ohio Revised Code for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

(D) A taxpayer, as defined in division (E) of this section, may elect to be subject to sections
718.80 to 718.95 of the Revised Code in lieu of the provisions of this Ordinance.

(E} '"Taxpayer" has the same meaning as in section 718.01 of the Revised Code, except that
"taxpayer" does not include natural persons or entities subject to the tax imposed under Chapter
5745 of the Revised Code, '"Taxpayer” may include receivers, assignees, or trustees in
bankruptcy when such persons are required to assume the role of a taxpayer.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

162.97 COLLECTION AFTER TERMINATION OF CHAPTER

{A) This Chapter shall continue in full force and effect insofar as the levy of taxes is
concerned until repealed, and insofar as the collection of taxes levied hereunder and actions
and proceedings for collecting any tax so levied or enforcing any provisions of this Chapter are
concerned, it shall continue in full force and effect until all of the taxes levied in the aforesaid
period are fully paid and any and all suits and prosecutions for the collection of taxes or for the
punishment of violations of this Chapter have been fully terminated, subject to the limitations

contained in section 162.19.

66




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(B) Annual returns due for all or any part of the last effective year of this Chapter shall be
due on the date provided in section 162.091 as though the same were continuing.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.98 SAVINGS CLLAUSE

If any sentence, clause, section or part of this Chapter, or any tax imposed against, or
exemption from tax granted to, any taxpayer or forms of income specified herein is found to be
unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, such unconstitutionality, illegality, or invalidity shall affect only
such clause, sentence, section or part of this Chapter so found and shall not affect or impair any
of the remaining provisions, sentences, clauses, sections or other parts of this Chapter. It is
hereby declared to be the intention of the legislative authority of the Municipality that this
Chapter would have been adopted had such unconstitutional, illegal or invalid sentence, clause,
section or part thereof not been included in this Chapter.

(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)
162.99 VIOLATIONS; PENALTY

(A) Fxcept as provided in division (B) of this section, whoever violates section 162.15 of this
Chapter, division (A) of section 162.14 of this Chapter, or section 162.051 of this Chapter by
failing to remit municipal income taxes deducted and withheld from an employee, shall be guilty
of a misdemeanor of the first degree and shall be subject to a fine of not more than one
thousand dollars ($1000.00) or imprisonment for a term of up to six months, or both. [n addition,
the violation is punishable by dismissal from office or discharge from employment, or both.

(B Any person who discloses information received from the Internal Revenue Service in
violation of Internal Revenue Code Sec. 7213(a), 7213A, or 7431 shall be guilty of a felony of
the fifth degree and shall be subject to a fine of not more than five thousand doliars ($5000.00)
plus the costs of prosecution, or imprisonment for a term not exceeding five years, or both. In
addition, the violation is punishable by dismissal from office or discharge from employment, or

both.

(C) Each instance of access or disclosure in violation of division {A) of section 162,14 of this
Chapter constitutes a separate offense.

(D) Whoever violates any provision of this Chapter for which violation no penaity is
otherwise. provided, is guilty of a misdemeanor of the third degree on a first offense; on a
second offense within one year after the first offense, the person is guilty of a misdemeanor of
the second degree; on each subsequent offense within one year after the first offense, the
person is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree. By way of an illustrative enumeration,
violations of this Chapter shali include but not be limited to the following acts, conduct, and/or

omissions:

67




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(1) Fail, neglect or refuse to make any return or declaration required by this Chapter; or

(2) Knowingly make any incomplete refurn; or
" (3) Willfully fail, neglect, or refuse to pay the tax, penalties, and interest, or any combination
thereof, imposed by this Chapter; or

(4) Cause to not be remitted the city income tax withheld from qualifying wages of
employees to the Municipality municipal corporation as required by section 162.051; or

(5) Neglect or refuse to withhold or remit municipal income tax from employees; or

(6) Refuse to permit the Tax Administrator or any duly authorized agent or employee to
examine his or her books, records, papers, federal and state income tax returns, or any
documentation relating to the income or net profits of a taxpayer; or

(7) Fail to appear before the Tax Administrator and to produce his or her books, records,

papers, federal and state income tax returns, or any documentation relating to the income or net
profits of a taxpayer upon order or subpoena of the Tax Administrator; or

(8) Refuse to disclose to the Tax Administrator any information with respect to such
person's income or net profits, or in the case of a person responsible for maintaining
information relating to his or her employers’ income or net profits, such person’s employer's

income or net profits; or
(9) Fail to comply with the provisions of this Chapter or any order or subpoena of the Tax
Administrator; or
(10) To avoid imposition or collection of municipal income tax, willfully give to an employer or
prospective employer false information as fo his or her true name, correct social security

number and residence address, or willfully fail to promptly notify an employer or a prospective
employer of any change in residence address and date thereof; or

(11)  Fail, as an employer, agent of an employer, or other payer, to maintain proper records of
employees residence addresses, total qualifying wages paid and municipal tax withheld, or to
knowingly give the Tax Administrator false information; or

(12)  Willfully fail, neglect, or refuse to make any payment of estimated municipal income tax
for any taxable year or any part of any taxable year in accordance with this Chapter; or

(13) Attempt to do anything whatsoever to avoid the payment of the whole or any part of the
tax, penalties or interest imposed by this Chapter. '

(14) For purposes of this section, any violation that does not specify a culpable mental state
or intent, shall be one of sfrict liability and no culpable menta! state or intent shall be required for
a person to be guilty of that violation.

68




City of Medina
Ord., Exh. A

(15) For purposes of this section, the ferm “person” shall, in addition to the meaning
prescribed in section 162.03, include in the case of a corporation, association, pass-through
entity or unincorporated business entity not having any resident owner or officer within the city,
any employee or agent of such corporation, association, pass-through entity or unincorporated
business entity who has control or supervision over or is charged with the responsibility of filing
the municipal income tax returns and making the payments of the municipal income tax as

required by this Chapter.
(Ord. 90-18. Passed 5-29-18.)

68




SEC. 1:

SEC, 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC. 5:

SEC. 6:

SEC. 7:

PASSLED:

ATTEST:

-

RCA 23-236-12/11

ORDINANCE NO. 204-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYORTO ENTER
INTO THE FLOCK SAFETY AGREEMENT FOR THE
LICENSE PLATE SCANNING SYSTEM FOR THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

BL IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, GHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the Flock Safety Agreement for a
license plate scanning system for the Police Department.

That a copy of the Flock Safety Agreement is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

That this contract supersedes existing contract, and is subject to the Law Director’s
final approval.

That the funds to cover this expenditure in the amount of $125,000.00 are available
as follows: $125,000.00 in Account No. 106-0101-53321.

That in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §5705.41(D), at the time that the
contract or order was made and at the time of execution of the Finance Director’s
certificate, sufficient funds were available or in the process of collection, to the credit
of a proper fund, properly appropriated and free from any previous encumbrance.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason the deadline is December 30, 2023; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full
force and effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor. _

SIGNED:

President of Council

APPROVYED:
Clerk of Council :

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 204-23




EXHIBIT A

ORDER FORM
Customer:  OH-Medina PD Initial Term: 60 Months
Legal Entity Name:  OH-MedinaPD Renewal Term: 24 Months
Accomnts Payable Email:  slynn@medinach.org Payment Terms:  Net 30
Address: 150 W Friendship St Medina, Ohio 44256 BillingFrequency: Anmnual- First Year at Signing.

RetentionPeried: 30 Days

Hardware and Software Products
Annual recurring amounts over subscription term

, FlackO§ ™ Included
Flock Sakty Falcoa ®

Included

Professional Services and One Time Purchases

Subiotal Year 1: $25,000.00
Annual Recurring Subtotal: $25,000.00
Discounts; $25,000.00
Estimated Tax: $0.00
Contraci Totak: $125,000.00

Effcctive stast date: 12/30/2023




Billing_Schedule

Year 1

At Contract Signing $25,000.00
Annual Reenrring after Year 1 $25,000.00
Contract Total $125,000.00

*Tax not included
Discounts

Flock Saféty Plaiform $25,000.00
Flock Safty Add-ons $0.00
Flock Saftty Pro&ssional Services $0.00




a

Product and Services Description

The Tem shall commence upon firsé instattation and validation of Flock
Hardware.

Flock Saftty Falcon ® Fingerprint® technology to captase vehicular attributes.

it

Installation on existing One-tims Profssional Services engagement. Includes site & safity assessment, camera selup & testing, and shipping & handéing in accordance with

inffastructure the Flock Safty Advanced Implementation Seivice Brief

Professional Services - Standard One-time Profssional Services engagement, Includes site and safly assessment, camera setup and testing, and shipping and handling in accordance
Implementatior: Fee with the Flock Safty Standard Implementation Service Brief

Profssional Services - One-time Profssional Services engagement, Tncludes site & safity assessment, camera sefup & testing, and shipping & handling in accordance with
Advanced Enplementation Fee the Flock Safety Advanced Implementation Service Brief

FlockOS Features & Description

Package: Essentials

Access toall privately owned Flock devices within your jurisdiction that have been shared with you.

Community Cameras (Full Access)
Unlimited Users

State Netwark (LP Lookup Only)
Nationwide Network (LP Eookup Only)

Unlimited users for FlockOS
Allows agencies #o fook up license plates on all cameras opted in fo the statewide Flock network.

Allows agencies 1o look up license plates on all cameras opted in to the nationwide Flock netwok,

Direct Share - Surounding Jurisdiction (Fult Access) Access {oall Flock devices owned by law enforcement that have been directly shared with you, Have
! E-urs ability to search by vehicle fingerprint, receive hot list alerts, and view devices on the map.

Time & Location Bassd Search Search fill, partial, and temporaty plates by timeat particular device locations

Look upspeeific license plate location history captured on Flock devices

License PlateLookup
Search fotage using Vehicle Fingerprint™ techuology. Access vehicle type, make, color, license plate

Vehicle Fingerprint S state, missing/ covered plates, and other unique Satures like bumper stickers, decals, and reof racks.
. . Reporting tool fo help administrators manage their LPR. progeam with device perrmance date, user and
Flock Insights/Analytics page network audits, plate read zeports, hot list alert reports, event logs, and outcome reports.

Flack Safty’s maps are powered by ESRI, which offrs the ability for 3D visuatization, viewing of floor
plans, and layesing of extemal GIS data, such as City inffastmeture (i.e., public Beilities, transiisystems,
ESRIBased Map Interfice utifities), Boundary mapping (i.e., precinets, couanly lines, beat maps), and Interior floor plans (i.e.,
hospitals, corporate campuses, universities)

Alert sent when a vehicle entered into the NCIC crime database passes by a Flock camera

Ability to add a suspect’s license plate to a custom list aad get alerted when it passes by a Flock camera

Real-TimeNCIC Alerts on Flosk ALPR Cameras
Unlimited Custom Hot Lists




By executing this Order Form, Customer represents and warrants that it has read and
agrees all of the ferms and conditions contained in the Terms of Service located at
hitps//www. flocksafety.com/terms-and-conditions

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below.

FLOCK GROUP, INC. Customer: OH - Medina PD
By: By:

Name; Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

PO Number;




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC, 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

RCA 23-237-12/11

ORDINANCE NO. 205-23

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 42-23,
PASSED FEBRUARY 27, 2023 RELATIVE TO THE
EXPENDITURE TO SIGNAL SERVICE COMPANY FOR THE
STREET DEPARTMENT, AND DECLARING AN

EMERGENCY.

Ordinance No. 42-23, passed February 27, 2023, authorized the expenditure of
$60,000 to Signal Service Company for the Street Department; and

It has been deemed necessary to increase this expenditure due to emergency repairs
following a vehicle crash at W. Smith and S. Huntington.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No, 42-23, passed February 27, 2023 is hereby amended to show the
increase of $51,024.00, making the new total $111,024.00.

That the funds to cover this increase, in the amount of $51,024.00, are available in
Account No. 102-0145-53321.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Coungcil, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason the work was completed in 2022 and the vendor needs to be paid; wherefore,
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and

signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council

APPROVED:

. Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 205-23




SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

ORDINANCE NO. 206-23

RCA 23-239-12/11

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 221-22,
PASSED DECEMBER 12,2022, (Amendments to 2023 Budget)

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No. 221-22, passed December 12, 2022, shall be amended by the

following additions:

Account No./Line Item
104-0301-53313
001-0420-53313
106-0101-53321
102-0145-53321
102-0610-53321
138-0460-52215
157-0705-52226
380-0689-56615
547-0650-53315
574-0350-54412
102-0145-50111
102-0145-51121
102-0145-53321
103-0610-50111
103-0610-50111
103-0610-51126
103-0610-52213
103-0610-53312
574-0303-51121
574-0357-50111
574-0364-50111
574-0357-53313

Additions
15535 *
164.00 *
30,000.00 *
51,024.00 *
100,000.00 *
8,614.00 *

10,000.00 *

493,940.00 *

7,000.00 *

460,000.00 *

26,000.00
10,000.00
46,000.00
35,000.00
4,000.00
300.00
1,500.00
2,000.00
2,466.00
7,500.00
26,000.00
13,500.00

That Ordinance No, 221-22, passed December 12, 2022, shall be amended by the

following Reductions:

Account No./Line Item
102-0620-50111
102-0620-50111
102-0620-50111
103-0610-53312
103-0610-53312
103-0610-53312
103-0610-53312
103-0610-53312

Reductions
26,000.00
10,000.00
46,000.00
35,000.00

4.000.00

300.00

1,500.00

2,000.00

Ord. 206-23 -




574-0303-53315 2,466.00

574-0351-50111 7,500.00

574-0350-50111 26,000.00

574-0356-53312 13,500.00
SEC. 3: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and

relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance

with the law.

SEC. 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

* - new appropriation

PASSED: SIGNED:

President of Council

ATTEST: APPROVEBD:
Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Mayor

Ord. 206-23




